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FY2022 External Auditor Annual Report
BACKGROUND

The Oregon State University Fiscal Year (FY) 2022 Annual Financial Report was prepared by
the university in collaboration with the University Shared Services Enterprise (USSE). An
external audit was completed by CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP for the year ended June 30, 2022.

REPORT SUMMARY

The auditors at CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP issued an unmodified opinion, meaning their opinion as
to the fair presentation of the financial statements was issued without modifications. The
complete FY2022 Annual Financial Report can be found in Attachment 1.

As part of the financial statement audit, a Governance Communication Letter was prepared by
CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP, to communicate certain matters related to the conduct of the audit to
those who have responsibility for oversight of the financial reporting process. A copy of the
Governance Communication Letter is available in Attachment 2.

As part of the financial statement audit, a report on Internal Controls in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards was prepared by CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP, available in
Attachment 3.

Concurrently with the FY2022 financial statement audit, CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP, conducted a
federal compliance audit of Oregon State’s sponsored programs in accordance with Federal
Uniform Guidance 2 CFR Part 200. The FY2022 Single Audit Compliance Report is expected to
be completed and issued by January 31, 2023.

Concurrently with the FY2021 financial statement audit, CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP, conducted a
federal compliance audit of Oregon State’s sponsored programs in accordance with Federal
Uniform Guidance 2 CFR Part 200, available in Attachment 4. The issuance of the FY2021
Single Audit Compliance Report was delayed due to the late dissemination of federal audit
guidelines necessary for the review of COVID-19 program expenditures.

Results of the FY2021 Single Audit disclosed two significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance. See pages 28-30 and 32-34 of the FY2021 report in Attachment 4 for details and
management’s corrective action plan.

RECOMMENDATION

Subject to the reports of CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP, staff recommend that the Executive & Audit
Committee accept the Oregon State University FY2022 Annual Financial Report, and the
FY2021 Single Audit Report.

January 19-20, 2023 Board of Trustees Meetings

Joint Meeting: Executive and Audit Committee Page 1
and Finance and Administration Committee
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OREGON’S STATEWIDE UNIVERSITY

Oregon State University is a comprehensive, internationally recognized public
research university. OSU serves as the state of Oregon’s land, sea, space and sun
grant university and is one of only three universities in the nation with all four
designations. Its programs are located in every county in Oregon, and its faculty are
dedicated to providing solutions for the state and world’s greatest challenges. OSU
considers the entire state of Oregon as its campus and works in partnership with
many school districts, all of Oregon’s 17 community colleges and numerous public
and private universities and colleges to provide access to high-quality education.
Meanwhile, strong collaborations with industry — as well as state and federal
agencies — help contribute to the success of the university’s research enterprise.
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MISSION

As a land grant institution committed to teaching, research,
outreach and engagement, Oregon State University pro-
motes economic, social, cultural and environmental progress
for the people of Oregon, the nation and the world. We
accomplish this by:

« Producing skilled graduates who are critical thinkers.
« Searching actively for new knowledge and solutions.
 Developing the next generation of scholars.

« Collaborating with communities in Oregon and around the
world.

« Maintaining a rigorous focus on academic excellence, par-
ticularly in three signature areas: the science of sustainable
Earth ecosystems, health and wellness, economic prosper-
ity and social progress.

VISION

Leadership among land grant universities in the integrated
creation, sharing and application of knowledge for the
betterment of human kind. In this way, we produce
graduates, scholarship and solutions that achieve maximum
positive impact on humanity’s greatest challenges.

GOALS

Strategic Plan 4.0 expands Oregon State’s strategic goals to
focus on:

1. Preeminence in research, scholarship and innovation.
2. Transformative education that is accessible to all learners.
3. Significant and visible impact in Oregon and beyond.
4. A culture of belonging, collaboration and innovation.

View OSU'’s Strategic Plan at:
leadership.oregonstate.edu/strategic-plan

2022 | Annual Financial Report | 3
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Message from
Interim President Rebecca Johnson

| am pleased to report that Oregon State University ended 2021-22
financially stable and enjoys strong momentum in advancing its land
grant mission of teaching, research innovation and scholarship, and
community service engagement that is articulated in the university’s
Strategic Plan 4.0. Despite the continuing effects of the pandemic
and the challenges of resuming in-person operations, the university
saw positive enrollment growth and significant increases in research
funding, managed expenses carefully and saw total net position
improve.

OSU’s comprehensive financial planning process helped ensure that
anticipated impacts of the pandemic were considered through a long-
range lens, and a strategic approach to mitigate those impacts was
followed. Oregon State’s latest bond rating, reaffirmed by Moody’s
Investor Services in conjunction with the publication of the updated
higher education rating methodology, remained Aa3 stable.

Federal financial support was key to mitigating pandemic impacts
to students and institutional revenue losses. The university received
federal funding through the Higher Education Emergency Relief
Fund (HEERF). HEERF Il funds ($23.8 million in student aid and
$22.3 million in institutional support) were disbursed in FY22. The
institutional portion of funds received were critical for keeping key
university functions whole, retaining employees and continuing to
serve students well.

Oregon State continues its preeminence as Oregon’s leading com-
prehensive public research university. OSU was the largest university
in the state for the eighth consecutive year with 34,108 students
enrolled for the 2021-22 academic year. Students of color made up
more than 28% of the university’s overall enrollment, nearly doubling
their enrollment from 10 years ago. OSU-Cascades in Bend enrolled
a total of 1,247 students. OSU’s highly ranked Ecampus program en-
rolled 10,082 distance students in 2021-2022, a rise of 14% over the
previous year. Oregon State also continues to be a school of choice
among Oregon residents. Oregonians make up 70.5% of OSU’s
Corvallis degree-seeking undergraduate enrollment and 81.8% of
OSU-Cascades’ overall enrollment.

The university continues to pursue an enroliment forecast that calls
for up to 28,000 students to be enrolled at its Corvallis campus;
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3,000 to 5,000 students at its OSU-Cascades campus in Bend and
7,000 or more degree-seeking students enrolled online through
Ecampus. OSU’s Portland Center is moving to serve adult learners by
offering professional and continuing education to support regional
community needs, while hosting seminars, conferences and other
activities.

Oregon State’s research enterprise continues to excel. In FY22,
research funding increased by more than 22% to $471.5 million, a
university record. In all, OSU research funding rose by $87.6 million,
and fiscal year 2022 marked the fourth time in six years that OSU’s
research awards have exceeded $400 million.

For the first time in the university’s history, donors gave more than
$216.9 million, reflecting incredible momentum and collaboration
across the university. Fiscal year 2022 also was a record year in
philanthropic cash received. Collaborating with campus colleagues,
the OSU Foundation and the university engaged more than 50,000
Beavers around the world - the second highest total ever — through
events, volunteer opportunities, giving and other meaningful interac-
tions. Not surprisingly, given market turbulence, the OSU Foundation
endowment ended the fiscal year with a negative annualized return
(net market value of $764.5 million on June 30, 2022, compared to
$819.5 million on June 30, 2021). Endowment performance, however,
surpassed the industry benchmark by 7.7%.

I am honored to have served as OSU’s interim president since
May 2021.

Jayathi Y. Murthy, a national leader in higher education engineer-
ing teaching, research and service, and advancing diversity, equity
and inclusion, begins her service as OSU’s next president on Sept.
9, 2022. I am confident that Oregon State University will continue
to provide exemplary service to the state, the nation and the world
under her leadership.

S

Rebecca Johnson

Interim OSU President FY22
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POINTS of PRIDE

Research breakthroughs. Innovative faculty.

Stellar students. And a thriving college town

in the heart of the Willamette Valley. It’s no

wonder Oregon State consistently ranks among

the top universities to work, study and explore.
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"2
"2
"2
3
3
"4
"8

of universities in the world

Friendliest college town in
America

Forestry program in the
world

Best Agricultural Colleges in
the U.S.

Oceanography program in
the world

Human development and
family studies program in
the U.S

Best online business
bachelor’s program in
the nation

Marine and freshwater
biology program in the world
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Members of the Board of Trustees
Oregon State University
Corvallis, Oregon

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and aggregate discretely presented
component units of the Oregon State University (the University), a component unit of the State of Oregon, as of and for
the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
University’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to above pres-
ent fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities and aggregate discretely
presented component units of the University, as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the respective changes in financial position
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally ac-
cepted in the United States of America.

We did not audit the financial statements of the Oregon State University Foundation (the Foundation), which represents
97%, 98%, and 95%, respectively of the 2022 assets, net assets and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented com-
ponent units and 97%, 98% and 96%, respectively of the 2021 assets, net assets and revenues of the aggregate discretely
presented component units. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and
our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Oregon State University Foundation, is based solely on the
report of other auditors.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS)
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller Gen-
eral of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the University and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. The financial
statements of the Oregon State University Foundation were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Emphasis of Matter

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the University adopted Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 87 Leases. As a result of the implementation of this standard, the University reported a restatement for the
change in accounting principle (see Note 1 to the financial statements) as of July 1, 2020. In addition, as described in Note
1.AC and Note 21 to the financial statements, the aggregate discretely presented component units beginning net assets as
of July 1, 2020 was restated. Our auditors’ opinion was not modified with respect to the restatements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, consid-
ered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the University’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve
months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt
shortly thereafter.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assur-
ance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The

CLAglobal.com/disclaimer
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risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judg-
ment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

« Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and de-
sign and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about University’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the
audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis, schedules of the University’s contributions to pension and Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) plans, and
schedules of the University’s proportionate share of pension and OPEB plans (collectively referred to as required supple-
mentary information) be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility

of management and although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements

in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the informa-
tion for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises the
Board of Trustees and Executive Officers and Message from the President but does not include the basic financial state-
ments and our auditors’ report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information,
and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audits of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or the
other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an
uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 31, 2022, on our con-
sideration of the University’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of University’s internal control over financial reporting or on compli-
ance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
University’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Denver, Colorado
October 31, 2022
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Introduction

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A) provides an overview of the financial position and
activities of Oregon State University (OSU) for the years
ended June 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020. OSU is comprised of
a main campus in Corvallis and a branch campus in Bend,
along with the Hatfield Marine Science Center in Newport,
Ecampus, and Extension Service, Agricultural Experiment
Stations and Forest Research Laboratories located through-
out the state.

Annual Full-Time Equivalent [FTE) Student
Enroliment Summary

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Corvallis 18,043 18,418 19,873 20,745 21,182
Cascades 926 850 843 810 767
Ecampus 9,742 9,102 7,617 6,659 6,271
Total 28,711 28,370 28,333 28,214 28,220

Understanding the Financial

Statements

The MD&A focuses on OSU as a whole and is intended to
foster a greater understanding of OSU’s financial activities.
Since this presentation includes summarized formats, it
should be read in conjunction with the financial statements
that have the following six components:

Independent Auditors’ Report presents an unmodified
opinion rendered by CliftonLarsonAllen LLP, an independent
certified public accounting firm, on the fairness in
presentation of the financial statements.

Statement of Net Position (SNP) presents a snapshot of
OSU’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
deferred inflows of resources and ending net position under
the accrual basis of accounting at the end of each fiscal year
presented. The SNP helps the reader understand the types
and amounts of assets available to support operations, how
much OSU owes to vendors and bondholders, and OSU’s
net position, delineated based upon availability for future
expenditures.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position (SRE) presents OSU’s revenues and expenses
categorized between operating, nonoperating and other
related activities. The SRE reports OSU’s operating results
for each fiscal year presented.

Statement of Cash Flows (SCF) provides information about
OSU’s sources and uses of cash during the fiscal year. The
SCF classifies sources and uses of cash into four categories
of cash either provided or used by: operating activities,
noncapital financing activities, capital and related financing
activities and investing activities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Notes) provide
additional information to clarify and expand on the financial
statements.

Component Units, comprised of two supporting founda-
tions, are combined and reported separately in the OSU
financial statements and in Note 2 Cash and Investments
and Note 21 University Foundations.

The MD&A provides an objective analysis of OSU’s financial
activities based on currently known facts, decisions, and
conditions. The analysis is about OSU as a whole and is not
broken out by individual campuses, schools, colleges or
divisions. The MD&A discusses the current and prior year
results in comparison to the prior year. Due to rounding and
presentation, summary numbers in the MD&A may differ
slightly from those in the financial statement schedules. Un-
less otherwise stated, all years refer to the fiscal year ending
on June 30.

Financial Summary

Although COVID-19 has adversely impacted OSU financially
over the past couple of years, the university has maintained
and even improved its solid financial condition and positive
operating performance during fiscal year 2022. The positive
operations of the university were in part supported by $46
million in COVID-19 relief funding received from the federal
government for student aid and institutional support.

Total assets increased by $93 million, or 4 percent, at the
year’s end. This increase was driven mostly by a $132 mil-
lion increase in net capital assets, a $25 million increase in
investments, and a $16 million increase in accounts receiv-
able. The remaining asset categories decreased by a net of
$80 million.

Deferred outflows increased by $23 million, due mostly to
an increase in deferred outflows related to the net pension
liability.

Total liabilities decreased by $184 million, or 11 percent,
during 2022 primarily due to $176 million decrease in the
net pension liability. The remaining liability categories de-
creased by a net of $8 million.

Deferred inflows increased by $209 million, due mostly to
an increase in deferred inflows related to the net pension
liability.

Total net position increased by $91 million during fiscal year
2022 primarily due to an $80 million increase in unrestricted
net position and a $14 million increase in net investment in
capital assets, which were only slightly offset by a $4 million
decrease in restricted net position.

Total revenues increased by $108 million, or 8 percent, in
2022 over 2021. This increase was widely distributed among
many income categories led by increases in auxiliary enter-
prises of $79 million, capital grants and gifts of $22 million,
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financial aid grants of $18 million, government appropria-
tions of $13 million, gifts of $7 million, student tuition and
fees of $6 million, and COVID-19 institutional funding of $3
million. These increases were offset by decreases in invest-
ment activity of $34 million and grants and contracts of $6
million.

Operating expenses increased by $41 million in 2022, or 3
percent, over 2021. This increase was spread among many
categories led by increases in auxiliary programs of $30 mil-
lion, student aid of $14 million, institutional support of $9
million, other operating expenses of $7 million, and instruc-
tion of $4 million. These increases were offset by decreases
in public service of $14 million, research of $5 million, and
academic support of $4 million.

Statement of Net Position

The term “Net Position” refers to the difference between
assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources, and is an important indicator
of OSU’s current financial condition. Changes in net position
that occur over time indicate improvement or deterioration
in OSU'’s financial condition.

The following chart summarizes OSU’s assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and net position (in millions):

Condensed Statement of Net Position

As of June 30, 2022 2021 2020
Current Assets $ 337 $ 403 § 409
Noncurrent Assets 621 594 224
Capital Assets, Net 1,580 1,448 1,351
Total Assets $ 2,538 $ 2,445 $ 1,984
Deferred Outflows of Resources  $ 200 $ 177 $ 128
Current Liabilities $ 256 $ 221§ 221
Noncurrent Liabilities 1,279 1,498 1,062
Total Liabilities $ 1,535 $ 1,719 $ 1,283
Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 305 $ 9% $ 33
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 957 § 943 § 897
Restricted - Nonexpendable 7 6 6
Restricted - Expendable 80 84 67
Unrestricted (146) (226) (174)
Total Net Position $ 898 $ 807 § 796

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of
Resources

Total assets increased by $93 million, or 4 percent, during
the year ended 2022 due primarily to increases in accounts
receivable, investments, prepaid expenses, net OPEB as-

set and net capital assets, which were offset by decreases

in cash and cash equivalents, notes receivable, and leases
receivable. Total assets increased by $461 million, or 23 per-

cent, during the year ended 2021 due primarily to increases
in investments, leases receivable and net capital assets,
which were offset somewhat by decreases in cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable and net OPEB Asset.

Comparison of fiscal year 2022 to fiscal year 2021

Current Assets decreased by $66 million, or 16 percent,
primarily due to:

« Current cash and cash equivalents decreased by $86
million primarily due to a decrease in the amount of cash
in operations combined with an increase in the amount of
operating cash transferred to investments as of year end.

« Accounts receivable increased by $16 million. Increases in
receivables related to student tuition and fees, auxiliaries,
component units and federal grants were slightly offset by
decreases in receivables for capital construction grants,
state grants and contracts, and an increase in allowance
for doubtful accounts. See Note 3 Accounts Receivable for
additional information.

+ Prepaid expenses increased by $4 million due to increases
in prepaid expenses in general operations, auxiliaries,
restricted grants and contracts and capital construction.

« Current notes receivable was relatively unchanged. A
decrease in Perkins loans receivable was partially offset
by an increase in installment receivable from Link Oregon.
See Note 4 Notes Receivable for additional information.

- Current leases receivable was relatively unchanged.

Noncurrent (Noncapital) Assets increased by $27 million,
or 5 percent.

« Noncurrent cash and cash equivalents decreased by $3
million due primarily to a decrease in cash held for capital
construction over the previous year.

+ Investments increased by $25 million due primarily to
an increase in total dollars invested, somewhat offset
by a decrease in the market value of the university’s
investments. See Note 2 Cash and Investments, Section B
Investments for additional information.

+ Noncurrent notes receivable decreased by $2 million.
Decreases in receivables related to Perkins loans and
institutional student loans were somewhat offset by an
increase in receivables related to split dollar agreements
with the Pat Casey Family Trust (PCFT) and Coach
Jonathan Smith. See Note 1 Organization and Summary
of Significant Accounting Policies, Section Z Related Party
Transactions and Note 4 for additional information.

« Noncurrent leases receivable decreased by $1 million.

+ The net OPEB asset increased by $8 million. See Note 17
Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) for additional
information.
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Capital Assets, Net increased by $132 million, or 9 percent.
See detailed information on Capital Assets in this MD&A for
additional information on this change.

Deferred Outflows of Resources increased by $23 million,
or 13 percent.

« Deferred outflows related to the net pension liability
increased by $24 million.

o Deferred outflows related to the OPEB asset and liabilities
decreased by $1 million.

« Deferred outflows related to the asset retirement
obligation were relatively unchanged.

« See Note 6 Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
for additional information.

Comparison of fiscal year 2021 to fiscal year 2020

Current Assets decreased by $6 million, or 1 percent, pri-
marily due to:

« Current cash and cash equivalents increased by $6 million
primarily due to a decrease in the amount of operating
cash transferred to investments as of year end.

« Accounts receivable decreased by $14 million. Decreases
in receivables related to capital construction grants,
student tuition and fees, auxiliaries and component units
were only slightly offset by increases in receivables for
federal grants and contracts, state grants and contracts,
and a decrease in allowance for doubtful accounts. See
Note 3 for additional information.

« Prepaid expenses increased by $4 million due primarily
to prepaid system development charges paid to the City
of Bend associated with future construction at Cascades
campus and increases in general operations prepaid
expenses.

 Current notes receivable was relatively unchanged. A
decrease in Perkins loans receivable was offset by an
increase in the installment receivable from Link Oregon.
See Note 4 for additional information.

« Current leases receivable increased by $2 million due to
the implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.

Noncurrent (Noncapital) Assets increased by $370 million,
or 165 percent.

» Noncurrent cash and cash equivalents decreased by
$10 million due primarily to an increase in cash used to
purchase investments as of year-end, offset by an increase
in cash held for capital construction over the previous
year.

+ Investments increased by $309 million due primarily to
the investment of revenue bond proceeds.

« Noncurrent notes receivable increased by $1 million
primarily due to an increase in the installment receivable
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from Link Oregon somewhat offset by a decrease in
Perkins Receivable. See Note 4 for additional information.

« Noncurrent leases receivable increased by $74 million due
to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.

+ The net OPEB asset decreased by $3 million. See Note 17
for additional information.

Capital Assets, Net increased by $97 million, or 7 percent.
See detailed information on Capital Assets in this MD&A for
additional information on this change.

Deferred Outflows of Resources increased by $49 million,
or 38 percent.

 Deferred outflows related to the net pension liability
increased by $47 million.

o Deferred outflows related to the OPEB asset and liabilities
increased by $2 million.

o Deferred outflows related to the asset retirement
obligation increased by less than $1 million.

« See Note 6 for additional information

Capital Assets and Related Financing
Activities

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2022, OSU had $2.6 billion in capital assets,

less accumulated depreciation of $1.0 billion, for net capital
assets of $1.6 billion. At June 30, 2021, OSU had $2.4 billion
in capital assets, less accumulated depreciation of $984
million, for net capital assets of $1.4 billion. OSU is commit-
ted to a comprehensive program of capital investment and
facility maintenance that includes addressing current main-
tenance needs and minimizing OSU’s deferred maintenance
backlog. State, federal, private, debt, and internal funding
were all used to accomplish OSU’s capital objectives.

2022 Capital Assets, Net $1,580 Million

. Library
Equipment and Materials
Other <0.5%
Constructionin 5% ./—ROU essets
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Changes to Capital Assets

(in millions)

As of June 30, 2022 2021 2020
Capital Assets, Beginning of Year $2,432 $2276 $2126
Add: Purchases/Construction 207 167 165
Less: Retirements/Adjustments (10) (11) (15)
Total Capital Assets, End of Year 2,629 2,432 2,276
Accum. Depreciation, Beginning of Year (984) (925) (871)
Add: Depreciation Expense (73) (70) (62)
Less: Retirements/Adjustments 8 11 8
Total Accum. Depreciation, End of Year (1,049) (984) (925)
Total Capital Assets, Net, End of Year ~ $1,580 $ 1,448 § 1,351

Capital additions totaled $207 million for 2022, $167 mil-
lion for 2021, and $165 million for 2020.

During 2022, capital asset additions included $142 million
for construction in progress (CIP); $15 million for equip-
ment; and $48 million for buildings. During 2021, capital
asset additions included $133 million for construction in
progress (CIP); $14 million for equipment; $15 million for
right-of-use leased buildings; $3 million for buildings; $1 mil-
lion for land improvements; and $1 million for infrastructure.
During 2020, capital asset additions included $134 million
for construction in progress (CIP) ; $9 million for equipment;
$14 million for buildings; $4 million for infrastructure; $2
million for land; and $1 million or land improvements.

Key projects still in progress at the end of 2022 included
Cordley Hall, Reser Stadium West Grandstands, Arts and
Education Complex, Withycombe Hall, PacWave Energy Test
Facility and Subsea Cables, Upper Division and Grad Student
Housing, OSU Cascades Innovation District Land Devel-
opment, Newport Student Housing, Campus Operations
Center, Washington Way Improvement, Fairbanks Hall, Graf
Hall, Gilkey Hall, and HMSC Seawater System.

During 2022, $135 million in capital projects were complet-
ed and placed into service, including the Cascades Campus
Academic Building Il, Fiberoptic Cable Infrastructure and
Owen Hall.

See Note 5 Capital Assets for additional information.

Debt Administration
During 2022, long-term debt held by OSU decreased by $13
million, or 1 percent, from $964 million to $951 million.

« OSU made debt service principal payments totalling $10
million on outstanding long-term debt.

« OSU’s remaining obligation for accreted interest and
premiums on outstanding debt decreased by $1 million.

o OSU added new debt of $2 million for new leases and
made principal payments of $4 million for a net decrease
of $2 million in lease liabilities.

During 2021, long-term debt held by OSU increased by $321
million, or 50 percent, from $643 million to $964 million.

« OSU issued $303 million (par value) of new Revenue
Bonds. The new bonds were sold at par.

+ OSU made debt service principal payments totalling $12
million on outstanding long-term debt.

 The state issued XI-F debt to refund previously held debt
resulting in a net increase of $18 million in state contracts
payable.

« OSU’s remaining obligation for accreted interest and
premiums on outstanding debt decreased by a net of less
than $1 million.

« The implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases,
added net $13 million is leases payable.

See Note 9 Long-Term Liabilities for additional information.

Long-term Debt

(in millions)
$1,000
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$800 M Leases
$700 # Oregon Department of
4600 Energy Loans
ul General Revenue Note
$500
$400 u General Revenue
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$300 i State of Oregon
$200 Contracts Payable
$100
$.
2022 2021 2020

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of
Resources

Total liabilities decreased by $184 million, or 11 percent,
during 2022 primarily due to decreases in the net pension
liability and long-term liabilities offset by increases in ac-
counts payable and accrued liabilities. During 2021, total
liabilities increased by $436 million, or 34 percent, primarily
due to increases in the net pension liability and long-term
liabilities.

Comparison of fiscal year 2022 to fiscal year 2021

Current Liabilities increased by $35 million, or 16 percent.
Key changes in current liabilities included:

« Accounts payable and accrued liabilities increased by $26
million due primarily to increases in services and supplies
payable associated with general operations, auxiliaries,
restricted grants and contracts, and capital construction
projects. See Note 7 Accounts Payable and Accrued
Liabilities for additional information.
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« The current portion of long-term liabilities increased by
$11 million due mainly to an increase of $7 million in
current compensated absences liability and a $4 million
increase in state contracts payable. See discussion of
Debt Administration earlier in this MD&A and Note 9 for
additional information.

Noncurrent Liabilities decreased by $219 million, or 15
percent.

« The noncurrent portion of long-term liabilities decreased
by $40 million due to decreases in compensated absences
liability, deferred payroll taxes payable, leases payable,
Perkins loan liability, state and local government rate pool
liability and state contracts payable. See discussion of
Debt Administration earlier in this MD&A and Note 9 for
additional information.

+ Net pension liability decreased by $176 million. See Note
16 Employee Retirement Plans for additional information.

« The net OPEB Liability decreased by $3 million. See Note
17 Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) for additional
information.

» The asset retirement obligation liability associated with
the teaching, research, isotopes, and general atomics
reactor increased by $1 million as the result of a new
estimate on the cost of decommissioning the asset. See
Note 10 Asset Retirement Obligations for additional
information.

Deferred Inflows of Resources increased by $209 million or
218 percent.

Deferred inflows related to the net pension liability
increased by $205 million.

Deferred inflows related to the OPEB asset and liabilities
increased by $8 million.

Deferred inflows related to leases decreased by $4 million.

« See Note 6 Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
for detailed information on this change.

Comparison of fiscal year 2021 to fiscal year 2020

Current Liabilities were relatively unchanged in total. Key
changes in current liabilities included:

» Accounts payable and accrued liabilities decreased by
$1 million. Decreases in capital construction retainage
payable and salaries and wages payable were mostly offset
by increases in services and supplies payable associated
with auxiliaries and capital construction projects and
accrued interest payable. See Note 7 for additional
information.

 The current portion of long-term liabilities increased by
$5 million due mainly to the addition of $10 million in
deferred payroll taxes payable and the addition of $2
million in leases payable with the implementation of GASB
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Statement No. 87, Leases. These increases were somewhat
offset by decreases in compensated absences, contracts
payable and the Perkins loan program liability. See Note 9
for additional information.

Noncurrent Liabilities increased by $436 million, or 41
percent.

e The noncurrent portion of long-term liabilities increased
by $330 million due primarily to the addition of $303
million in revenue bonds, the addition of $11 million
related to the implementation of GASB Statement No.
87, Leases, as well as increases in the compensated
absences liability, deferred payroll taxes payable and state
contracts payable. These increases were slightly offset
by decreases in the Perkins loan liability and the state
and local government rate pool liability. See discussion of
Debt Administration earlier in this MD&A and Note 9 for
additional information.

+ Net pension liability increased by $107 million. See Note
16 for additional information.

+ The net OPEB Liability decreased by $1 million. See Note
17 for additional information.

« The asset retirement obligation liability associated with
the teaching, research, isotopes, and general atomics
reactor increased by less than $1 million as the result of a
new estimate on the cost of decommissioning the asset.
See Note 10 for additional information.

Deferred Inflows of Resources increased by $63 million or
191 percent.

« Deferred inflows related to the net pension liability
decreased by $10 million.

» Deferred inflows related to the OPEB asset and liabilities
were relatively unchanged.

« Deferred inflows related to leases increased by $73 million
due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 87,
Leases.

« See Note 6 for additional information.

Total Net Position

Total net position (TNP) increased by $91 million, or 11
percent, during 2022. TNP benefited from a $14 million in-
crease in net investment in capital assets and an increase of
$80 million in unrestricted net position but was negatively
impacted by a reduction in restricted expendable net posi-
tion of $4 million.

TNP increased by $11 million, or 1 percent, during 2021.
TNP benefited from a $46 million increase in net investment
in capital assets, and an increase in restricted expendable
net position of $17 million but was negatively impacted by a
reduction in unrestricted net position of $52 million.
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The graph below illustrates how the composition of net
position has changed since 2020. (in millions)
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Comparison of fiscal year 2022 to fiscal year 2021

Net Investment in Capital Assets increased by $14 million,
or 1 percent. Net capital assets increased by $132 million,
which was partially driven by a spend down of unspent bond
proceeds related to capital assets of $118 million. See Note
5 Capital Assets and Note 9 Long-Term Liabilities for ad-
ditional information.

Restricted Expendable Net Position decreased by $4 mil-
lion, or 5 percent.

« Net position restricted for gifts, grants and contracts
decreased by $13 million due primarily to a decrease in
the market value of endowment funds.

« Net position restricted for student loans was relatively
unchanged. Decreases in student loan receivables were
offset by decreases in the Perkins loan program liability.

» Net position restricted for capital projects and debt
service were relatively unchanged.

« Net Position restricted for OPEB asset increased by $8
million and is equal to the Net OPEB Asset reported in
noncurrent assets.

Unrestricted Net Position increased by $80 million, or 35
percent.

« Anincrease in unrestricted operating performance, which
includes education, auxiliary and general business type
activities, resulted in an increase to unrestricted net
position of $77 million.

» Changes associated with the PERS net pension liability,
net of deferrals, decreased unrestricted net position by $5
million. See Note 16 for additional information.

o The OPEB liabilities and associated deferred outflows and
inflows of resources increased unrestricted net position by
$4 million. See Note 17 for additional information.

 The year-end liability accrual for the PERS state and local
government rate pool (SLGRP) increased by $2 million
and the accrual for compensated absences increased $2
million.

« See Note 11 Unrestricted Net Position for additional
information.

Comparison of fiscal year 2021 to fiscal year 2020

Net Investment in Capital Assets increased by $46 million,
or 5 percent. Capitalized acquisitions net of disposals added
$157 million, which was offset by a $59 million increase to
accumulated depreciation. Additionally, there was a de-
crease of $52 million in long-term debt outstanding attribut-
able to the capital assets, net of unspent bond proceeds held
as cash or investments. See Note 5 and Note 9 for additional
information.

Restricted Expendable Net Position increased by $17 mil-
lion, or 25 percent.

« Net position restricted for gifts, grants and contracts
increased by $20 million. An increase in the market value
of endowment funds was slightly offset by decreases in
the aggregate net position of restricted grant funds.

» Net position restricted for student loans was relatively
unchanged. Decreases in student loan receivables were
offset by decreases in the Perkins loan program liability.

 Net position restricted for capital projects was relatively
unchanged. Increases in cash and accounts payable were
offset by decreases in invoices receivable at year end.

 Net position restricted for debt service was relatively
unchanged.

+ Net Position restricted for OPEB asset decreased by $3
million and is equal to the Net OPEB Asset reported in
noncurrent assets.

Unrestricted Net Position decreased by $52 million, or 30
percent.

« Adecrease in unrestricted operating performance,
which includes education, auxiliary and general business
type activities, resulted in a decrease to unrestricted
net position of $3 million. Unrestricted operations of
the university were heavily impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic. University operations were largely curtailed
from March 2020 through June 2021.

 Changes associated with the PERS net pension liability,
net of deferrals, decreased unrestricted net position
by $50 million, due primarily to a significant increase
in the net pension liability. See Note 16 for additional
information.

« The OPEB liabilities and associated deferred outflows and
inflows of resources increased unrestricted net position by
$4 million.
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 Adecrease of $3 million associated with the year-end
liability accrual for the PERS state and local government
rate pool (SLGRP) was offset by a $5 million increase in the
compensated absences liability and a $1 million increase in
the asset retirement obligation resulting in a net decrease
of $3 million to unrestricted net position.

o See Note 11 for additional information.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses

and Changes in Net Position

Due to the classification of certain key revenues as
nonoperating revenue, OSU normally shows a loss from
operations. State general fund appropriations, nonexchange
grants and noncapital gifts, although considered
nonoperating revenue under GASB Statement No. 35, Basic
Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis—for Public Colleges and Universities—an amendment
of GASB Statement No. 34, and reflected accordingly in the
nonoperating section of the SRE, are used solely to support
the operations of the university.

The following summarizes the revenues and expenses of
OSU (in millions):

Condensed Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 2021 2020
Operating Revenues $ 82 §813 §845
Operating Expenses 1,299 1,258 1,265

Operating Loss (407) (445) (420)
Nonoperating Revenues,

Net of Expenses 397 377 367
Other Revenues, Net of Expenses 101 79 88

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 91 11 35
Net Position, Beginning of Year 807 796 761
Net Position, End of Year $ 898 $ 807 $ 796

Revenues

As seen in the Total Operating, Non-Operating and Other
Revenues table at the top right, total revenues increased
by $108 million, or 8 percent, in 2022 over 2021. Increases
were seen in all categories of operating and nonoperating
revenues except operating grants and contracts and invest-
ment activity.
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Total Operating, Nonoperating and Other
Revenues

(in millions)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 2021 2020
Student Tuition and Fees $ 355 $ 349 $ 353
Grants and Contracts 280 286 270
Auxiliary Enterprises 186 107 155
Educational and Other 71 71 67

Total Operating Revenues 892 813 845
Government Appropriations 288 275 264
Financial Aid Grants 72 54 51
Gifts 56 49 54
Investment Activity (6) 28 19
Capital Grants and Gifts 929 77 87
COVID-19 Institutional Funding 22 19 8
Changes to Permanent Endowments 1 1 -

Total Nonoperating and

Other Revenues 532 503 483
Total Revenues $ 1,424 $ 1,316 $ 1,328

Total Operating, Nonoperating, Other
Revenues and Special Items
(in millions)

Other
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Educational and Other
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Operating Revenues

Operating revenues increased by $79 million in 2022, or 10
percent, over 2021, to $892 million. Increases in 2022 were
due to increases in student tuition and fees and auxiliary
enterprises, which were offset by decreases in grants and
contracts. Operating revenues decreased by $32 million in
2021, or 4 percent, over 2020, to $813 million. Decreases
in 2021 were due to decreases in student tuition and fees
and auxiliary enterprises, which were offset by increases in
grants and contracts and education and other revenues.
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Comparison of fiscal year 2022 to fiscal year 2021

Net Student Tuition and Fees increased by $6 million, or 2
percent.

« Increased student enrollment accounted for $6 million of
increased revenue

+ Higher tuition and fee rates accounted for $22 million of
increased revenue.

» Fee remissions, scholarship allowances and bad debt
allowances reduced tuition and fees by $22 million more
than in the prior year.

Federal, State and Nongovernmental Grants and Con-
tracts decreased by $6 million, or 2 percent.

» Federal grant and contract revenues decreased by $12
million primarily due to a decrease in National Science
Foundation cooperative agreements.

« State and local grant and contract revenues increased
by $2 million. Increases in grants and contracts from the
Department of Education and other state agencies were
somewhat offset by decreases in grants and contracts
from the Department of Agriculture, the Department of
Fish and Wildlife, the Department of Transportation, the
Department of Forestry, and the Economic Development
Division.

« Nongovernmental grant and contract revenues increased
by $4 million due mainly to increases in grants and
contracts from the Agricultural Research Foundation
and commercial businesses, which were slightly offset
by decreases in grants and contracts from non-affiliated
foundations and societies.

Auxiliary Enterprise revenues increased by $79 million, or
74 percent.

« Housing and dining revenues increased by $40 million due
to increased room and board fee and meal plan revenues
resulting from increased occupancy of university owned
dorms and housing.

« Athletics revenues increased by $33 million due primarily
to increased ticket sales, bowl income, conference TV
shares, and sponsorship income.

« Health services revenues increased by $1 million due
mainly to increased income from non-employee insurance
premiums, and medical lab fees.

« Student centers revenues increased by $1 million primarily
as a result of increased membership income.

« Parking services revenues increased by $2 million due to
increased revenues from parking permits and fines.

« Other auxiliary revenues increased by $2 million due
mainly to increased student incidental fees revenue.

Educational and Other revenues was relatively unchanged.

» Educational department sales and services revenues were
relatively unchanged. Decreases in general sales and

services income, and testing fees were offset by increases
in noncredit workshop income, room and board fees and
lease revenue.

 Other operating revenues increased by just over $1 million
due primarily to recording funds received for employer
incentive matching funds for the university’s payment
into a PERS side account to offset future rate increases.
See Note 16 Employee Retirement Plans for additional
information.

Comparison of fiscal year 2021 to fiscal year 2020

Net Student Tuition and Fees decreased by $4 million, or 1
percent.

+ Higher tuition and fee rates accounted for $7 million of
increased revenue.

 Fee remissions, scholarship allowances and bad debt
allowances reduced tuition and fees by $11 million more
than in the prior year.

Federal, State and Nongovernmental Grants and Con-
tracts increased by $16 million, or 6 percent.

+ Federal grant and contract revenues increased by $18
million primarily due to increases in National Science
Foundation grants and Department of Agriculture and
Department of Energy cooperative agreements.

- State and local grant and contract revenues increased
by $1 million. Increases in grants from the Department
of Education and cooperative agreements with the
Department of Fish and Wildlife were offset by decreases
in grants from the Economic Development Division.

« Nongovernmental grant and contract revenues decreased
by $3 million due mainly to decreases in grants and
contracts from the Agricultural Research Foundation and
commercial businesses.

Auxiliary Enterprise revenues decreased by $48 million, or
31 percent.

+ Housing and dining revenues decreased by $15 million
due to decreased room and board fee and meal plan
revenues. As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, dorms
and dining halls had limited capacity and curtailed
operations during the 2020-2021 academic year, resulting
in large revenue losses.

« Athletics revenues decreased by $25 million. Athletics
revenues were deeply impacted by the pandemic with
lost ticket sales, concessions revenue, bowl income,
conference TV shares, sponsorship income and
guarantees.

» Health services revenues decreased by $4 million primarily
due to decreased income from non-employee insurance
premiums, pharmacy sales, medical lab fees, medical
supply sales and medical services sales.
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« Student centers revenues decreased by $3 million mainly
as a result of decreased sales and membership fees.

« Parking services revenues decreased by $2 million due to
decreased revenues from parking permits and fines.

« Other auxiliary revenues increased by $1 million due
mainly to increased student incidental fee revenues and
student health fee revenues.

Educational and Other revenues increased by $4 million,
or 6 percent.

» Educational department sales and services revenues were
relatively unchanged. Decreases in industry services
income, conference income, room and board fees, and
sponsorship income were offset by increases in general
sales and services income, testing fees, miscellaneous fees,
and noncredit workshop revenues.

« Other operating revenues increased by $3 million due
primarily to increased insurance recoveries over the prior
year resulting from a fire in Burt Hall on November 30,
2018 as well as lease interest income resulting from the
implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.

Nonoperating and Other Revenues

Total nonoperating and other revenues increased by $29 mil-

lion during 2022. Increases in government appropriations,
financial aid grants, gifts, capital grants and gifts, and CO-
VID-19 institutional funding were somewhat offset by a de-
crease in investment activity. Total nonoperating and other
revenues increased by $20 million during 2021. Increases in
government appropriations, financial aid grants, investment
activity and COVID-19 institutional funding were somewhat
offset by decreases in gifts and capital grants and gifts.

Comparison of fiscal year 2022 to fiscal year 2021

Government Appropriations increased by $13 million, or 5
percent.

« State appropriations increased by $12 million due to
increased funding received in support of the operations of
the university and statewide public services.

« State lottery appropriations in support of outdoor school
increased by $1 million. Outdoor school for middle school
students is administered by the cooperative extension
services on behalf of the state.

» Federal and county appropriations in support of the
statewide public services were relatively unchanged.

» Debt service appropriations from the state were
unchanged.

» See Note 15 Government Appropriations for additional
information.

Financial Aid Grants increased by $18 million, or 35
percent, primarily due to increases in Oregon opportunity
grants, federal Pell grants, and federal HEERF Act aid,
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slightly offset by decreases in Ford Family Foundation
scholarships and federal SEOG aid.

Gifts increased by $7 million, or 14 percent, due primarily to
increased gifts from the OSU Foundation.

Investment Activity revenues decreased by $34 million, or
121 percent, due primarily to a significant net market value
decline of investments. OSU’s operating and endowment
assets recorded declines for the year due to volatility in the
equity and fixed income markets. The market volatility was
driven primarily by investor concerns over 40-year high infla-
tion readings near 9% and economic deceleration, resulting
in rising interest rates and declining stock and bond prices.
See Note 13 Investment Activity for additional information
relating to these changes.

Capital Grants and Gifts increased by $22 million, or 29
percent due primarily to increased gifts and contracts from
the OSU Foundation and federal capital contracts, and were
only slightly offset by decreased state capital grants.

COVID-19 Institutional Funding increased by $3 million,
due to final amounts received on prior year awards for
federal COVID-19 relief funding for institutional support.
See Note 1 Organization and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies, Section AA COVID-19 Relief Funding
for additional information.

Comparison of fiscal year 2021 to fiscal year 2020

Government Appropriations increased by $11 million, or 4
percent.

« State appropriations increased by $6 million due to
increased funding received in support of the operations of
the university.

« State lottery appropriations in support of outdoor school
increased by $5 million. Outdoor school for middle school
students is administered by the cooperative extension
services on behalf of the state.

 Federal and county appropriations in support of the
statewide public services increased by less than $1 million.

« Debt service appropriations from the state were
unchanged.

» See Note 15 for additional information.

Financial Aid Grants increased by $3 million, or 6 percent,
primarily due to increases in Oregon opportunity grants,
federal Pell grants, federal SEOG aid and Ford Family
Foundation scholarships.

Gifts decreased by $5 million, or 9 percent. Decreased gifts
from the OSU Foundation were somewhat offset by an
increase in gifts-in-kind from various sources.

Investment Activity revenues increased by $9 million, or 47
percent. See Note 13 for additional information relating to
these changes.
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Capital Grants and Gifts decreased by $10 million, or 11
percent due primarily to decreased gifts and contracts from
the OSU Foundation which were only slightly offset by in-
creased federal capital contract funding.

COVID-19 Institutional Funding increased by $11 mil-
lion, due to increased federal COVID-19 relief funding for
institutional support. See Note 1, Section AA for additional
information.

Expenses

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased by $41 million in 2022, or 3
percent, over 2021, to $1,299 million. Increases in instruc-
tion, auxiliary programs, institutional support, student aid
and other operating expenses were offset by decreases in
research, public service, and academic support.

Operating expenses decreased by $7 million in 2021, or less
than 1 percent, over 2020, to $1,258 million. Decreases in
instruction, auxiliary programs, academic support, student
aid and other operating expenses were offset by increases

in research, public service, institutional support, student ser-
vices, and operation and maintenance of plant.

The following table and chart summarize operating expenses
by functional classification (in millions):

Operating Expenses by Function

For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 2021 2020
Instruction $ 322 $ 318 $ 335
Research 222 227 211
Public Service 165 179 167
Academic Support 88 92 93
Student Services 36 36 35
Auxiliary Programs 184 154 178
Institutional Support 124 115 105
Operations & Maintenance of Plant 41 41 39
Student Aid 50 36 39
Other Operating Expenses 67 60 63
Total Operating Expenses $ 1,299 $ 1,258 $ 1,265

2022 Operating Expenses by Function
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The implementation of GASB Statement Nos. 68 and 71

in 2015 and GASB Statement No. 75 in 2018 has had a
significant impact on the operating expenses reported by
OSU. The following tables show the effect of GASB State-
ment Nos. 68, 71, and 75 on operating expenses across the
functional classifications (in millions):

Effect of GASB Statement Nos. 68, 71 and
75 on Expenses by Function

Without
As GASB 68/71
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022  Reported & 75 Difference
Instruction $ 322 $ 324 § 2)
Research 222 223 1)
Public Service 165 166 1)
Academic Support 88 89 (1)
Student Services 36 37 (1)
Auxiliary Programs 184 185 1)
Institutional Support 124 124 -
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 41 42 (@)}
Student Aid 50 50 -
Other Operating Expenses 67 67 -
Total Operating Expenses $ 1,299 $ 1,307 $ (8)
Without
As GASB 68/71
For the Year Ended June 30,2021  Reported & 75 Difference
Instruction $ 318 $ 300 § 18
Research 227 218 9
Public Service 179 171 8
Academic Support 92 86 6
Student Services 36 34 2
Auxiliary Programs 154 147 7
Institutional Support 115 113 2
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 41 34 7
Student Aid 36 36 -
Other Operating Expenses 60 59 1
Total Operating Expenses $ 1,258 $ 1,198 $ 60
Without
As GASB 68/71
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020  Reported & 75 Difference
Instruction $ 335 $ 322§ 13
Research 211 205 6
Public Service 167 161 6
Academic Support 93 89 4
Student Services 35 33 2
Auxiliary Programs 178 173 5
Institutional Support 105 104 1
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 39 34 5
Student Aid 39 39 -
Other Operating Expenses 63 62 1
Total Operating Expenses $ 1,265 $ 1,222 $ 43

GASB Statement Nos. 68, 71, and 75 have resulted in a
decrease to total operating expenses of $8 million in 2022
and increases to total operating expenses of $60, and $43
million in 2021, and 2020, respectively. The $95 million ag-
gregate total for the three year period has had a significant
impact on the university’s reported operating performance
and net position; however, for 2022 the impact was signifi-
cantly less due mostly to the reduction of the net pension
liability.
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Operating Expenses by Natural
Classification

OSU expenses are normally incurred via natural
classifications, but are reported by functional classification
in the financial statements. Variances are presented and
explained by analyzing changes in the natural classification
of expenses. Each natural classification analysis can be
applied to multiple functional expense caption items. See
Note 14 Operating Expenses by Natural Classification for
additional information.

The following summarizes operating expenses by natural
classification (in millions):

For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 2021 2020
Compensation and Benefits $ 84 § 841 $ 833
Services and Supplies 340 301 320
Scholarships and Fellowships 60 45 47
Depreciation and Amortization 73 70 62
Other 2 1 3
Total Operating Expenses $ 1,299 § 1,258 § 1,265

2022 Operating Expenses by Natural
Classification

Depreciation and

Scholarships and Amortization

Fellowships 6% O(;E/er
(]
Services and 5% \ | _—
Supplies
26% '\

Compensation and
Benefits
63%

Comparison of fiscal year 2022 to fiscal year 2021

Compensation and Benefit costs decreased by $17 million,
or 2 percent.

« Salary and wage costs increased by $35 million due
primarily to increased staffing and pay increases.

« Other payroll expenses decreased by a net $2 million.

« Total pension expense decreased by $47 million due to
a decrease in the net pension liability and adjustments
to associated deferred inflows and outflows reported as
required by GASB Statement Nos. 68 and 71. See Note 16
Employee Retirement Plans for additional information on
this variance.

« Adjustments and accruals to compensation and benefits
associated with the OPEB asset and liability reporting
requirement of GASB Statement No. 75 decreased by $3
million. See Note 17 Other Post-employment Benefits
(OPEB) for additional information.
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Services and Supplies expenses increased by $39 million, or
13 percent as a result of increases in most categories of ser-
vice and supplies expenses including travel, food purchased
for resale, maintenance and repairs, fees and services, rent-
als and leases, and assessments.

Scholarships and Fellowships costs increased by $15
million, or 33 percent due to increases in federal aid, state
aid, OSU Foundation aid, and institutional aid.

Depreciation and Amortization expense increased by $3
million, or 4 percent. During 2022, $135 million in capital
projects were completed and placed into service, including
the Cascades Campus Academic Building Il, Fiberoptic Cable
Infrastructure and Owen Hall.

Comparison of fiscal year 2021 to fiscal year 2020

Compensation and Benefit costs increased by $8 million, or
1 percent.

« In general, the increase in compensation and benefits
was moderated by cost-cutting measures taken due to
COVID-19.

Salary and wage costs decreased by $13 million due
primarily to decreased staffing and were only slightly
offset by pay increases.

 Retirement and health insurance costs were relatively
unchanged. Decreased retirement contributions were
offset by increased insurance contributions.

+ Other payroll expenses increased by $3 million.

+ Pension expense increased by $17 million due to an
increase in the net pension liability and adjustments to
associated deferred inflows and outflows reported as
required by GASB Statement Nos. 68 and 71. See Note 16
for additional information on this variance.

Adjustments and accruals to compensation and benefits
associated with the OPEB asset and liability reporting
requirement of GASB Statement No. 75 increased by $1
million. See Note 17 for additional information.

Services and Supplies expenses decreased by $19 million,
or 6 percent. Decreases in travel, food purchased for

resale, maintenance and repairs, and other services and
supplies were slightly offset by increases in general supplies,
agricultural related supplies and subcontract expenses. The
decrease in expenses was due in part to COVID-19.

Scholarships and Fellowships costs decreased by $2 mil-
lion, or 4 percent. Decreases in institutional aid and OSU
Foundation aid were offset by increases in state and federal
aid.

Depreciation and Amortization expense increased by $8

million, or 13 percent. During 2021, $119 million in capital
projects were completed and placed into service, including
the Forestry Science Complex, the Gladys Valley Marine
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Study Building, Research Way Improvements, Burt Hall,
Gymnastics Practice Facility, and Cascade Hall.

Nonoperating Expenses

For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 2021 2020
Interest Expense (34) (29) (27)
Other Nonoperating Items (1) (18) -

Total Nonoperating Expenses ~ $  (34) § (47) $  (28)

Comparison of fiscal year 2022 to fiscal year 2021

Interest Expense increased by $5 million, or 17 percent,
due primarily to increased revenue bond interest due to the
issuance of $303 million in revenue bonds during fiscal year
2021.

Other Nonoperating Items decreased by $17 million,

due primarily to a prior year net loss on refunding of previ-
ously held debt in the form of contracts due to the State of
Oregon.

Comparison of fiscal year 2021 to fiscal year 2020

Interest Expense increased by $2 million, or 7 percent, due
primarily to increased revenue bond interest.

Other Nonoperating Items increased by $18 million, due
primarily to a net loss on refunding of previously held debt
in the form of contracts due to the State of Oregon.

Economic Outlook

Funding for OSU’s major activities comes from a variety

of sources: tuition and fees; financial aid programs; state,
federal and county appropriations; federal, foundation and
other grants; private and government contracts; royalties;
and donor gifts and investment earnings. Revenues are also
generated through recovery of costs associated with federal
grant and contract activities, which serve to offset related
administrative and facilities costs.

As pandemic conditions evolved, the university transitioned
from a primarily remote instruction delivery to full capac-
ity in-person operations while continuing to be informed

by guidance from the American College Health Association
(as well as the Oregon Health Authority and the Centers
for Disease Control when specific to higher education).
Where feasible, staffing followed a hybrid approach. Many
meetings continued to be held virtually, often resulting in
efficiencies and better attendance. The financial impact of
the pandemic significantly slowed as revenues returned to
more typical trajectories, investments in remote technology
were already incurred, ongoing direct costs were no longer
needed at the same levels, and federal relief funding was
utilized. The ability to respond to pandemic shifts is now
embedded in standard operations.

Enrollments going forward continue to improve. While
some subsets of student populations, such as international
students, continue at lower levels, overall enrollment

is projected to increase in 2022-23. Student and family
decision-making behaviors have changed over the pandemic,
so it may take several additional cycles for new enrollment
patterns to settle.

State appropriations for public universities have been grow-
ing over recent biennia. Given current concerns about a
possible recession, inflationary pressures, and slowing in
growth of state general fund revenue, the same trend of
increased state support is not a certainty for the 2023-25
biennium. While recessions often triggered increased college
enrollments in the past, pandemic behavioral changes and
continued high employment levels may alter that traditional
response.

The ability of university leadership to successfully navigate
the multiple challenges presented by the pandemic supports
an outlook of continued focus on providing quality instruc-
tion, research and public service to its students and people
throughout Oregon, the nation and the world.

For detailed information on the state’s economic outlook,
Oregon’s Office of Economic Analysis provides quarterly
forecasts at its website: https://www.oregon.gov/das/
OEA/Pages/forecastecorev.aspx
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University
As of June 30, 2022 2021
(Restated)
ASSETS (In thousands)
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2)
Collateral from Securities Lending (Note 2)
Accounts Receivable, Net (Note 3)
Notes Receivable, Net (Note 4)
Leases Receivable
Inventories
Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2)
Investments (Note 2)
Notes Receivable, Net (Note 4)
Leases Receivable
Net OPEB Asset (Note 17)
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation (Note 5)
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES (Note 6)

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (Note 7)
Deposits
Obligations Under Securities Lending (Note 2)
Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities (Note 9)
Current Portion of Asset Retirement Obligation (Note 10)
Unearned Revenues
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities (Note 9)
Net Pension Liability (Note 16)
OPEB Liability (Note 17)
Asset Retirement Obligation (Note 10)
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES (Note 6)

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted For:
Nonexpendable Endowments
Expendable:
Gifts, Grants and Contracts
Student Loans
Capital Projects
Debt Service
OPEB Asset
Unrestricted (Note 11)
Total Net Position

$ 161,653 $ 247,760
2,101 2,151

148,841 132,997

2,544 2,843

1,603 1,726

1,835 1,652

18,349 14,065

336,926 403,194

48,327 51,217

473,236 448,268

17,927 19,845

71,954 73,546

9,594 1,369

1,580,129 1,448,227
2,201,167 2,042,472

$ 2,538,093 $ 2,445,666
$ 199,919 § 177,757
$ 127,705 $ 101,733
729 720

2,101 2,151

61,490 50,678

- 565

64,601 65,366

256,626 221,213
970,680 1,011,135
275,332 451,900

11,717 15,215

21,040 20,120
1,278,769 1,498,370

$ 1,535395 $ 1,719,583
$ 304,985 $ 96,439
$ 957,113 % 942,929
7,397 6,453

55,340 68,581

10,131 9,816

2,283 2,059

2,262 2,668

9,594 1,369
(146,488) (226,474)

$ 897,632 § 807,401

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Financial Position

Component Units

As of June 30, 2022 2021
(Restated)
(In thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 9,720 § 4,051
Investments 916,431 983,975
Contributions, Pledges and Grants Receivable, Net 107,687 42,107
Assets Held-For-Sale 6,426 7,294
Assets Held Under Split-Interest Agreements 53,447 62,206
Charitable Trusts Held Outside the Foundation 11,452 13,841
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 6,024 3,922
Property and Equipment, Net 25,180 26,251
Total Assets $ 1,136,367 $ 1,143,647

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $ 12,973 $ 6,394
Endowment Assets Held for OSU 54,208 61,114
Accounts Payable to the University 6,442 4,060
Obligations to Beneficiaries of Split-Interest Agreements 24,201 28,108
Deposits and Unearned Revenue 76 58
Long-Term Liabilities 20 14
Total Liabilities 97,920 99,748

NET ASSETS
Without Donor Restrictions 47,698 66,573
With Donor Restrictions 990,749 977,326
Total Net Assets 1,038,447 1,043,899

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 1,136,367 § 1,143,647

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

University
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 2021
(Restated)
OPERATING REVENUES (In thousands)
Student Tuition and Fees (Net of Allowances of $124,060
and $101,795, respectively) $ 354,633 $ 349,347
Federal Grants and Contracts 239,794 252,356
State and Local Grants and Contracts 12,640 10,831
Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts 27,258 23,143
Educational Department Sales and Services 52,215 52,611
Auxiliary Enterprises (Net of Allowances of $2,995
and $1,842, respectively) 186,333 107,120
Other Operating Revenues 18,935 17,297
Total Operating Revenues 891,808 812,705
OPERATING EXPENSES
Instruction 322,425 317,673
Research 222,278 227,159
Public Service 164,916 178,600
Academic Support 87,600 91,789
Student Services 36,388 36,281
Auxiliary Programs 183,528 153,740
Institutional Support 124,515 115,514
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 40,831 40,915
Student Aid 50,319 36,406
Other Operating Expenses 66,627 59,770
Total Operating Expenses (Note 14) 1,299,427 1,257,847
Operating Loss (407,619) (445,142)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Government Appropriations (Note 15) 286,643 273,598
Financial Aid Grants 72,555 54,105
Gifts 55,773 49,670
Investment Activity (Note 13) (6,182) 27,682
COVID-19 Institutional Funding (Note 1, Section AA) 22,419 18,923
Loss on Sale of Assets, Net 550 @7
Interest Expense (33,988) (29,477)
Other Nonoperating Items (921) (17,521)
Total Net Nonoperating Revenues 396,849 376,963
Loss Before Other Revenues (10,770) (68,179)
OTHER REVENUES
Debt Service Appropriations (Note 15) 1,054 1,072
Capital Grants and Gifts 99,003 77,514
Changes to Permanent Endowments 944 758
Total Net Other Revenues 101,001 79,344
Increase In Net Position 90,231 11,165
NET POSITION
Beginning Balance, Restated (Note 1, Section AC) 807,401 796,236
Ending Balance $ 897,632 $ 807,401

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Activities

Component Units
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 2021
(Restated)
(in thousands)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS HELD WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

REVENUES
Grants, Bequests and Gifts $ 7,336 $ 8,208
Investment Income, Net (16,554) 20,238
Net Assets Released From Restrictions and Other Transfers 113,703 73,068
Other Revenues 23,597 21,445
Total Revenues 128,082 122,959

EXPENSES
University Support 114,418 72,202
Management and General 14,036 12,846
Development 18,503 17,566
Total Expenses 146,957 102,614
Increase (Decrease) In Net Assets Held Without Donor Restrictions (18,875) 20,345
Beginning Balance, Net Assets Held Without Donor Restrictions, Restated 66,573 46,228
Ending Balance, Net Assets Held Without Donor Restrictions $ 47,698 $ 66,573

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS HELD WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

REVENUES
Grants, Bequests and Gifts $ 197,856 $ 94,233
Investment Income, Net (67,831) 187,450
Change in Value of Life Income Agreements (7,030) 8,284
Other Revenues 4,130 3,354
Net Assets Released From Restrictions and Other Transfers (113,702) (73,068)
Increase In Net Assets Held With Donor Restrictions 13,423 220,253
Beginning Balance, Net Assets Held With Donor Restrictions, Restated 977,326 757,073
Ending Balance, Net Assets Held With Donor Restrictions $ 990,749 § 977,326
Beginning Balance, Restated $ 1,043,899 $ 803,301
Increase (Decrease) In Total Net Assets (5,452) 240,598
Ending Balance $ 1,038,447 $ 1,043,399

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows

University
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 2021
(Restated)
(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Tuition and Fees $ 353,195 $ 349,652
Grants and Contracts 265,879 283,551
Educational Department Sales and Services 53,050 50,341
Auxiliary Enterprise Operations 183,023 110,070
Payments to Employees for Compensation and Benefits (833,268) (777,783)
Payments to Suppliers (324,297) (304,032)
Student Financial Aid (60,181) (44,645)
Other Operating Receipts 18,109 13,304
Fiduciary Activities - Direct Student Loan Receipts 134,111 131,341
Fiduciary Activities - Direct Student Loan Disbursements (134,203) (131,248)
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (344,582) (319,449)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Government Appropriations 286,643 273,598
Financial Aid Grants 72,555 54,105
Other Gifts and Private Contracts 53,924 49,670
Interest Payments on Noncapital Debt (614) (520)
COVID-19 Institutional Funding 22,419 18,923
Net Agency Fund Receipts 9 123
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 434,936 395,899
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Debt Service Appropriations 1,054 1,072
Capital Grants and Gifts 98,846 87,561
Proceeds from Capital Debt - 302,945
Sales of Capital Assets 2,222 929
Purchases of Capital Assets (202,601) (148,946)
Interest Payments on Capital Debt (34,008) (27,761)
Principal Payments on Capital Debt (14,658) (16,407)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities (149,145) 199,393
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net Purchase of Investments (43,067) (291,487)
Interest Receipts on Investments and Cash Balances 12,861 11,164
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (30,206) (280,323)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (88,997) (4,480)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning Balance 298,977 303,457
Ending Balance $ 209,980 $ 298,977

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows - Continued

University
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 2021

(Restated)
(In thousands)
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Loss $ (407,619) $  (445,142)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash Used by
Operating Activities:

Depreciation Expense 72,865 69,658
Fiduciary Student Loans (92) 93
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable (14,795) 1,337
Notes Receivable (1,001) (4,800)
Leases (1,991) (2,105)
Inventories (183) 63
Prepaid Expenses (4,284) (4,010)
Net Pension Liability and Related Deferrals 5,063 50,475
OPEB Asset/Liability and Related Deferrals (2,883) (50)
Asset Retirement Obligation and Related Deferral (26) 510
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 25,052 (1,481)
Long-Term Liabilities (13,923) 16,222
Unearned Revenues (765) (219)
NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (344,582) $ (319,449)

NONCASH INVESTING, NONCAPITAL FINANCING, AND CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

Capital Assets Acquired by Gifts-in-Kind $ 1,049 $ 2,102
Capital Assets Acquired by Accounts Payable 5,807 4,619
Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments Recognized as a

Component of Investment Activity (17,580) 14,560
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Investments Recognized as a Component of

Investment Activity (1,463) 1,958

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

Oregon State University (OSU, university) is a comprehen-
sive public university governed by the Oregon State Univer-
sity Board of Trustees (board), a citizen board appointed by
the Governor with confirmation by the state senate. OSU
serves as the state of Oregon’s land, sea, space, and sun
grant university.

The OSU financial reporting entity is comprised of OSU and
two related foundations. OSU includes the main campus in
Corvallis and a branch campus in Bend and receives separate
appropriations for statewide activities including Agricultural
Experiment Stations, Cooperative Extension Service, and
Forestry Research Laboratories. Because the Governor

of the State of Oregon (state) appoints the OSU Board of
Trustees, and because OSU receives some financial support
from the state, OSU is a discretely presented component
unit of the state and is included in its annual comprehensive
financial report (ACFR).

Similarly, the university’s two related foundations are
discretely presented as component units on OSU’s basic
financial statements under the guidelines established

by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain
Organizations are Component Units. Discretely presented
means that the statements are included separately in the
financial report. The Oregon State University Foundation
(OSUF) was incorporated in 1947 to pursue and administer
gifts and bequests in support of the university. The OSUF
is responsible for all fundraising of the university and

for the management of the majority of the university’s
endowments. The Agricultural Research Foundation (ARF)
was incorporated in 1934 to encourage and facilitate
research in all branches of agriculture and related fields for
the benefit of Oregon’s agricultural industries. The ARF is
the custodian of privately and publicly donated research
funds that support projects conducted by OSU scientists
on campus, across the state, and by affiliated entities. Both
foundations are nonprofit entities under Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code. The majority of resources
that each foundation holds and invests are restricted to the
activities of the university in accordance with donor intent,
and can only be used by, or for the benefit of, OSU. These
resources are significant to the operations of OSU, and the
university routinely accesses them through various inter-
company processes. See Note 21 University Foundations
for additional information regarding the related foundations
reported as Component Units.

B. Financial Statement Presentation

The OSU financial accounting records are maintained in ac-
cordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as prescribed in applicable pronouncements of the
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Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The
financial statement presentation required by GASB State-
ment No. 35, Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis—for Public Colleges and Universities—
an amendment of GASB Statement No. 34, modified by GASB
Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities, provides a comprehensive, entity-wide perspec-
tive of OSU assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabili-
ties, deferred inflows of resources, net position, revenues,
expenses, changes in net position, and cash flows.

In preparing the financial statements, interfund transfers be-
tween university funds, and internal revenues and expenses
associated with self-supporting auxiliary and service center
operations have been eliminated.

Financial statements of the OSU foundations for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 are discretely pre-
sented as discussed above. The foundations’ financial state-
ments are prepared in accordance with the pronouncements
of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB). As
such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation
features are different from GASB revenue and presentation
criteria. Accordingly, those financial statements have been
consolidated and reported on separate pages following their
respective financial statement counterparts of the univer-
sity. No modifications have been made to the foundations’
financial information included in the university’s financial
report.

C. Basis of Accounting

For financial reporting purposes, OSU is considered a
special-purpose government engaged only in business-type
activities. Accordingly, the OSU financial statements are
presented using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis,
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recorded when incurred.

NEWLY IMPLEMENTED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

OSU implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, in 2022.
The new standard required a restatement of the 2021
financial statements to provide consistency with the 2022
financial statements. GASB Statement No. 87 improves the
accounting and financial reporting for leases. Under this
Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability
and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, while a lessor

is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred
inflow of resources. This Statement substantially impacts
the university’s lease accounting and reporting. Previously,
unless a lease met specific criteria for capitalization, lessee
leases were recorded as operating lease expense and les-
sor leases were recorded as operating lease revenue in the
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Posi-
tion. See Note 1, Section AC. for further details regarding
the impacts to the fiscal year 2021 financial statements due
to the implementation of this standard.
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In October 2021, GASB issued Statement No. 98, The An-
nual Comprehensive Financial Report. GASB Statement No.
98 establishes the term annual comprehensive financial
report and its acronym ACFR. That new term and acronym
replace instances of comprehensive annual financial report
and its acronym in generally accepted accounting principles
for state and local governments and is effective for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2022. This Statement was developed

in response to concerns raised by stakeholders that the
common pronunciation of the acronym for comprehensive
annual financial report sounds like a profoundly objection-
able racial slur. OSU implemented this Statement effective
for fiscal year 2022 and has changed all references of com-
prehensive annual financial report to annual comprehensive
financial report throughout this document.

UPCOMING ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-
Based Information Technology Arrangements. GASB State-
ment No. 96 provides guidance on the accounting and
financial reporting for subscription-based information
technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users
and is effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. This
Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA
results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible as-
set—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides
the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscrip-
tion payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA;
and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. This
statement will change how the university accounts for and
reports SBITAs.

In April 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 99, Omnibus
2022. GASB Statement No. 99 aims to enhance compara-
bility in accounting and financial reporting and to improve
the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing (1)
practice issues that have been identified during implemen-
tation and application of certain GASB Statements and (2)
accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees.
The practice issues addressed by this Statement are as fol-
lows:

« Classification and reporting of derivative instruments with-
in the scope of Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Derivative Instruments, that do not meet the
definition of either an investment derivative instrument or
a hedging derivative instrument

« Clarification of provisions in Statement No. 87, Leases, as
amended, related to the determination of the lease term,
classification of a lease as a short-term lease, recognition
and measurement of a lease liability and a lease asset, and
identification of lease incentives

« Clarification of provisions in Statement No. 94, Public-
Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Pay-
ment Arrangements, related to (a) the determination of the
public-private and public-public partnership (PPP) term and

(b) recognition and measurement of installment payments
and the transfer of the underlying PPP asset

Clarification of provisions in Statement No. 96, Subscrip-
tion-Based Information Technology Arrangements, related
to the subscription-based information technology arrange-
ment (SBITA) term, classification of a SBITA as a short-term
SBITA, and recognition and measurement of a subscription
liability

Extension of the period during which the London Inter-
bank Offered Rate (LIBOR) is considered an appropriate
benchmark interest rate for the qualitative evaluation of
the effectiveness of an interest rate swap that hedges the
interest rate risk of taxable debt

Accounting for the distribution of benefits as part of the
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) Dis-
closures related to nonmonetary transactions

Pledges of future revenues when resources are not re-
ceived by the pledging government

Clarification of provisions in Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements— and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis—for State and Local Governments, as amended,
related to the focus of the government-wide financial
statements

Terminology updates related to certain provisions of State-
ment No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Posi-
tion

« Terminology used in Statement 53 to refer to resource
flows statements.

The requirements related to extension of the use of LIBOR,
accounting for SNAP distributions, disclosures of nonmon-
etary transactions, pledges of future revenues by pledging
governments, clarification of certain provisions in State-
ment 34, as amended, and terminology updates related to
Statement 53 and Statement 63 are effective upon issuance.
The requirements related to leases, PPPs, and SBITAs are
effective for fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. The require-
ments related to financial guarantees and the classification
and reporting of derivative instruments within the scope

of Statement 53 are effective for fiscal year ended June 30,
2024. Not all sections of the Statement will be applicable to
the university. The Statement is being reviewed for applica-
bility and impact on the university’s financial statements.

In June 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 100, Account-

ing Changes and Error Corrections - an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 62. This Statement defines four categories
of accounting changes and error corrections and related ac-
counting and financial reporting requirements: (1) Changes
in accounting principle must be reported retroactively by
restating prior periods; (2) changes in accounting estimate
must be reported prospectively by recognizing the change
in the current period; (3) changes to and within the financial
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reporting entity must be reported by adjusting beginning
balances of the current period; and (4) error corrections re-
sulting from mathematical mistakes, misuse of information,
or misapplication of accounting principle should be reported
retroactively by restating prior periods. This Statement will
apply to the university if any of the above fact patterns ex-
ist. This Statement will be effective for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2024.

In June 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 101, Compensated
Absences. This Statement requires that liabilities for compen-
sated absences be recognized for (1) leave that has not been
used and (2) leave that has been used but not yet paid in
cash or settled through noncash means. A liability should be
recognized for leave that has not been used if (a) the leave is
attributable to services already rendered, (b) the leave accu-
mulates, and (c) the leave is more likely than not to be used
for time off or otherwise paid in cash or settled through
noncash means. This statement will impact the university’s
calculation of the compensated absences liability and is cur-
rently being reviewed. This statement will be effective for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025.

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less. The major-
ity of the university’s cash and cash equivalents are invested
in the Oregon Short-Term Fund (OSTF), which is managed
by the Oregon State Treasury, and provides daily liquid-

ity. Cash and cash equivalents classified as current assets
consist of: cash on hand, cash for current operations, cash
held for the payment of the current portion of debt service,
and cash held as a custodial agent for student groups. Cash
and cash equivalents classified as non-current assets consist
of student building fee cash held for future debt service and
cash for capital construction projects. See Note 2 Cash and
Investments, Section A Cash and Cash Equivalents for dis-
closure of restricted portions of cash and cash equivalents.

E. Investments

Investments are reported at fair value as determined by
market prices. Unrealized and realized gains or losses on
investments are reported as investment activity in the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position. See Note 13 Investment Activity for additional
information. All investments are classified as noncurrent
assets in the Statement of Net Position.

F. Receivables

Accounts receivable consists primarily of amounts due for
tuition and fee charges to students, grants and contracts,
and auxiliary enterprise services provided to students,
faculty and staff. Accounts receivable for tuition and fee
charges are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Grants and contracts receivable include amounts due from
federal, state, and local governments, or private sources, in
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connection with reimbursement of allowable expenditures
made pursuant to the university’s grants and contracts.
Capital construction receivables include amounts due from
the state in connection with reimbursement of allowable
expenditures made pursuant to the grant agreements
between the university and the state for facilities projects
funded by the state.

Notes receivable consist primarily of student loans receiv-
able due from the federal Perkins Loan Program and from
other loans administered by the university. Construction
loans receivable are reimbursements receivable from the
state in connection with allowable expenditures made
pursuant to contracts between the university and the state
for various facility projects initially funded by the university.
Construction reimbursements can be current or long-term
depending on the estimated timing of completion of associ-
ated construction projects. The university does not currently
hold any notes receivable from the state related to construc-
tion reimbursements.

G. Inventories

Inventories are recorded at cost, with cost being generally
determined on a first-in, first-out or average basis. Invento-
ries consist primarily of supplies in storerooms and physical
plant stores.

H. Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost on the date acquired or
at acquisition value on the date donated. OSU capitalizes
equipment with unit costs of $5,000 or more and an esti-
mated useful life greater than one year. OSU capitalizes real
property expenditures that increase the functionality and/
or extend the useful life of the real property if total expen-
ditures exceed the capitalization thresholds of $50,000 to
$100,000, depending on the type of real property. Intan-
gible assets valued in excess of $100,000 are capitalized.
Expenditures below the capitalization threshold and repairs
and maintenance are charged to operating expense in the
year in which the expense is incurred. In addition, certain
research costs for construction of assets funded by and on
behalf of federal agencies are expensed as incurred. (In fiscal
years 2022 and 2021, this included the National Science
Foundation’s Regional Class Research Vessel Program.) In
these cases, the federal agencies control the assets and
retain title.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets. This is generally
50 years for buildings; 25 years for major renovations/addi-
tions to buildings; 10 to 20 years for infrastructure and land
improvements; 5 to 11 years for non-expendable assets; and
the useful life of the asset or term of the lease, whichever

is less, for leasehold improvements. Amortization terms for
intangible assets vary depending on the factors relating to
the specific asset. Depreciation is not applied to land, mu-
seum collections, works of art, historical treasures, or library
special collections.
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|. Leases

The university determines if an arrangement is a lease at
inception. Lessee arrangements include Right-of-Use (ROU)
lease assets in capital assets and lease liabilities in current
and noncurrent long-term liabilities in the statements of net
position.

ROU lease assets represent the university’s control of the
right to use an underlying asset for the noncancelable lease
term, as specified in the contract, in an exchange or ex-
change-like transaction. ROU lease assets are recognized at
the commencement date based on the initial measurement
of the lease liability, plus any payments made to the lessor at
or before the commencement of the lease term and certain
direct costs. ROU lease assets are amortized in a systematic
and rational manner over the shorter of the lease term or
the useful life of the underlying asset.

Lease liabilities represent the university’s obligation to make
lease payments arising from the lessee arrangement. Lease
liabilities are recognized at the commencement date based
on the present value of expected lease payments over the
lease term, less any lease incentives. Interest expense is
recognized ratably over the contract term. The lease term
may include options to extend or terminate the lease when
it is reasonably certain that the university will exercise that
option.

Per OSU policy, the university has elected to recognize pay-
ments for short-term leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases with a present value of less than five thou-
sand dollars as expenses as incurred, and these leases are
not included as lease liabilities or right-to-use lease assets
on the statements of net position.

Lessor arrangements are included in lease receivables and
deferred inflows of resources in the statements of net posi-
tion. Lease receivables represent the university’s claim to re-
ceive lease payments over the lease term, as specified in the
contract, in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Lease
receivables are recognized at commencement date based on
the present value of expected lease payments over the lease
term, reduced by any provision for estimated uncollectible
amounts. Interest revenue is recognized ratably over the
contract term.

Deferred inflows of resources related to leases are rec-
ognized at the commencement date based on the initial
measurement of the lease receivable, plus any payments
received from the lessee at or before the commencement of
the lease term that relate to future periods, less any lease
incentives paid to, or on behalf of, the lessee at or before the
commencement of the lease term. The deferred inflows re-
lated to leases are recognized as lease revenue in a system-
atic and rational manner over the lease term.

OSU recognizes payments received for short-term leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less as revenue as the pay-
ments are received. Per university policy, OSU also recog-

nizes payments received on leases with an initial calculated
net present value of five thousand dollars or less as revenue
as the payments are received. These leases are not included
as lease receivables or deferred inflows on the statements of
net position.

J. Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues include amounts received for tuition

and fees, grants and contracts, lease income and auxiliary
enterprise activities in which cash has been received, but
revenues will be earned in the subsequent fiscal year(s).

K. Compensated Absences

OSU accrues a liability for vacation leave and other compen-
sated absences that were earned but not used during the
current or prior fiscal year for which employees can receive
compensation in a future period. An estimate is made to
allocate this liability between its current and noncurrent
components. Sick leave is recorded as an expense when
paid. There is no payout provision for unused sick leave and
no liability exists.

L. Net Pension Liability

The net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pen-
sion expense, are actuarially determined at the system-wide
Retirement Plan level and are allocated to employers based
on their proportionate share. The university’s proportionate
share is actuarially determined and allocated to the universi-
ty by Oregon PERS. See Note 16 Employee Retirement Plans
for a detailed description of the liability and the proportion-
ate share methodology.

M. Net OPEB [Asset]/Liability

The university’s net PERS RHIA OPEB asset, net PERS RHIPA
OPEB (asset)/liability and the total PEBB OPEB liability
along with the associated deferred outflows of resources,
deferred inflows of resources and expenses are allocated

to the university by the Oregon Department of Administra-
tive Services based on their proportionate share . See Note
17 Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) for a detailed
description of each plan and the proportionate share meth-
odology for each.

N. Asset Retirement Obligations

An Asset Retirement Obligation (ARO) is a legally enforce-
able liability associated with the retirement of a tangible
capital asset. The retirement of a tangible capital asset
encompasses its sale, abandonment, recycling, or disposal
in some other manner; however, it does not encompass the
temporary idling of a tangible capital asset. OSU has legal
obligations to perform future asset retirement activities re-
lated to one tangible capital asset and therefore recognizes
a liability and corresponding deferred outflow of resources.
The deferred outflow of resources will be amortized and
expensed over the remaining life of the asset. See Note 10
Asset Retirement Obligations for additional information.
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0. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of

Resources
Deferred outflows of resources represent the consumption
of net position in one period that is applicable to future peri-
ods, and have a positive effect on net position that is similar
to assets, but are not considered assets. Deferred inflows of
resources represent the acquisition of net position that is
applicable to future periods, and have a negative effect on
net position that is similar to liabilities, but are not consid-
ered liabilities. Deferred outflows and inflows are related to
defined benefit pension plans, defined benefit OPEB plans,
and asset retirement obligations. See Note 6 Deferred Out-
flows and Inflows of Resources, Note 10 Asset Retirement
Obligations, Note 16 Employee Retirement Plans, and Note
17 Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB).

P. Net Position

OSU’s net position is classified as follows:

NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Net investment in capital assets represents the total invest-
ment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
amortization, less outstanding debt obligations related to
those capital assets plus unspent bond proceeds.

RESTRICTED - NONEXPENDABLE ENDOWMENTS
Restricted-Nonexpendable Endowments consists of endow-
ment funds in which donors have stipulated, as a condition
of the gift instrument, that the principal is to be maintained
inviolate and in perpetuity, and invested for the purpose

of producing present and future income. The income may
either be expended or, depending on the terms of the gift
instrument, added to principal.

RESTRICTED - EXPENDABLE

Restricted-Expendable includes resources which OSU is le-
gally or contractually obligated to spend in accordance with
restrictions stipulated by external parties.

UNRESTRICTED
Unrestricted net position represents resources that may be
used at the discretion of the board.

0. Restricted/Unrestricted Resources

The university has no formal policy addressing which re-
sources to use when both restricted and unrestricted net
position are available for the same purpose. University per-
sonnel decide which resources to use at the time expenses
are incurred. Factors used to determine which resources to
use include relative priorities of the university in accordance
with the university’s strategic initiatives and externally
imposed matching requirements of certain restricted funds.
Major capital purchases are often times split-funded from
multiple restricted and unrestricted funding sources.

R. Endowments
The university manages timber and forestry land endow-
ments, while all other endowments are managed by the OSU
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Foundation. The university endowment assets managed

by the OSU Foundation are invested with the objectives of
long-term capital appreciation and stable but growing in-
come. The university board policy is to distribute 4.5 percent
of the preceding 12-quarter moving average of the endow-
ment market value for spending purposes.

Net appreciation of endowments is included in restricted
expendable gifts, grants, and contracts on the Statement of
Net Position.

Non-expendable endowments on the Statement of Net
Position at June 30, 2022, represent the original corpus

of true endowment funds of $2,384,154 and the full non-
expendable fair value of the real estate endowments of
$5,013,128. Non-expendable endowments on the State-
ment of Net Position at June 30, 2021, represent the original
corpus of true endowment funds of $2,384,154 and the full
non-expendable fair value of the real estate endowments of
$4,069,227.

The university’s endowments are identified and invested as
follows (in thousands):

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
True Endowments
Corpus $ 2,384 § 2,384
Market Valuation 2,636 3,294
Real Estate 5,013 4,069
Total 10,033 9,747
Quasi-Endowments
Corpus 64,129 44,064
Market Valuation 24,359 38,023
Real Estate 5,055 3,779
Total 93,543 85,866
Total Fair Value of Endowments $ 103,576 $ 95,613
Invested Endowments:
Timber and Forestry Land Held by OSU $ 10,068 § 7,848
Invested by OSU Foundation 54,209 61,114
Separately Invested Equity Investments 36,905 24,960

Invested in the Public University Fund (PUF) 169 167

Total Invested Endowments 101,351 94,089
Endowment Cash in PUF 150 164
Long-Term Receivable from Casey Family Trust 2,075 1,360
Total Fair Value of Endowments $ 103,576 $ 95,613

S. Income Taxes

OSU is treated as a governmental entity for tax purposes.
As such, OSU is generally not subject to federal and state
income taxes. However, OSU remains subject to income
taxes on any income that is derived from a trade or business
regularly carried on and not in furtherance of the purpose
for which OSU was granted exemption from income taxes.
No income tax is recorded because there are no income
taxes due on unrelated business income during fiscal year
2022 and 2021.
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T. Revenues and Expenses
OSU has classified its revenues and expenses as either oper-
ating or nonoperating according to the following criteria:

Operating revenues and expenses generally have the charac-
teristics of exchange transactions. These transactions can be
defined as an exchange in which two or more entities both
receive and sacrifice value, such as purchases and sales of
goods or services. Examples of operating revenues include
student tuition and fees, sales and services of auxiliary
enterprises, most federal, state and local grants and con-
tracts, and other operating revenues. Examples of operating
expenses include employee compensation and benefits,
scholarships and fellowships, utilities, supplies and other
services, professional fees, and depreciation.

Nonoperating revenues and expenses generally have the
characteristics of nonexchange transactions. In a nonex-
change transaction, OSU receives value without directly
giving equal value in exchange. Examples of nonoperating
revenues include government appropriations, nonexchange
grants, gifts, and contributions. For fiscal years 2022 and
2021, nonoperating revenues included Higher Education
Emergency Relief Funds (HEERF). Nonoperating expenses
are defined in GASB Statement No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows
of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Governmen-
tal Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, and GASB
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Manage-
ment’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Govern-
ments. Examples of nonoperating expenses include interest
on capital debt and bond expenses.

U. State Support

OSU receives support from the state in the form of General
Fund and Lottery appropriations, and debt service appro-
priations for some Oregon Department of Energy loans. See
Note 15 Government Appropriations for details on appro-
priations.

In addition to appropriations, the state provides funding for
plant facilities on the university’s campuses. Capital proj-
ects for new facilities and capital improvements and repairs
are funded by gifts, state-paid debt, and university-paid
debt and resources. The state legislature considers projects
from all seven public universities for allocation of Oregon’s
bonding capacity. Funds for capital projects funded by state-
paid debt are provided through grant agreements between
OSU and the state. Revenue is recorded as Capital Grants

in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

Net Position when expenditures are reimbursable per the
grant agreements. Funds for capital projects funded by
university-paid debt can also be funded through Oregon’s
bonding capacity. At the time that the bonds are sold, the
state instructs OSU to record a liability to the state for the
debt, and a receivable for construction reimbursements. The
receivable is reduced as expenditures on the capital project
are completed and reimbursed by the state.

Facilities funded by gifts, state-paid debt and university-paid
debt are reflected as completed assets or construction in
progress in the accompanying Statement of Net Position.
University-paid debt relating to bonds issued by the state
are primary obligations of the state. OSU is contractually
committed to pay the state to fund the retirement of debt
obligations issued on its behalf. These contracts are included
as current and long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net
Position.

V. Allowances

Student tuition and fees and campus housing revenues
included in auxiliary enterprise revenues are reported net
of scholarship allowances. A scholarship allowance is the
difference between the university’s stated rates and charges
and the amounts actually paid by students and/or third
parties making payments on behalf of the students. Under
this approach, scholarships awarded by the university are
considered as reductions in tuition and fee revenues rather
than as expenses. Additionally, certain governmental grants,
such as Pell grants, and payments from other federal, state
or nongovernmental programs, are required to be recorded
as either operating or nonoperating revenues in the univer-
sity’s financial statements. To the extent that revenues from
such programs are applied to tuition, fees, and other student
charges, the university has reported a corresponding schol-
arship allowance.

OSU has three types of allowances that are netted against
gross tuition and fees and housing revenues. Tuition and
housing waivers, provided directly by OSU, amounted to
$73,851,818 and $58,447,333 for the fiscal years ended
2022 and 2021, respectively. Revenues from financial aid
programs (e.g., Pell Grants, Supplemental Educational Op-
portunity Grants, and Oregon Opportunity Grants) used
for paying student tuition and fees and campus housing was
estimated to be $51,446,205 and $45,969,198 for the fiscal
years ended 2022 and 2021, respectively. Bad debt expense
related to student accounts is also reported as an allow-
ance against operating revenues and was estimated to be
$1,756,950 and ($778,626) for the fiscal years ended 2022
and 2021, respectively. Negative bad debt expense indicates
a reduction in the allowance for doubtful accounts for the
year.

W. Federal Student Loan Programs

OSU receives proceeds from the Federal Direct Student
Loan Program (FDSLP). GASB Statement No. 84 allows
business-type activities, such as OSU, to report activities
that would otherwise be considered custodial funds in OSU’s
Statement of Net Position and Statement of Cash Flows as
an operating activity if upon receipt, the funds are normally
expected to be held for three months or less. Funds associ-
ated with the FDSLP meet this exception and are reported as
such. OSU disbursed federal student loans in the amount of
$134,202,860 and $131,247,757 for the fiscal years ended
2022 and 2021, respectively.
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X. Deposit Liahilities

Deposit liabilities primarily consist of fund balances held by
OSU on behalf of student groups and organizations that ac-
count for activities in the OSU accounting system and whose
cash is part of the cash held on deposit with the Oregon
State Treasury.

Y. Perkins Loan Program Termination

OSU administers Title IV Perkins Loans for the benefit of

its students. Funds for the Perkins program were initially
received through Federal Capital Contributions (FCC) from
the U.S. Department of Education (ED) and were supple-
mented with Institutional Capital Contributions (ICC). Over
the years, the proportion of federal to institutional matching
funds varied, from a 90/10 split to a 75/25 split. Academic
year 2017-18 was the last year in which new Perkins loans
were allowed to be disbursed as the U.S. Congress did not
renew the program. The ED has given institutions the op-
tion of assigning existing Perkins loans back to the federal
government or continuing to collect on them while return-
ing FCC as loans are repaid. OSU has elected to continue to
collect on Perkins loans and return the FCC as it is collected.
Perkins loans are reported in Notes Receivable, net of allow-
ances for uncollectible amounts. Amounts due for repay-
ment to the ED for the FCC portion are reported as cur-

rent and noncurrent long-term liabilities. Net Perkins loan
amounts are reported in Net Position under Expendable for
Student Loans.

Z. Related-Party Transactions

OSU has an ongoing related-party transaction with former
head baseball coach Pat Casey and the Pat Casey Family
Trust (PCFT). The parties have agreed to a split-dollar ar-
rangement whereby Coach Casey has agreed to reduce his
salary by $215,000 annually and the university is then loan-
ing $215,000 annually for fiscal years 2018 through 2022 to
the PCFT at the IRS applicable federal rate (AFR) in effect on
the day each $215,000 loan advance is disbursed. The PCFT
is using the loan funds to purchase a life insurance policy

on Pat Casey’s wife. The original term of the loan from the
university to PCFT is 23 years, or upon the death of Mrs.
Casey, whichever comes first. When the life insurance policy
terminates, OSU will be reimbursed by the PCFT for the full
principal amount of the loan plus accrued interest. The loan
from OSU to PCFT is reported in non-current notes receiv-
able.

OSU has an ongoing related-party transaction with cur-

rent football head coach Jonathan Smith. The parties have
agreed to a split-dollar arrangement whereby Coach Smith
has agreed to reduce his salary by $500,000 annually and
the university has agreed to pay the policy premium on a life
insurance policy for Coach Smith in the amount of $500,000
annually for fiscal years 2021 through 2026. The annual
payment of the insurance policy premium results in a prom-
issory note loan from the university to Coach Smith. Each
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$500,000 is loaned at the IRS applicable federal rate (AFR)
in effect on the day the payment is made, with interest com-
pounded annually. Repayment of the premium loan amount
is due either upon the death of Coach Smith or mutual
agreement of both parties to terminate the loan agreement.
Interest on the loans may be pre-paid or paid at the time of
termination of the agreement. The loan from OSU to Coach
Smith is reported in non-current notes receivable.

AA. COVID-19 Relief Funding

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES)
Act, passed by Congress in March 2020, provides budget-
ary relief to higher education institutions through numerous
provisions. Of the $30.75 billion allotted to the Education
Stabilization Fund through the CARES Act, Congress set
aside approximately $14.25 billion for the Higher Education
Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF). Due to the different formu-
las and discretionary allocations Congress created within the
CARES Act, the HEERF is comprised of multiple programs
and distribution allocations.

The Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Ap-
propriations Act (CRRSAA) was approved by Congress in
December 2020 as part of the Consolidated Appropriations
Act of 2021. The law authorized $23 billion through the
Education Stabilization Fund specifically for higher educa-
tion. These funds were allocated to institutions using the
HEERF in the CARES Act and this portion of relief funding is
commonly referred to as HEERF II. The CRRSA Act requires
institutions to provide the same amount in emergency aid to
students as they received under the CARES Act, and allows
them to use additional funds on institutional expenses to
reimburse themselves for expenses that occurred due to
continuing operations during the pandemic; defray losses
due to decreased revenue; implement information technol-
ogy infrastructure and distance learning capacity for current
and future students; fund payroll; and faculty and staff
professional development.

In March 2021, Congress passed additional COVID relief
funding in the American Rescue Plan (ARP). This law autho-
rized $39.6 billion to higher education through the Higher
Education Emergency Relief Fund (known as HEERF I11). Sim-
ilar to the CARES Act, institutions must spend at least 50%
of their allocation on emergency financial aid grants directly
to students. Institutions are required to spend a “reasonable
and necessary” amount of institutional funds on monitor-
ing and controlling the spread of COVID-19 on their campus
and on outreach to students alerting them of opportunities
to receive a financial aid adjustment due to lost income as

a result of the pandemic. Additionally, institutions may use
remaining funds to replace lost revenue, fund emergency
expenses, or meet payroll costs, among other expenses.
Institutions who received HEERF | or HEERF Il funds were
automatically awarded HEERF Il funds.
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As of June 30, 2022, no additional COVID relief funding was
awarded to OSU and the university received and dispersed
their remaining HEERF III allocations. OSU received and dis-
persed directly to students as emergency financial aid grants
the remaining $23,797,683 of HEERF IlI student allocation
and recognized nonoperating financial aid grant revenue and
student aid operating expense for the receipt and disburse-
ment of these funds. OSU received $22,299,308 for the
remaining institutional allocation and recognized other
nonoperating revenue for the total amount received. Expen-
ditures identified as allowable relate to COVID testing and
tracing expenses, foregone housing and dining auxiliary rev-
enues and lost tuition revenues attributed to the pandemic.
In addition, OSU received the remaining $119,453 for the
Strengthening Institutions Program (SIP), inclusive of HEERF
I, I, and Ill. Funding through this program could be used for
student aid or to defray institutional expenses, which may
include lost revenue, reimbursement for expenses already
incurred, technology costs associated with the transition to
distance education, faculty and staff training, and payroll.
These funds were used to offset lost conference and sport
camp revenues attributed to the pandemic.

As of June 30, 2021, total COVID relief funding awarded to
OSU under HEERF Il and HEERF Il was $72,919,251. OSU
was awarded $31,577,682 for the student portion allocation,
of which $7,779,999 was received and dispersed directly to
students as emergency financial aid grants as of June 30,
2021, and $23,797,683 remained to be received and dis-
persed in fiscal year 2022. OSU recognized nonoperating fi-
nancial aid grant revenue and student aid operating expense
for the receipt and disbursement of these funds. OSU was
awarded $41,121,795 for the institutional portion alloca-
tion. As of June 30, 2021, OSU had received $18,822,487
and $22,299,308 remained to be received in fiscal year
2022. OSU recognized other nonoperating revenue for the
total amount received. Expenditures identified as allowable
relate to foregone housing and dining auxiliary revenues and
lost tuition revenues attributed to the pandemic. In addition
to the student and institutional portions, OSU was awarded
$219,774 through the Strengthening Institutions Program
(SIP). Funding through this program could be used for
student aid or to defray institutional expenses, which may
include lost revenue, reimbursement for expenses already
incurred, technology costs associated with the transition to
distance education, faculty and staff training, and payroll. As
of June 30, 2021, the university had received $100,321 with
$119,453 available for fiscal year 2022. These funds were
used to offset lost conference and sport camp revenues at-
tributed to the pandemic.

OSU was also awarded $526,133 through the Governor’s
Emergency Education Relief Fund. Of this funding, none has
been received or dispersed as of June 30, 2021. Of the total
awarded, $399,923 is allocated for grants to students and
$126,210 is allocated for institutional support. The total of
this funding was received and dispersed in fiscal year 2022.

AB. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that could affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates

AC. Reclassifications and Restatements
Certain amounts within the June 30, 2021 financial
statements have been reclassified to conform to the June
30, 2022 presentation. The reclassifications had no effect on
previously reported net position.

The implementation of GASB Statement No. 87 in fiscal year
2022 required the retrospective restatement of all financial
years presented. Accordingly, fiscal year 2021 financial infor-
mation has been restated to reflect the implementation. For
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, OSU increased operat-
ing revenue by $2,106,103, increased operating expenses

by $50,772, and decreased net nonoperating revenue by
$219,298 for a net impact to the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position of $1,836,033. OSU
recorded an additional $88,005,183 in total assets, an
additional $13,002,832 in total liabilities, an increase of
$73,166,318 in deferred inflows, and a $1,836,033 increase
in total net position in the Statement of Net Position for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Additionally, see Note 21 University Foundations regarding
the restatement of total component unit financial informa-
tion as of June 30, 2021.

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the majority of the cash and
investments of OSU were held in custody with the Oregon
State Treasury (OST). The OST manages these invested
assets through commingled investment pools. The operat-
ing funds for OSU are commingled with operating cash and
investments from five other Oregon public universities and
referred to collectively as the Public University Fund (PUF).
The investments held in the PUF are managed by the OST
and administered by the statutorily defined designated uni-
versity. OSU is currently serving as the designated university
for the PUF pool. Each underlying investment pool has an
investment policy and set of objectives identifying risk and
return parameters for the respective investment pool. The
OST invests these deposits in high grade, dollar-denominat-
ed, short and intermediate-term fixed income securities. The
Oregon Investment Council (OIC) provides oversight and
counsel on the investment policies, activities, and perfor-
mance for each investment pool held in the PUF. Revenue
bond proceeds are invested separately from operating funds,
and are held in diversified, high quality and liquid fixed
income securities.
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Total cash and investments for the university includes both
restricted and unrestricted amounts and are summarized as
follows (in thousands):

June 30, June 30,

2022 2021
Unrestricted $ 135,363 § 104,762
Bond Proceeds
Reserved for Capital 196,132 217,797
Available for Operations 103,594 168,808
Restricted For:
Endowments 101,499 94,253
Capital 89,782 107,320
Student Aid 11,405 11,570
Debt Service 10,166 8,875
Payroll Withholdings 28,905 26,559
Student Groups and Campus
Organizations 488 1,317
Perkins Title IV Cash 3,386 3,912
Petty Cash 93 153
Supplemental Retirement
Plan Investment 489 547
Unrealized Gain on
Investments 1,914 1,372

Total Cash and Investments  § 683,216 $ 747,245

In general, deposits and investment securities as described

below have exposure to various risks such as credit, concen-

tration of credit, custodial credit, interest rate, and foreign
currency. It is likely that the value of the investment securi-

ties will fluctuate during short periods of time, and it is pos-

sible that such changes could materially affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements.

For full disclosure regarding cash and investments managed
by the OST, a copy of the OST audited annual financial
report may be obtained by writing to the Oregon State
Treasury, 350 Winter St. NE, Suite 100, Salem, OR 97301-
3896 or by linking to www.oregon.gov/treasury/news-
data/pages/treasury-news-reports.aspx#annualrep

A. Cash and Cash Equivalents

DEPOSITS WITH OREGON STATE TREASURY

OSU maintains the majority of its current cash balances on
deposit with the OST. These deposits are held on a pooled
basis in the Oregon Short-Term Fund (OSTF). The OSTF is
a short-term cash and investment pool available for use

by all state agencies or by agreement for related agencies,
such as OSU. The OST invests these deposits in high-grade
short-term investment securities. While the university is
not required by statute to collateralize deposits, it does
have a contractual obligation with the OST to collateralize
deposits within 24 hours of receipt. At fiscal years ended
June 30, 2022 and 2021, OSU cash and cash equivalents
on deposit at OST were $170,569,093 and $231,758,452,
respectively. Cash and cash equivalents on deposit at fiscal
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years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 included $50,510,019
and $130,225,550, respectively, in unspent taxable revenue
bond proceeds held in a separate OST account in the OSTF.

OTHER DEPOSITS

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, OSU had cash
at U.S. Bank held for Title IV Perkins Loans of $3,386,303
and $3,911,921, respectively. OSU held cash at JPMorgan
Chase bank for operations of $35,930,881 and $63,154,527,
respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. Ad-
ditionally, for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, OSU
had vault and petty cash balances of $93,258 and $152,522,
respectively.

CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK-DEPOSITS

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a finan-
cial institution failure, cash deposits will not be returned

to a depositor. The university and state do not have formal
policies regarding custodial credit risk for deposits. How-
ever, banking regulations and Oregon Revised Statute (ORS)
Chapter 295 establish the insurance and collateral require-
ments for deposits in the OSTF. OSU cash balances held

on deposit at the OST are invested continuously, therefore
custodial credit risk exposure to the OST is low. Additionally,
cash balances on deposit with US Bank and JPMorgan Chase
bank are collateralized, therefore invested continuously,
resulting in low credit risk.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK-DEPDSITS

Deposits in foreign currency run the risk of changing value
due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Per PUF policy,
all deposits are in U.S. currency and therefore not exposed
to foreign currency risk.

To facilitate study-abroad programs, there are some cash
balances held in the local currency of other countries to pay
local expenses. The aggregate foreign denominated account
balances converted into U.S. dollars equaled $870,885 and
$692,185 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Amounts
deposited in foreign bank accounts are reported as accounts
receivable or prepaid expense on the financial statements.

B. Investments

OSU'’s operating funds are invested in the PUF and separate-
ly managed fixed income portfolios. University investments
in the PUF are invested in the Core Bond Fund (CBF) man-
aged by the OST. The CBF invests primarily in intermediate-
term fixed income securities and is managed with an invest-
ment objective to maximize total return (i.e., principal and
income) over an intermediate time horizon within stipulated
risk parameters. The CBF is actively managed to maintain
an average duration of four to five years, through a diversi-
fied portfolio of quality, investment grade fixed income
securities as defined in the investment policy. The majority
of the university’s endowment assets are managed by the
OSU Foundation. These endowment assets are invested in
the OSU Foundation’s pooled endowment fund (fund) and
directed by external investment managers. The fund is ex-
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pected to operate in perpetuity and the investments are in-
vested with a long-term horizon while maintaining a prudent
level of risk. Additionally, the university manages timber and
forestry land endowments, board-directed strategic invest-
ments and a land grant endowment invested in the PUF.
There are board designated funds invested in equities as a
long-term investment strategy which aligns acceptable risk
tolerance associated with investment duration as defined in
the investment policy.

All investments are managed as a prudent investor would
do, exercising reasonable care, skill and caution.

Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment

securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in

the values of investment securities could occur in the near
term and such changes could materially affect the amounts
reported in the Statement of Net Position.

Significant events in domestic and international investment
markets, or aggressive action by the Federal Open Market
Committee to influence both short and long-term interest
rates, contribute to price volatility. Consequently, the fair
value of OSU’s operating and endowment investments is
exposed to price volatility which could result in a substan-
tial change in the fair value of certain investments from the
amounts reported as of June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Investments are all classified as noncurrent and include both
restricted and unrestricted funds. Earnings on investments
from restricted fund sources are spent in accordance with
the restrictions of the funding source.

OSU’s investments by source are classified and invested as
follows (in thousands):

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021

Operating Funds

PUF Core Bond Fund $ 133,105 $ 103,853

Other Investment Funds 238,292 249,778
Total Operating Funds 371,397 353,631
Endowment Funds

Invested by OSU Foundation 54,209 61,115

Timber and Forestry Land 10,068 7,848

Board Directed Endowment 36,905 24,960

PUF Core Bond Fund 169 167

Total Endowment Funds 101,351 94,090
Separately Held Investments 488 547
Total Investments $ 473,236 $ 448,268

Investments in the PUF CBF pool, the OSU Foundation
pooled investments and OSU’s other separate investments
are invested as follows:

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
PUF Core Bond Fund
Fixed Income 100.0% 100.0%
Other Investment Funds
Fixed Income 95.6% 92.6%
Equities 4.4% 7.4%
100.0% 100.0%
Board Directed Endowment
Equities 100.0% 100.0%
Invested by OSU Foundation
Equities 48.5% 58.8%
Alternative 46.0% 36.7%
Fixed Income 5.5% 4.5%
100.0% 100.0%
Timber and Forestry Land
Alternative 100.0% 100.0%
Separately Held Investments
Fixed Income 100.0% 100.0%

Investments of the OSU discretely presented component
units are summarized at fair value as follows (in thousands):

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
Investment Type:
Global Equities $ 369,629 $ 503,565
Global Fixed Income 118,551 119,428
Private Equity Partnerships 209,495 170,557
Absolute Returns 83,477 89,611
Real Assets 60,126 48,711
Corporate Stocks and Bonds 13,430 23,586
Real Estate Held for Investments 8,890 8,757
Government Securities and
Municipal Bonds 5,642 6,640
Domestic Equities 6,686 -
Mutual Funds 2,839 -
Investment Receivables (1,185) 249
Cash Equivalents 38,851 12,871
Total Investments $ 916,431 $ 983,975

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of an investment fails to
fulfill its obligations. OSU has separate investment policies
for its operating and endowment assets. As of June 30,
2022, approximately 100 percent of the PUF CBF pool was
subject to credit risk reporting. Fixed income securities in
the PUF CBF rated by the credit agencies as lower medium
to high quality, indicating the issuer has a strong capacity to
pay principal and interest when due, totaled $311,293,863.
Fixed income securities which have not been evaluated by
the rating agencies totaled $14,714,190. The PUF CBF
totaled $326,008,053, of which OSU owned $133,273,926,
or 40.9 percent. Of the OSU endowments managed by the
OSU Foundation and allocated to fixed income, all invest-
ments were held in mutual funds which have not been
evaluated by the rating agencies. Additionally, OSU has
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$36,905,015 of separately managed Board designated
endowments invested in environmentally and socially
responsible equity funds and $10,381,608 in commercially
developed equity investments, none of which are exposed to
credit risk. The university’s separately managed fixed income
securities were rated as follows:

Investment Type AAA AA A BBB Total
Cash & Equivalents $ 14697 $ - $ - $ - $ 14,697
Corporate Bonds 1,150 10,415 46,319 31,932 89,816
Government Related 4,850 - - - 4,850
Municipal Bonds 7,851 22,399 - 30,250
Asset-Backed Securities 17,941 36,621 19,303 73,865
Treasury Notes & Bonds 14,433 - - - 14,433
Total $ 60,922 $ 69,435 $ 65,622 $ 31,932 $ 227,911

As of June 30, 2021, approximately 94.5 percent of the PUF
CBF pool was subject to credit risk reporting. Fixed income
securities in the PUF CBF rated by the credit agencies as
lower medium to high quality, indicating the issuer has a
strong capacity to pay principal and interest when due, to-
taled $223,564,392. Fixed income securities which have not
been evaluated by the rating agencies totaled $31,546,056.
The PUF CBF totaled $270,090,652, of which OSU owned
$104,020,096, or 38.5 percent. Of the OSU endowments
managed by the OSU Foundation and allocated to fixed in-
come, all investments were held in mutual funds which have
not been evaluated by the rating agencies. Additionally, of
the other investment funds of $269,609,953 and the Board
directed endowment of $5,128,013 (separately managed
funds), OSU had $24,959,669 invested in environmentally
and socially responsible equity funds, none of which are
exposed to credit risk.

The university’s separately managed fixed income securities
were rated as follows:

Investment Type AAA AA A BBB Total

Cash & Equivalents $ 9,187 $ - $ - $ - $ 9,187
Corporate Bonds 655 18,614 48,889 31,161 99,319
Government Related 10,720 - - - 10,720
Money Market - 22,101 22,101
Municipal Bonds 10,124 25,072 - 35,196
Asset-Backed Securities 29,836 18,186 16,655 64,677
Treasury Notes & Bonds 8,578 - 8,578

Total $ 69,100 $ 83,973 $ 65544 § 31,161 $249,778

CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK-INVESTMENTS

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that in the
event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the
university will not be able to recover the value of an invest-
ment or collateral securities in the possession of an outside
party. The OIC has no formal policy regarding the holding of
securities by a custodian or counterparty. At June 30, 2022
and 2021, none of the investment securities were uninsured
and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty or
by its trust department or agent but not in the University’s
name.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Concentration of credit risk refers to potential losses if
total investments are concentrated with one or few issuers.
To mitigate the concentration of credit risk in the PUF, no
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more than five percent of the bond portfolio par value will
be invested in securities of a single issuer, and no more than
three percent will be invested in any individual issue, except
for U.S. Government and Agency issues. Per policy, both
the PUF and the separately managed fixed income portfo-
lios held no securities from a single issuer that exceeded
five percent of the bond portfolios. The investment policy
restricts, as of the date of purchase, investment in equities
to no more than 15% of total operating assets, excluding
unspent bond proceeds. The separately managed equity
funds held were below 15% of the total investment portfolio
at the time of the investment for the year ended June 30,
2022 and 2021.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK-INVESTMENTS

Foreign currency risk is the risk that investments may lose
value due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Per PUF
investment policy, all investments are to be in U.S. dollar
denominated securities, therefore no amounts of the PUF
investments had reportable foreign currency risk at June 30,
2022 or 2021.

Of the OSU Endowments invested by the OSU Founda-
tion at June 30, 2022, $14,132,044, or 26.1 percent, were
held subject to foreign currency risk. At June 30, 2021,
$19,208,283, or 31.4 percent were held subject to foreign
currency risk.

Of the separately managed investments at June 30, 2022,
$10,790,502, or 29.2 percent, were held subject to foreign
currency risk. At June 30, 2021, $2,617,250, or 10.5 percent,
were held subject to foreign currency risk

INTEREST RATE RISK

Investments in fixed income securities are subject to the risk
that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of the investments. As of June 30, 2022, securities
held in the PUF CBF subject to interest rate risk totaled
$326,008,053 and had an average duration of 3.70 years.
Securities of the OSU Endowment investments held subject
to interest rate risk totaling $1,989,436 had an average
duration of 4.91 years. Separately managed fixed income
investments held subject to interest rate risk were as
follows:

Duration
Investment Type Fair Value inyears
Cash & Equivalents $ 14,697 0.00
Corporate Bonds 89,816 1.60
Government Related 4,850 0.91
Municipal Bonds 30,250 1.67
Asset-Backed Securities 73,865 1.90
Treasury Notes & Bonds 14,433 244
Total “§ 227,911
Average Duration 1.64
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As of June 30, 2021, securities held in the PUF CBF subject
to interest rate risk totaled $255,110,448 and had an
average duration of 4.04 years. Securities of the OSU
Endowment investments held subject to interest rate risk
totaling $2,334,573 had an average duration of 4.91 years.
Separately managed fixed income investments held subject
to interest rate risk were as follows:

Duration in

Investment Type Fair Value years
Cash & Equivalents $ 9,187 0.00
Corporate Bonds 99,318 1.53
Government Related 10,720 0.82
Money Market 22,101 0.47
Municipal Bonds 35,196 2.33
Asset-Backed Securities 64,678 1.14
Treasury Notes & Bonds 8,578 0.56

Total W

Average Duration 133

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Investments are reported at estimated fair value as deter-
mined by the OST, based on a fair value hierarchy which pri-
oritizes the input techniques used to measure fair value. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements
and the lowest priority to Level 3 measurements:

Level 1 - Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in ac-
tive markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted market prices that are
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly, includ-
ing inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;
and

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable. These are only used
if relevant Level 1 and Level 2 inputs are not available.

Inputs are used in applying valuation techniques and broadly
refer to the assumptions that market participants use to
make valuation decisions, including assumptions about

risk. In addition to the underlying reported net asset values
(NAV), which generally serve as the primary valuation input,
other inputs may include liquidity factors and broad credit
data. An investment’s level within the fair value hierarchy is
based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to
the fair value measurement.

The fair value of OSU’s investments in the PUF CBF are
based on the investments’ net asset value (NAV) per share
provided by the Treasury. Fair value measurements for the
university’s investments in the PUF CBF at June 30, 2022
and 2021 totaled $133,273,926 and $104,020,096, respec-
tively.

The following tables presents OSU’s separately managed
investments by level within the valuation hierarchy as of
June 30, 2022 and 2021:

Assets at fair value as of June 30, 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment Type:
Corporate Bonds $ $ 89,375 § - $ 89,375
Government Related 4,845 4,845
Municipal Bonds 30,162 30,162
Asset-Backed Securities 73,813 73,813
Treasury Notes & Bonds 14,369 14,369
Domestic Equity 35,563 35,563
International Equity 11,588 - 11,588
Timber and Forest Land 10,068 10,068
$ 47,151 $212,564 $ 10,068 $269,783
Cash & Equivalents 14,833
Investments Receivable 649
Total Investments W

Assets at fair value as of June 30, 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment Type:

Corporate Bonds $ $ 98,683 $ - $ 98,683

Government Related 10,706 10,706

Municipal Bonds 35,118 35,118

Asset-Backed Securities 64,612 64,612

Treasury Notes & Bonds 8,576 8,576

Domestic Equity 22,057 - 22,057

International Equity 2,649 - 2,649

Timber and Forest Land 7,848 7,848

$ 24,706 $ 217,695 $ 7,848 $ 250,249
At Amortized Cost:

Money Market Funds 22,082
Cash & Equivalents 9,441
Investments Receivable 814
Total Investments $ 282,586
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COMPONENT UNIT INVESTMENTS BY LEVEL

The following tables present the component unit invest-
ments by level within valuation hierarchy as of June 30, 2022
and 2021:

Assets at fair value as of June 30, 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Pooled Investment

Program $ 227,370 $ - $ $227,370
Other Nonpooled

Investments 39,171 39,171
Total Investments $266,541 $ - 3 $266,541
Real Estate Held for Investment Measured at Cost 8,890
Investments Measured at NAV 641,000
Total Investments $916,431

Assets at fair value as of June 30, 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Pooled Investment

Program $199,413 $ -3 $ 199,413
Other Nonpooled

Investments 53,375 53,375
Total Investments $ 252,788 § - S $ 252,788
Real Estate Held for Investment Measured at Cost 8,757
Investments Measured at NAV 722,430
Total Investments $ 983,975

C. Securities Lending

In accordance with state investment policies, the state
participates in securities lending transactions. The Treasury
has, through a Securities Lending Agreement, authorized
State Street Bank and Trust Company (State Street) to lend
the state’s securities pursuant to a form of loan agreement.
Both the state and borrowers maintain the right to terminate
all securities lending transactions on demand. OSU’s cash on
deposit with the OST is subject to securities lending. There
were no significant violations of the provisions of securities
lending agreements during the years ended June 30, 2022
and 2021.

During the year, State Street had the authority to lend
short-term fixed income and equity securities and receive as
collateral U.S. dollar and foreign currency cash, U.S. govern-
ment and agency securities, and foreign sovereign debt of
Organization of Economic Cooperation and Development
countries. Borrowers were required to deliver collateral for
each loan equal to not less than 102 percent of the market
value of the loaned U.S. security. The custodian did not have
the ability to pledge or sell collateral securities absent a
borrower default, and during the year the state did impose
restrictions on the amount of the loans that the custodian
made on its behalf. The OST is fully indemnified by the cus-
todian against losses due to borrower default. There were
no losses during the year from the failure of borrowers to
return loaned securities.

State Street, as lending agent, has created a fund to re-
invest cash collateral received on behalf of the OSTF and
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Oregon state agencies, including OSU. As permitted under
the fund’s Declaration of Trust (Declaration), participant
purchases and redemptions are transacted at $1 per unit
(“constant value”) based on the amortized cost of the fund’s
investments. Accordingly, the securities lending collateral
held and the obligation to the lending agent are both stated
at constant value on the statement of net position.

The fair value of investments held by the fund is based upon
valuations provided by a recognized pricing service. These
funds are not registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, but the custodial agent is subject to the over-
sight of the Federal Reserve Board and the Massachusetts
Commissioner of Banks. No income from the funds was as-
signed to any other funds.

The maturities of investments made with the cash collat-
eral generally do not match the maturities of the securities
loaned. Since the securities loaned are callable on demand
by either the lender or borrower, the life of the loans at June
30, 2022 and 2021, is effectively one day. As of June 30,
2022 and 2021, the state had no credit risk exposure to bor-
rowers because the amounts owed to borrowers exceeded
the amounts borrowers owed to the state.

The fair value of the university’s share of securities lending
balances on loan comprised the following (in thousands):

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
Investment Type
U.S. Treasury and Agency Securities  $ 533 $ 3,649
Domestic Fixed Income Securities 1,775 1,955
Total $ 2,308 $ 5,604

The fair value of the university’s share of total cash and
securities collateral received as of June 30, 2022 and 2021,
was $1,978,510 and $5,718,539, respectively. The fair value
of the university’s share of investments purchased with cash
collateral as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, was $2,100,113 and
$2,151,335, respectively.

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable, including amounts due from compo-
nent units, comprised the following (in thousands):

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
Student Tuition and Fees $ 44,458 $ 41,728
Federal Grants and Contracts 63,543 51,151
State, Other Government, and Private
Gifts, Grants and Contracts 10,857 13,281
Auxiliary Enterprises and Other
Operating Activities 6,593 5,561
State Capital Construction Grants 7,001 13,439
Component Units 15,718 4,901
Other 7,529 9,229
155,699 139,290
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (6,858) (6,293)
Accounts Receivable, Net $ 148,841  $ 132,997
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4. NOTES RECEIVABLE

Student loans made through the Title IV Federal Perkins
Loan Program are funded through interest earnings and
repayment of loans. Federal Perkins loans deemed uncollect-
ible are assigned to the U.S. Department of Education (ED)
for collection. Due to the termination of the Perkins loan
program by the U.S. Congress, no new loans are allowed to
be made and the federal capital contribution (FCC) portion
of the loan program will be returned to the ED as loans are
collected. See Note 1, Section Y for additional information.
OSU has provided an allowance for uncollectible loans which
is calculated using the cohort default rate reported to the
federal government.

Institutional and other student loans include loans offered
through the university itself and other various non-federal
loan programs.

The installment receivable is due from Link Oregon and re-
sults from the sale of dark fiber infrastructure and telecom-
munications equipment assets initially purchased by OSU
and sold to Link Oregon. Link Oregon is a non-profit con-
sortium of the State of Oregon and the state’s four research
universities - OSU, OHSU, PSU and UO - which will make
high-speed, fiber optic broadband connectivity available to
the state’s public and non-profit sectors.

The split-dollar loans represent related-party loans to former
head baseball coach Pat Casey and current head football
coach Jonathan Smith. See Note 1, Section Z for additional
information.

Notes receivable comprised the following (in thousands):

June 30, 2022
Current Noncurrent Total

Institutional and Other

Student Loans $ 111 $ 303 $ 414
Perkins Loans 1,980 8,909 10,889
Installment Receivable 610 7,318 7,928
Split-Dollar Loans - 2,075 2,075

2,701 18,605 21,306

Less: Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts (157) (678) (835)
Notes Receivable,Net ¢ 2544 §¢ 17,927 $ 20,471

June 30, 2021

Current  Noncurrent Total
Institutional and Other
Student Loans $ 40 $ 418 $ 458
Perkins Loans 2,512 11,595 14,107
Installment Receivable 487 7,330 7,817
Split-Dollar Loans - 1,360 1,360
3,039 20,703 23,742

Less: Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts (196) (858) (1,054)
Notes Receivable, Net $ 2,843 $ 19,845 $ 22,688
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS

The following schedule reflects the changes in capital assets (in thousands):

Balance Transfer Retire. Balance Transfer Retire. Balance
June 30, Completed And June 30, Completed And June 30,
2020 Additions Assets Adjust. 2021* Additions Assets Adjust. 2022

Capital Assets, Non-depreciable/

Non-amortizable:

Land $ 35858 $ 694 $ -3 - $ 36552 $ 554§ -8 - $ 37,106

Capitalized Collections 30,227 81 - - 30,308 68 - (6) 30,370

Construction in Progress 137,827 132,637 (118,977) (91) 151,396 142,089 (135,136) (667) 157,682
Total Capital Assets,

Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable 203,912 133,412 (118,977) (91) 218,256 142,711 (135,136) (673) 225,158
Capital Assets, Depreciable/

Amortizable:

Equipment 247,934 14,029 2,490 (7,983) 256,470 15,406 4,167 (7,686) 268,357

Library Materials 79,645 103 - (2,791) 76,957 80 - (324) 76,713

Buildings 1,629,477 2,812 104,345 - 1,736,634 48,253 118,045 (1,882) 1,901,050

Land Improvements 39,417 1,125 9,998 - 50,540 (59) 6,717 - 57,198

Improvements Other Than Buildings 14,019 32 1,057 - 15,108 259 13 - 15,380

Infrastructure 50,609 668 1,087 (249) 52,115 87 6,194 - 58,396

Intangible Assets 10,504 405 - - 10,909 - - - 10,909

ROU Leased Equipment* - 387 - - 387 126 - (128) 385

ROU Leased Buildings* - 14,695 - - 14,695 169 - - 14,864

ROU Leased Land* - 72 - - 72 - - - 72

Total Capital Assets,

Depreciable/Amortizable 2,071,605 34,328 118,977 (11,023) 2,213,887 64,321 135,136 (10,020) 2,403,324
Less Accumulated Depreciation/
Amortization for:
Equipment (190,217) (15,533) - 7,104 (198,646) (16,349) - 5,732 (209,263)
Library Materials (77,643) (426) - 2,791 (75,278) (365) - 324 (75,319)
Buildings (588,786) (45,545) - 830 (633,501) (47,394) - 2,244 (678,651)
Land Improvements (20,462) (2,783) - (46) (23,291) (3,158) - - (26,449)
Improvements Other Than Buildings (11,454) (507) - - (11,961) (534) - - (12,495)
Infrastructure (26,596) (2,282) - - (28,878) (2,472) - - (31,350)
Intangible Assets (9,779) (161) - - (9,940) (147) - - (10,087)
ROU Leased Equipment* - (144) - - (144) (110) - 128 (126)
ROU Leased Buildings* - (2,272) - - (2,272) (2,327) - - (4,599)
ROU Leased Land* - (5) - - (5) ) - - (14)
Total Accumulated Depreciation/
Amortization (924,937) (69,658) - 10,679 (983,916) (72,865) - 8,428 (1,048,353)
Total Capital Assets, Net $1,350,580 $ 98,082 §$ - § (435) $1,448227 $134,167 $ - $(2,265) $1,580,129
Capital Assets Summary
Capital Assets, Non-depreciable/

Non-amortizable $ 203,912 $133,412 $(118,977) $ (91) $ 218,256 $ 142,711 $(135,136) $ (673) $ 225,158
Capital Assets, Depreciable/

Amortizable 2,071,605 34,328 118,977 (11,023) 2,213,887 64,321 135,136 (10,020) 2,403,324
Total Cost of Capital Assets 2,275,517 167,740 - (11,114) 2,432,143 207,032 - (10,693) 2,628,482
Less Accumulated Depreciation/

Amortization (924,937) (69,658) - 10,679 (983,916) (72,865) - 8,428 (1,048,353)

Total Capital Assets, Net* $1,350,580 $ 98,082 $ - $ (435) $1,448227 $134,167 $ - $(2,265) $1,580,129

*As Restated, see Note 1, Section AC
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6. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources comprised the following (in thousands):

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021*
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension
Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date $ 46,756 $ 49,883
Change in Proportionate Share 39,395 10,401
Difference Between Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 45 82
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience 25,773 19,889
Change in Assumptions 68,924 24,252
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments** - 53,138
OPEB
Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 600 884
Change in Proportionate Share 963 1,978
Difference Between Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 59 69
Change in Assumptions 529 365
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments** - 322
Asset Retirement Obligations 16,875 16,494
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 199,919 $ 177,757
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension
Change in Proportionate Share $ 4513 § 8213
Difference Between Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 15,198 10,320
Change in Assumptions 725 850
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments** 203,826 -
OPEB
Difference Between Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 47 37
Change in Proportionate Share 3,161 1,024
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience 2,189 479
Change in Assumptions 3,279 2,349
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments** 2,586 -
Leases* 69,461 73,167
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources* $ 304,985 $ 96,439

*As Restated, see Note 1, Section AC

**Per GASB, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources arising from the difference between projected and actual earnings on plan
investments are netted and shown as either a net deferred outflow of resources or a net deferred inflow of resources.

7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities comprised the
following (in thousands):

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021

Services and Supplies $ 79,299 $ 57,189
Payroll Related 26,015 23,791
Accrued Interest 10,655 10,923
Salaries and Wages 5,929 5,211
Contract Retainage 5,807 4,619

Total $ 127,705  $ 101,733
8. LEASES

A. Lessee Arrangements

OSU leases office equipment, space and land from external
parties for various terms under long-term non-cancelable
lease agreements. The leases expire at various dates through
fiscal year 2032 and provide for renewal options rang-

ing from one year to five years. In accordance with GASB

Statement No. 87, the university records right-to-use assets
and lease liabilities based on the present value of expected
payments over the lease term of the respective leases. The
expected payments are discounted using the interest rate
charged on the lease, if available, or are otherwise discount-
ed using the university’s incremental borrowing rate. Vari-
able payments are excluded from the valuations unless they
are fixed in substance. The university had no variable lease
expense during fiscal years 2022 or 2021. The university
has multiple leases featuring payments tied to an index or
market rate. The university does not have any leases subject
to a residual value guarantee. OSU has one related-party les-
see arrangement with the OSU Foundation. The university
leases the University Plaza building from the foundation at
market rate with no special considerations included in the
lease terms. The lease is currently set to expire on Decem-
ber 31, 2022 and the university is currently in negotiations
with the foundation to extend the lease. See Note 5 Capital
Assets for information on right-to-use assets and associated
accumulated amortization. See Note 9 Long-Term Liabilities
for future payments schedule.

2022 | Annual Financial Report | 41



EAC-FAC Agenda Item 2a - Attachment 1

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

B. Lessor Arrangements ing located in downtown Portland, OR. The lease terms are
OSU leases office, food service, and educational space and at market rate with no special considerations included in the
land to external parties. The university records lease receiv-  |€ase terms. The lease is set to expire on July 31, 2028. Dur-
ables and deferred inflows of resources based on the present N8 the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 the university
value of expected receipts over the term of the respective recognized lease revenues related to lessor agreements to-
leases. The expected receipts are discounted using the inter- taling $3,737,061 and $3,752,949, respectively. The univer-
est rate charged on the lease or by using the university’s sity also recognized interest revenues totaling $1,574,116

incremental borrowing rate. Variable payments are excluded ~ and $1,604,435, during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022
from the valuations unless they are fixed in substance. OSU ~ and 2021, respectively. Additionally, the university recog-
has one related-party lessor arrangement with the OSU nized variable revenue related to leases totalling $600,655
Foundation. The foundation leases approximately 4,385 and $55,067, durir?g the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022
square feet of office space in the OSU Portland Center build- ~@nd 2021, respectively.

9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liability activity was as follows (in thousands):

Balance Balance Amounts
June 30, June 30, Due Within  Long-Term
2021* Additions Reductions 2022 One Year Portion
Long-Term Debt
Due to the State of Oregon:
Contracts Payable $ 277,637 $ - $ (9512) $ 268,125 § 13,568 $ 254,557
Oregon Department of Energy Loans (SELP) 9,802 - (761) 9,041 785 8,256
Revenue Bonds 623,155 - (366) 622,789 366 622,423
Leases 13,002 2,411 (4,377) 11,036 2,124 8,912
Installment Purchases 8 - ®) - - -
Direct Placement Debt
General Revenue Note 40,000 - - 40,000 - 40,000
Total Long-Term Debt 963,604 2,411 (15,024) 950,991 16,843 934,148
Other Noncurrent Liabilities
Notes Payable 234 - (117) 117 117 -
PERS pre-SLGRP Pooled Liability 20,463 - (2,123) 18,340 2,846 15,494
Compensated Absences 42,035 27,770 (29,548) 40,257 29,637 10,620
Supplemental Retirement Plan 547 1 (60) 488 - 488
Perkins Loan Program Liability 15,244 - (3,107) 12,137 2,207 9,930
Deferred Payroll Taxes Payable 19,686 - (9,846) 9,840 9,840 -
Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities 98,209 27,771 (44,801) 81,179 44,647 36,532
Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 1,061,813 $ 30,182 $ (59,825) $1,032,170 $ 61,490 $ 970,680
Balance Balance Amounts Due
June 30, June 30, Within One  Long-Term
2020 Additions  Reductions 2021* Year Portion
Long-Term Debt
Due to the State of Oregon:
Contracts Payable $ 271,533 $ 145,698 $(139,594) $ 277,637 $ 9,512 $ 268,125
Oregon Department of Energy Loans (SELP) 10,544 - (742) 9,802 753 9,049
Revenue Bonds 320,577 302,945 (367) 623,155 366 622,789
Leases* - 17,291 (4,289) 13,002 2,196 10,806
Installment Purchases 8 - - 8 8 -
Direct Placement Debt
General Revenue Note 40,000 - 40,000 - 40,000
Total Long-Term Debt 642,662 465,934 (144,992) 963,604 12,835 950,769
Other Noncurrent Liabilities
Note Payable 351 - (117) 234 117 117
PERS pre-SLGRP Pooled Liability 23,375 - (2,912) 20,463 2,685 17,778
Compensated Absences 35,469 28,990 (22,424) 42,035 22,488 19,547
Supplemental Retirement Plan 477 70 - 547 - 547
Perkins Loan Program Liability 17,864 - (2,620) 15,244 2,710 12,534
Deferred Payroll Taxes Payable 7,071 12,615 - 19,686 9,843 9,843
Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities 84,607 41,675 (28,073) 98,209 37,843 60,366
Total Long-Term Liabilities* $ 727,269 $ 507,609 $ (173,065) $ 1,061,813 $ 50,678 $ 1,011,135

*As Restated, see Note 1, Section AC
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The schedule of principal and interest payments for OSU debt is as follows (in thousands):

Contracts, Bonds and Other Borrowings

Direct Placement
General Revenue Note

Contracts Revenue Total
For the Year Ending June 30, Payable SELP Bonds Leases Principal  Interest Principal Interest Payments
2023 $ 21878 $ 1,163 § 23063 $ 2281 $ 16477 § 31,908 $ - $ 608 $ 48993
2024 24,795 1,164 23,063 2,006 19,690 31,338 40,000 704 91,732
2025 24,484 1,163 23,063 1,784 19,651 30,843 - - 50,494
2026 24,535 1,163 23,063 1,744 20,127 30,378 50,505
2027 23,348 1,164 23,063 1,771 19,455 29,891 49,346
2028-2032 105,049 5,353 115,313 1,961 86,618 141,058 227,676
2033-2037 73,405 - 115,313 - 61,278 127,440 188,718
2038-2042 40,207 115,313 36,731 118,789 155,520
2043-2047 8,362 236,433 139,755 105,040 244,795
2048-2052 - 252,903 179,500 73,403 252,903
2053-2057 219,658 179,685 39,973 219,658
2058-2062 131,796 123,260 8,536 - - 131,796
$902,227 $768597 $ 40,000 § 1,312
Total Future Debt Service 346,063 11,170 1,302,044 11,547 41,312 1,712,136
Less: Interest Component of Future Payments (77,938) (2,129) (688,019) (511) (1,312) (769,909)
Principal Portion of Future Payments 268,125 9,041 614,025 11,036 40,000 942,227
Adjusted by:
Net Unamortized Bond Premiums - 8,764 - 8,764
Total Long-Term Debt $ 268,125 § 9,041 § 622,789 $§ 11,036 $ 40,000 $ 950,991

OSU has multiple sources of financing for capital construc-
tion projects and other purposes. The state periodically
issues bonded debt which it then loans to the university for
capital construction. OSU has entered into contractual loan
agreements with the state for the repayment of principal
and interest amounts due. In addition, OSU may also bor-
row funds from the Oregon Department of Energy through
the Small-scale Energy Loan Program (SELP). The state may
periodically issue new debt to refund previously held debt.
Per the contract and loan agreements, when this occurs the
state is required to pass the savings on to the university.
OSU may also issue Revenue bonds as authorized by ORS
351.369.

A. Contracts Payable

OSU has entered into contractual loan agreements with the
state for repayment of debt instruments issued by the state
on behalf of OSU for capital construction and refunding of
previously issued debt. OSU makes loan payments (principal
and interest) to the state in accordance with the loan agree-
ments. In the event of default, the state may withhold future
disbursements of state general fund appropriations up to
the amount of default. Loans, with interest rates ranging
from 0.07 percent to 5.38 percent, are due serially through
2044.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, changes to
OSU'’s contracts payable included debt service payments
for principal of $9,339,645 and the deduction of $172,483
for the amortization of accreted interest applicable to zero
coupon bonds sold prior to 2002.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the state issued
$2,945,000 of Series 2020N XI-F(1) Tax Exempt bonds and

$97,415,000 of Series 20200 XI-F(1) Taxable bonds on
behalf of OSU for the refunding of previously held debt. The
bonds have an effective rate of 1.94 percent, and are due
serially through 2044. The state also issued $7,070,000 of
Series 2021H XI-F(1) Tax Exempt bonds and $38,225,000
of Series 20211 XI-F(1) Taxable bonds on behalf of OSU for
the refunding of previously held debt. The bonds have an
effective rate of 1.94 percent, and are due serially through
2043. The refunding of previously held debt will ultimately
save the university $17,402,942 over the next 24 years,
with 95 percent of the savings front-loaded to the first four
years of debt service payments. Savings were front loaded
by the state in order to assist the university with cash flow
and liquidity during uncertain times in light of the COVID-19
pandemic. The new issuances and refunding of previously
held debt resulted in a net increase of $17,480,385 in
contracts payable. Other changes to OSU’s contracts
payable to the state during fiscal year ended June 30, 2021,
included debt service payments for principal of $11,007,583
and the addition and deduction of $13,692 and $382,009,
respectively, for the amortization of accreted interest
applicable to zero coupon bonds sold prior to 2002.

B. Oregon Department of Energy Loans
OSU has entered into loan agreements with the Oregon
Department of Energy (DOE) Small-scale Energy Loan Pro-
gram (SELP) for energy conservation projects. OSU makes
monthly loan payments (principal and interest) to the DOE
in accordance with the loan agreements. Upon event of
default, the lender may accelerate the due date and declare
balance due immediately. The projects funded by the loan
serve as security for the debt. SELP loans, with interest rates
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ranging from 4.01 percent to 4.35 percent, are due through
fiscal year 2032.

C. Revenue Bonds

General Revenue Bonds, with bullet maturities, are due in
fiscal years 2043 through 2060 and have effective yields
ranging from 3.25 percent to 5.00 percent.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, OSU did not
issue any new General Revenue Bonds. Changes to the
revenue bond liability during fiscal year 2022 included the
amortization of $366,406 in bond premium.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, OSU issued
$302,945,000 par value of taxable General Revenue Bonds.
The General Revenue Series 2020 taxable bonds were sold
at par. The bonds will be due serially between 2053 and
2060 and have an effective rate of 3.42 percent. Bond pro-
ceeds will be used to provide operational liquidity and fund
capital construction. Other changes to the revenue bond
liability during fiscal year 2021 included the amortization of
$366,858 in bond premium.

0. Direct Placement Debt - General

Revenue Note
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, OSU entered
into a private placement debt agreement with JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A. for $40,000,000 to provide interim financ-
ing for university purposes. The debt has a bullet maturity
due in fiscal year 2024 and a fixed interest rate. The loan
agreement contains a provision that in an event of default,
the Bank may assess an additional percentage to the annual
interest rate on all outstanding obligations. Repayment of
the loan will come from the general revenues of the univer-
sity.

E. Note Payable
OSU has a promissory note to pay Samaritan Health Ser-
vices, Inc. a total of $585,892 in five equal annual payments

of $117,178 with the payments due through fiscal year 2023.

The note arises from billing and payment errors between
the university and Samaritan Health Services. There is no
interest charged on the note. As of June 30, 2022, $117,178
remains to be paid.

F. State and Local Government Rate Pool
Prior to the formation of the PERS State and Local Govern-
ment Rate Pool (SLGRP), state and community colleges were
pooled together in the State and Community College Pool
(SCCP), and local government employers participated in

the Local Government Rate Pool (LGRP). These two pools
combined to form the SLGRP effective January 1, 2002, at
which time a transitional pre-SLGRP Pooled Liability was
created. The pre-SLGRP Pooled Liability is essentially a debt
owed to the SLGRP by the SCCP employers. The balance

of the pre-SLGRP Pooled Liability attributable to the state
is being amortized over the period ending December 31,
2027. The liability is allocated by the state, based on sala-

44 | Oregon State University

ries and wages, to all public universities, state proprietary
funds and the government-wide reporting fund in the state’s
annual comprehensive financial report. OSU paid interest
expense on the liability in the amounts of $2,191,755 and
$1,696,046 for June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Princi-
pal payments of $2,123,420 and $2,912,001 were applied to
OSU’s liability for June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

G. Supplemental Retirement Plan

OSU participates in a supplemental retirement plan for
eligible employees who have been designated to become

a participant in the plan. The university has recorded an
investment for the non-vested balance managed by TIAA

as well as an offsetting liability for the amount that will be
payable to the employee upon completion of their contract.
See Note 16 Employee Retirement Plans, Section B Other
Retirement Plans for additional information.

H. Perkins Loan Program Liabhility

During fiscal year 2018, OSU established a liability for the
Federal Capital Contributions (FCC) received from the U.S.
Department of Education (ED) which funded the Perkins
loan program. With the close-out of the Perkins loan pro-
gram, the FCC is due back to the ED. OSU has elected to
continue to collect on these loans and will return the FCC to
the ED as it is collected. See Note 1 Organization and Sum-
mary of Significant Accounting Policies, Section Y Perkins
Loan Program Termination for additional information.

|. Deferred Payroll Taxes Payable

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES)
Act, passed by Congress in March 2020, permits employers
to defer the deposit and payment of the employer’s por-
tion of social security taxes that otherwise would be due
between March 27, 2020 and December 31, 2020. Employ-
ers are allowed to submit half of these deferred payments
by December 31, 2021 and the other half by December

31, 2022. OSU elected to defer these payments in order to
gain the interest earnings on the cash deposits. As of June
30, 2022 OSU has deferred payments totaling $9,839,508,
which are due in fiscal year 2023.

10. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 83, Nuclear Regula-
tory Commission (NRC) regulations, and Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) regulations, OSU reported an asset
retirement obligation (ARO) liability of $21,040,000 and
$20,685,280 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. The remaining unamortized deferred outflow
equaled $16,875,455 and $16,494,034, respectively, for
2022 and 2021.
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Teaching, Research, Isotopes, General Atomics (TRIGA)
Reactor

In 1967, the university installed the Oregon State TRIGA
Reactor (OSTR). The reactor is housed in the OSU Radiation
Center and is primarily used for training students, perform-
ing various research projects and producing isotopes. The
OSTR is licensed by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
(NRC), which sets forth requirements that the university
must adhere to, including those related to the decommis-
sioning and retirement of the OSTR. See NRC regulations
specific to decommissioning obligations at: www.nrc.gov/
waste/decommissioning/reg-guides-comm/regulations.
html

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, OSU reported
an ARO liability of $21,040,000 and $20,120,000, respec-
tively, related to the OSTR. The remaining unamortized
deferred outflow equaled $16,875,455 and $16,494,034,
respectively, for 2022 and 2021. Both the liability and
deferred outflow increased in fiscal year 2022 due to an
updated annual estimate of the cost to decommission the
asset. The method and assumptions used to measure the ob-
ligation were those set forth by the NRC in the series publi-
cation NUREG-1307, Revision 16 and 17. In November 2013,
the university replaced the reflector component of the OSTR
thereby extending the reactor’s useful life by approximately
40 years. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the OSTR had an
estimated remaining useful life of 31.3 years and 32.3 years,
respectively. Per the licensing agreement held between OSU
and the NRC, OSU was required to submit a statement of
intent regarding decommissioning funds. On July 31, 2007,
OSU submitted such a letter stating that when a decision is
made to terminate the facility license and decommission the
facility, the university will request legislative appropriation
of funds, or otherwise provide funds sufficiently in ad-

vance of decommissioning to prevent the delay of required
activities. As of June 30, 2022, the university has made no
decision to terminate the facility license nor made plans to
decommission the facility. As such, no request for legislative
funding has been made and no university assets have been
restricted for payments related to the OSTR ARO liability.

OSU Physical Plant Underground Storage Tank (UST)

In 1954, OSU installed an underground storage tank (UST)
to fuel the operations of its Physical Plant heating facility,
located on the university’s Corvallis campus. The heating
facility provided energy to most campus buildings until 2009
when the new OSU Energy Center was brought online. As
the heating facility and the UST are no longer in service, the
university has made plans to re-purpose the property upon
which the heating facility and UST were located, and accord-
ingly must remove the UST from the ground. The university
removed the UST during fiscal year 2022.

All USTs are regulated by the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA). The EPA enforces regulations over the opera-
tion, maintenance, reporting, record keeping, installation
and closure of all USTs. Per 40 CFR 280.70 of the EPA UST
regulations, OSU must empty and clean the UST by remov-
ing all liquids, dangerous vapor levels, and accumulated
sludge. This work must be carried out carefully by trained
professionals who follow standard safety practices. See EPA
regulations over USTs at: www.epa.gov/ust/underground-
storage-tanks-usts-laws-and-regulations

As a result of the removal of the UST during fiscal year 2022,
the university reported no ARO liability for the UST as of
June 30, 2022. For the year ended June 30, 2021 the univer-
sity reported an ARO liability for the UST of $565,280. Bids
from vendors who adhere to the EPA standard safety prac-
tices were used to calculate the ARO liability for the UST.

11. UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION

Unrestricted net position is comprised of the following (in
thousands):

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021

University Operations $ 239,624 $ 162,253
Net Pension Liability, Net of

Deferrals (See Notes 6 & 16) (318,701) (313,638)
Compensated Absences Liability (33,672) (34,949)
State and Local Government Rate

Pool Liability (See Note 9) (18,340) (20,463)
Other Post-Employment Benefits

Liabilities, Net of Deferrals

(See Notes 6 & 17) (11,234) (15,486)
Asset Retirement Obligation, Net of

Deferrals (See Notes 6 & 10) (4,165) (4,191)
Total Unrestricted Net Position $ (146,488) $ (226,474)

12. PLEDGED GENERAL REVENUES

The university implemented a General Revenue Bond Pro-
gram in 2015 to provide funding for capital construction and
other related projects. As security for this debt, OSU has
pledged general revenues which include student tuition and
fees, auxiliary enterprise revenues, education department
sales and services and other university operating revenues,
with certain exclusions as shown in the table below. Net
pledged general revenues is calculated by deducting exclud-
ed and restricted revenues from total operating revenues,
and adding beginning unrestricted net position adjusted for
the excluded items.
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Pledged revenues are as follows (in thousands):

13. INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

June 30, June 30, . . .
2022 2021 Investment Activity detail is as follows (in thousands):
June 30, June 30,
Total Operating Revenues $ 891,808 $ 812,705 2022 2021
(Less):
Student Building Fees (2,910) (2,977) Royalties and Technology Transfer
Student Incidental Fees (29,444) (27,900) Income $ 6,873 $ 4,552
Federal Grants and Contracts (239,794) (252,356) Investment Earnings 3,442 3,326
State and Local Grants and Contracts (12,640) (10,831) Endowment Income 1,869 1,786
Nongovernmer?tal Grants and Qontracts (27,258) (23,143) Net Appreciation (Depreciation) of
Amounts Required to be Deposited or
Paid for University-Paid State Bonds (21,987) (18,161) Investments (17,580) 14,560
Plus: Gain (Loss) on Sale of Investments (1,463) 1,958
Adjusted Beginning Unrestricted Net Interest Income 677 1,500
Position, Restated (232,539) (186,682) Total Investment Activity $ (6,182 $ 27,682
General Revenues Pledged to Repay
Revenue Bonds $ 325,236  $ 290,655

14. OPERATING EXPENSES BY NATURAL CLASSIFICATION

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position reports operating expenses by their functional classifica-
tion. The reporting of the net pension liability and OPEB liabilities/(asset) as per GASB Statement Nos. 68, 71 and 75,
significantly affects the reported compensation and benefit expenses of OSU. Changes in the pension and OPEB expenses
and associated reporting requirements changed the reported compensation and benefit expenses of OSU by ($7,818,442)
and $60,424,416 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The following displays operating expenses
by both the functional and natural classifications (in thousands):

Compensation

Services and

Scholarshipsand Depreciation and

June 30, 2022 and Benefits Supplies Fellowships Amortization Other Total
Instruction $ 296,117 $ 25923 § 81 § 101 $ 203 $ 322,425
Research 153,992 65,064 3,158 44 20 222,278
Public Services 91,200 70,597 1,974 95 1,050 164,916
Academic Support 64,933 22,620 14 33 87,600
Student Services 30,727 5,611 9 1 40 36,388
Auxiliary Services 83,154 76,902 5,020 18,452 - 183,528
Institutional Support 86,200 36,371 1) 1,943 2 124,515
Operation & Maint. of Plant 17,977 22,641 - 213 40,831
Student Aid 29 33 49,926 - 331 50,319
Other 255 14,389 - 51,983 66,627
Total $ 824,584 $ 340,151 $ 60,181 $ 72,865 $ 1,646 $ 1,299,427
Compensation Servicesand  Scholarships and  Depreciation and
June 30, 2021 and Benefits Supplies Fellowships Amortization Other Total
Instruction $ 298,145 $ 19,270 $ 57 § 92 § 109 $ 317,673
Research 158,697 65,532 2,877 36 17 227,159
Public Services 97,436 79,085 1,066 92 921 178,600
Academic Support 71,205 20,549 2 33 - 91,789
Student Services 32,557 3,712 3 - 9 36,281
Auxiliary Services 79,771 51,938 3,986 18,045 153,740
Institutional Support 77,622 35,920 4 1,943 25 115,514
Operation & Maint. of Plant 20,633 20,068 - 214 40,915
Student Aid 24 (680) 36,650 - 412 36,406
Other 4,653 5,914 - 49,203 59,770
Total $ 840,743 $ 301,308 $ 44,645 $ 69,658 $ 1,493 $ 1,257,847
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15. GOVERNMENT APPROPRIATIONS

OSU receives support from the state in the form of General
Fund and Lottery appropriations. These appropriations are

in support of the operations of the university and SELP debt
service. Appropriations for SELP debt service are based on
the loan agreements between the university and the Oregon
Department of Energy. Additionally, OSU receives state
general fund, state forest product harvest tax (Harvest Tax),
federal appropriations, and county appropriations in support
of operations of the statewide public services, which include
the agricultural experiment stations, cooperative exten-

sion services and forestry research laboratories. OSU also
receives lottery appropriations in support of outdoor school
operations for middle school children, which the cooperative
extension service administers on behalf of the state.

Government appropriations comprised the following (in
thousands):

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
General Fund - Education & General $ 157,293 $ 153,062
General Fund - Statewide Public Services 77,817 69,651
General Fund - SELP Debt Service 1,054 1,072
Lottery Funding - Outdoor School 24,709 23,890
Lottery Funding - Sports Lottery 603 579
Harvest Tax 3,392 3,217
Total State Appropriations $ 264,868 § 251,471
Federal Appropriations 8,872 10,323
County Appropriations 13,957 12,876
Total Appropriations $ 287,697 $ 274,670

16. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

Oregon State University offers various defined benefit and
defined contribution retirement plans to qualified employees
as described below.

A. Public Employees Retirement Plan
(PERS])

ORGANIZATION

The university participates with other state agencies in the
Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (System),
which is a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit
plan. Plan assets may be used to pay the benefits of the
employees of any employer that provides pensions through
the plan. PERS is administered in accordance with Oregon
Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 238, Chapter 238A, and In-
ternal Revenue Code Section 401(a). The Oregon Legislature
has delegated authority to the Public Employees Retirement
Board (PERS Board) to administer and manage the System.

PLAN MEMBERSHIP

PERS memberships prior to January 1, 1996 are Tier One
members. The 1995 Oregon Legislature enacted Chapter
654, Section 3, Oregon Laws 1995, which has been codified
into ORS 238.435. This legislation created a second tier of
benefits for those who established membership on or after
January 1, 1996. The second tier does not have the Tier One

assumed earnings rate guarantee and has a higher normal
retirement age of 60, compared to 58 for Tier One. Both Tier
One and Tier Two are defined benefit plans.

The 2003 Legislature enacted HB 2020, codified as ORS
238A, which created the Oregon Public Service Retirement
Plan (OPSRP). OPSRP consists of the Pension Program De-
fined Benefit (DB) and the Individual Account Program (IAP).
The IAP is a defined contribution plan. Membership includes
public employees hired on or after August 29, 2003.

Beginning January 1, 2004, PERS active Tier One and Tier
Two members became members of IAP of OPSRP. PERS
members retained their existing Defined Benefit Plan ac-
counts, but member contributions are now deposited into
the member’s IAP account, not into the member’s Defined
Benefit Plan account. Accounts are credited with earnings
and losses, net of administrative expenses. OPSRP is part of
PERS and is administered by the PERS Board.

PENSION PLAN REPORT

The PERS defined benefit and defined contribution retire-
ment plans are reported as pension trust funds in the fidu-
ciary funds combining statements and as part of the Pension
and Other Employee Benefit Trust in the State of Oregon
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. PERS issues a
separate, publicly available audited financial report that may
be obtained by writing to the Public Employees Retirement
System, Fiscal Services Division, PO Box 23700, Tigard,

OR 97281-3700. The report may also be accessed online

at: www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/Financials/Actuarial-
Financial-Information.aspx

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Employers participating in the Plan are required to report
pension information in their financial statements for fiscal
periods beginning on or after June 15, 2014, in accordance
with GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Re-
porting for Pensions—an amendment of GASB Statement No.
27.

The requirements of this Statement incorporate provisions
intended to reflect the effects of transactions and events
related to pensions in the measurement of employer li-
abilities for pensions and recognition of pension expense
and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions.

SYSTEM BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Contributions for employers are recognized on the accrual
basis of accounting. Employer contributions to PERS are
calculated based on creditable compensation for active
members reported by employers. Employer contributions are
accrued when due pursuant to legal requirements.

PROPORTIONATE SHARE ALLOCATION METHODOLOGY
The basis for the employer’s proportion of the statewide
plan is actuarially determined by comparing the employer’s
projected long-term contribution effort to the Plan with the
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total projected long-term contribution effort of all employ-
ers. The contribution rate for every employer has at least
two major components: Normal Cost Rate and Unfunded
Actuarial Liability (UAL) Rate.

PENSION PLAN LIABILITY

The components of the Plan’s collective net pension liability
as of the measurement dates of June 30, 2021 and 2020 are
as follows (dollars in millions):

June 30, June 30,
Collective Plan: 2021 2020
Total Pension Liability $ 96,298 § 90,143
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 84,331 68,319
Plan Net Pension Liability $ 11,967 $ 21,824

CHANGES SUBSEQUENT TO THE MEASUREMENT DATE
The university is not aware of any changes to benefit terms
or actuarial methods and assumptions subsequent to the
June 30, 2021 measurement date.

OREGON PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
(PERS) PENSION (CHAPTER 238) PROGRAM

PENSION BENEFITS

The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life.
There are 13 retirement benefit options a retiring employee
may select from. These options include survivorship benefits
and lump-sum refunds. The basic benefit is based on years of
service and final average salary. A percentage (1.67 percent
for general service employees) is multiplied by the number
of years of service and the final average salary. Benefits may
also be calculated under either a formula plus annuity (for
members who were contributing before August 21, 1981)

or a money match computation if a greater benefit results.
Monthly payments must be a minimum of $200 per month
or the member will receive a lump-sum payment of the actu-
arial equivalence of benefits to which he or she is entitled.

A member is considered vested and will be eligible at
minimum retirement age for a service retirement allowance
if he or she has had a contribution in each of five calendar
years or has reached at least 50 years of age before ceasing
employment with a participating employer. General Ser-
vice employees may retire after reaching age 55. Tier One
general service employee benefits are reduced if retirement
occurs prior to age 58 with fewer than 30 years of service.
Tier Two members are eligible for full benefits at age 60. The
ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is closed to
new members hired on or after August 29, 2003.

DEATH BENEFITS

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary re-
ceives a lump-sum refund of the member’s account balance
(accumulated contributions and interest). In addition, the
beneficiary will receive a lump-sum payment from employer
funds equal to the account balance provided one or more of
the following conditions are met:

48 | Oregon State University

« The member was employed by a PERS employer at the
time of death.

e The member died within 120 days after termination of
PERS-covered employment.

e The member died as a result of injury sustained while
employed in a PERS-covered job.

o The member was on an official leave of absence from a
PERS-covered job at the time of death.

DISABILITY BENEFITS

A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who
becomes disabled from other than duty-connected causes
may receive a non-duty disability benefit. A disability result-
ing from a job-incurred injury or illness qualifies a member
for disability benefits regardless of the length of PERS-cov-
ered service. Upon qualifying for either a non-duty or duty
disability, service time is computed to age 58 when deter-
mining the monthly benefit.

BENEFIT CHANGES AFTER RETIREMENT

Members may choose to continue participation in a vari-
able equities investment account after retiring and may
experience annual benefit fluctuations due to changes in the
market value of equity investments.

Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefits are adjusted annually
through cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs). The COLA is
capped at 2.0 percent.

OREGON PUBLIC SERVICE RETIREMENT PLAN (OP-
SRP DB) PENSION PROGRAM

PENSION BENEFITS

The OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer con-
tributions. Benefits are calculated with the following formula
for members who attain normal retirement age: 1.5 percent
is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final
average salary. Normal retirement age for general service
members is age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of retirement
credit.

A member of the pension program becomes vested on the
earliest of the following dates: the date the member com-
pletes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years,
the date the member reaches normal retirement age, and if
the pension program is terminated, the date on which termi-
nation becomes effective.

DEATH BENEFITS

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or
other person who is constitutionally required to be treated
in the same manner as the spouse, receives for life 50 per-
cent of the pension that would otherwise have been paid to
the deceased member.

DISABILITY BENEFITS

A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement
credits before the member becomes disabled or a member
who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall receive
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a disability benefit of 45 percent of the member’s salary
determined as of the last full month of employment before
the disability occurred.

BENEFIT CHANGES AFTER RETIREMENT

Under ORS 238A.210 monthly benefits are adjusted annu-
ally through COLAs. The cap on the COLA varies based on
1.25 percent on the first $60,000 of annual benefit and 0.15
percent on annual benefits above $60,000.

OREGON PUBLIC SERVICE RETIREMENT PLAN (OP-
SRP IAP) PENSION PROGRAM

BENEFIT TERMS

The IAP is an individual account-based program under the
PERS tax-qualified governmental plan as defined under
ORS 238A.400. An IAP member becomes vested on the
date the employee account is established or on the date
the rollover account was established. If the employer makes
optional employer contributions for a member, the member
becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the
date the member completes 600 hours of service in each

of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal
retirement age, the date the IAP is terminated, the date the
active member becomes disabled, or the date the active
member dies. The accounts fall under Internal Revenue Code
Section 401(a).

Upon retirement, a member of the IAP may receive the
amounts in his or her employee account, rollover account,
and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or

in equal installments over a 5-, 10-, 15-, 20-year period

or an anticipated life span option. Installment amounts
vary with market returns as the account remains invested
while in distribution. When chosen, the distribution option
must result in a $200 minimum distribution amount, or the
frequency of the installments will be adjusted to reach that
minimum.

DEATH BENEFITS

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary
receives in a lump sum the member’s account balance,
rollover account balance, and vested employer optional
contribution account balance. If a retired member dies
before the installment payments are completed, the
beneficiary may receive the remaining installment payments
or choose a lump-sum payment.

CONTRIBUTIONS

PERS and OPSRP employee contribution requirements are
established by ORS 238.200 and ORS 238A.330, respective-
ly, and are credited to an employee’s account in the IAP and
may be amended by an act of the Oregon Legislature. The
PERS and OPSRP funding policies provide for monthly em-
ployer contributions at actuarially determined rates. These
contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll,
are intended to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due. This funding policy applies to the PERS Defined
Benefit Plan and the Other Post-Employment Benefit Plans.

Effective January 1, 2020, Senate Bill 1049 requires em-
ployers to pay contributions on re-employed PERS retirees’
salaries as if they were active members, excluding IAP (6
percent) contributions.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the university
funded a PERS side account totaling $10,000,000 which
represents approximately 2.2 percent of the university’s un-
funded actuarial liability as of June 30, 2021. PERS contrib-
uted a $2,225,203 matching contribution to the university’s
side account. This side account does not impact employee
benefits received under PERS; instead, it represents a pre-
payment of OSU’s on-going contributions. The university
will see the benefit of a lower employer contribution rate
over the next 10 years as the account is amortized. Effective
December 1, 2020, the university’s employer contribution
rate was reduced by 0.57 percent due to the side account.

Employer contribution rates for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2022 were based on the December 31, 2019 actuarial
valuation. Employer contribution rates for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2021 were based on the December 31, 2017
actuarial valuation. The employer contribution rates for
PERS and OPSRP are as follows:

2022 2021
Base Tier One/Two Rate 21.03% 19.05%
SLGRP Rate 1.52% 1.71%
RHIA and RHIPA OPEB Rate 0.33% 0.45%
Side Account Offset Rate -0.57% -0.57%
Total PERS Tier One/Two Rate 22.31% 20.64%
Base OPSRP Rate 17.12% 12.77%
SLGRP Rate 1.52% 1.71%
RHIA and RHIPA OPEB Rate 0.17% 0.27%
Side Account Offset Rate -0.57% -0.57%
Total OPSRP Rate 18.24% 14.18%

The university’s required employer contributions for PERS
and OPSRP for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
were $51,670,719 and $45,375,470, respectively, including
amounts to fund employer specific liabilities.

FEDERAL CIVIL SERVICE RETIREMENT

Some OSU Extension Service employees hold federal ap-
pointments. Prior to December 31, 1986, federal appointees
were required to participate in the Federal Civil Service
Retirement System (CSRS), a defined benefit plan. CSRS em-
ployees are subject to the Hospital Insurance portion of the
Federal Insurance Contributions Act (FICA), CSRS employee
deduction of 7.0 percent, and employer contribution of 7.0
percent, and are also eligible for optional membership in
PERS.

The Federal Employees Retirement System (FERS), a defined
benefit plan, was created beginning January 1, 1987. Employ-
ees on federal appointment hired after December 31, 1983
were automatically converted to FERS. Other federal em-
ployees not covered by FERS had a one-time option to trans-
fer to FERS up to December 31, 1987. New FERS employees
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contribute 0.8 percent with an employer contribution rate of
13.7 percent. FERS employees are not eligible for member-
ship in PERS and they contribute at the full FICA rate.

The university’s required employer contributions for CSRS
and FERS for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, were
$233,924 and $240,480, respectively.

NET PENSION LIABILITY

At June 30, 2022, the university reported a liability of
$275,331,939 for its proportionate share of the PERS net
pension liability. The net pension liability as of June 30,
2022 was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pen-
sion liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31,
2019, rolled forward to the measurement date. At June 30,
2021, the university reported a liability of $451,899,608 for
its proportionate share of the PERS net pension liability. The
net pension liability as of June 30, 2021 was measured as of
June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to calcu-
late the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of December 31, 2018, rolled forward to the
measurement date.

Beginning in fiscal year 2022, OSU receives an agency-
specific proportionate share allocation directly from PERS as
a result of the university’s contributions to its independent
side account. At June 30, 2022, OSU’s proportion was 2.30
of the statewide pension plan. Through fiscal year 2021, the
PERS system did not provide OSU an audited proportionate
share as a separate employer; the university was allocated

a proportionate share of PERS employer state agencies. The
state Department of Administrative Services (DAS) calculat-
ed OSU’s proportionate share of all state agencies internally
based on actual contributions by OSU in relation to the total
for employer state agencies. The Oregon Audits Division
reviewed this internal calculation. At June 30, 2021, OSU’s
proportion was 2.07 percent of the statewide pension plan.

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, OSU recorded
total pension expense of $41,818,944 and $100,358,533,
respectively, due to the change in net pension liability,
changes to deferred outflows and deferred inflows, and
amortization of previously deferred amounts.

DEFERRED ITEMS

Most deferred items are calculated at the system-wide level
and are allocated to employers based on their proportionate
share. However, changes in employer proportion and the
difference between employer contributions, proportionate
share of contributions and contributions subsequent to the
measurement date are calculated at the employer level. For
fiscal years ending June 30, 2022 and 2021, deferred items
include:

« Difference between expected and actual experience

« Changes in assumptions
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» Net difference between projected and actual pension plan
investment earnings

« Changes in employer proportion since the prior
measurement date

 Adifference between employer contributions and
proportionate share of contributions

 Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Differences between expected and actual experience,
changes in assumption, and changes in employer proportion
are amortized over the average remaining service lives of all
plan participants, including retirees, determined as of the
beginning of the respective measurement period. Employ-
ers are required to recognize pension expense based on the
balance of the closed period “layers” attributable to each
measurement period.

The average remaining service lives determined as of the
beginning of each measurement period are as follows:

e Measurement period ended June 30, 2021 - 5.4 years
« Measurement period ended June 30, 2020 - 5.3 years
e Measurement period ended June 30, 2019 - 5.2 years
« Measurement period ended June 30, 2018 - 5.2 years
» Measurement period ended June 30, 2017 - 5.3 years

The difference between projected and actual pension plan
investment earnings attributable to each measurement
period is amortized over a closed five-year period.

One year of amortization is recognized in the university’s
total pension expense for fiscal years 2022 and 2021.

At June 30, 2022, OSU reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources (in thousands):

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference Between Expected and
Actual Experience $ 25773 §$ -
Change in Assumptions 68,924 (725)
Net Difference Between Projected and
Actual Earnings on Pension Plan
Investments (203,826)
Change in Proportionate Share 39,395 (4,513)
Differences Between Contributions
and Proportionate Share of
Contributions 45 (15,198)
Total $ 134,137 $ (224,262)
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of
Resources before Contributions
Subsequent to the Measurement
Date (MD) (90,125)
Contributions Subsequent to the MD 46,756

Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of
Resources after Contributions

Subsequent to the MD $ (43,369)
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Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources,
$46,755,930 are related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023.

As of June 30, 2022, other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as
follows (in thousands):

Year Ended June 30:

2023 $  (16,353)
2024 (15,726)
2025 (22,896)
2026 (43,556)
2027 8,406

$  (90,125)

At June 30, 2021, OSU reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources (in thousands):

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of  Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference Between Expected and
Actual Experience § 19889 $ -
Change in Assumptions 24,252 (850)
Net Difference Between Projected and
Actual Earnings on Pension Plan
Investments 53,138 -
Change in Proportionate Share 10,401 (8,213)
Differences Between Contributions
and Proportionate Share of
Contributions 82 (10,320)
Total $ 107,762  $(19,383)
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of
Resources before Contributions
Subsequent to the Measurement
Date (MD) 88,379
Contributions Subsequent to the MD 49,883
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of
Resources after Contributions
Subsequent to the MD $ 138,262

Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources,
$49,883,413 are related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date and are recognized as a reduction of the
net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2022.

ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS

The following methods and assumptions were used in the
development of the total pension liability:

Actuarial Methods:

As of:

Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Experience Study Report
Actuarial Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Inflation Rate

Long-Term Expected Rate
of Return

Discount Rate

Projected Salary Increases

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
December 31, 2019 | December 31, 2018
June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
2018, published July 2019
Entry Age Normal

2.40 percent 2.50 percent

6.90 percent 7.20 percent

6.90 percent 7.20 percent

3.40 percent 3.50 percent
Blend of 2.00% COLA and graded
COLA (1.25%/0.15%) in accordance
with Moro decision; blend based on
service

Cost of Living Adjustments
(COLA)

Healthy retirees and beneficiaries:
Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex distinct,
generational with Unisex, Social
Security Data Scale, with job category
adjustments and set-backs as described
in the valuation.

Active members:

Pub-2010 Employee, sex distinct,
generational with Unisex, Social
Security Data Scale, with job category
adjustments and set-backs as described
in the valuation.

Mortality

Disabled retirees:
Pub-2010 Disabled Retiree, sex
distinct, generational with Unisex,
Social Security Data Scale, with job
category adjustments and set-backs as
described in the valuation.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates

of the value of projected benefits and assumptions about
the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially
determined amounts are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared to past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are
performed as of December 31 of even numbered-years.

DISCOUNT RATE

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability
at June 30, 2022 was 6.90 percent and at June 30, 2021 was
7.20 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine
the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members and those of the contributing employers are made
at the contractually required rates, as actuarially deter-
mined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fidu-
ciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The sensitivity analysis shows the sensitivity of the univer-
sity’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to
changes in the discount rate. The following presents the
university’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
calculated using the discount rate of 6.90 and 7.20 percent
as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, as well as what
the university’s proportionate share of the net pension liabil-
ity would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher
than the current rate (in thousands):

June 30,2022 | Jjune 30, 2021

SSODZEZ%Si $§ 540,968 | $ 671,034
Currg.n;olz/is}?;g;,reate 275,332 451,900
2 o0nrBa0% 53327 | 268146

DEPLETION DATE PROJECTION

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Report-
ing for Pensions—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27,
generally requires that a blended discount rate be used to
measure the total pension liability (the actuarial accrued
liability calculated using the individual entry age normal cost
method). The long-term expected return on plan invest-
ments may be used to discount liabilities to the extent that
the plan’s fiduciary net position (fair market value of assets)
is projected to cover benefit payments and administrative
expenses. A 20-year high quality (AA/Aa or higher) munici-
pal bond rate must be used for periods where the fiduciary
net position is not projected to cover benefit payments and
administrative expenses. Determining the discount rate
under GASB Statement No. 68 will often require that the
actuary perform complex projections of future benefit pay-
ments and pension plan investments. GASB Statement No.
68 (paragraph 67) does allow for alternative evaluations of
projected solvency, if such evaluation can reliably be made.
GASB Statement No. 68 does not contemplate a specific
method for making an alternative evaluation of sufficiency; it
is left to professional judgment.

The following circumstances justify an alternative evaluation
of sufficiency for Oregon PERS:

« Oregon PERS has a formal written policy to calculate
an actuarially determined contribution (ADC), which is
articulated in the actuarial valuation report.

« The ADC is based on a closed, layered amortization
period, which means that payment of the full ADC each
year will bring the plan to a 100 percent funded position
by the end of the amortization period if future experience
follows assumptions.

« GASB Statement No. 68 specifies that the projections
regarding future solvency assume that plan assets earn the
assumed rate of return and there are no future changes in
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the plan provisions or actuarial methods and assumptions,
which means that the projections would not reflect any
adverse future experience that might impact the plan’s
funded position.

Based on these circumstances, it is the independent actu-
ary’s opinion that the detailed depletion date projections
outlined in GASB Statement No. 68 would clearly indicate
that the fiduciary net position is always projected to be suf-
ficient to cover benefit payments and administrative expens-
es. As such, the long-term expected rate of return was used
to discount the liability.

ASSUMED ASSET ALLOCATION

Asset Class/ Strategy | Low Range [High Range| OIC Target
Debt Securities 15.00 % 25.00 % 20.00 %
Public Equity 27.50 37.50 32.50
Private Equity 14.00 21.00 17.50
Real Estate 9.50 15.50 12.50
Alternative Investments 7.50 17.50 15.00
Opportunity Portfolio 0.00 5.00 0.00
Risk Parity 0.00 2.50 2.50
Total 100 %

LONG-TERM EXPECTED RATE OF RETURN

To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-
term expected rate of return assumption, in June 2021 the
PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by
both Milliman’s capital market assumptions team and the
OIC investment advisors. Each asset assumption is based

on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes
adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions
are not based on historical returns, but instead are based on
a forward-looking capital market economic model. The table
on the next page shows a summary of long-term expected
rate of return by asset class. For more information on the
Plan’s portfolio, assumed asset allocation, and the long-term
expected rate of return for each major asset class, calculated
using both arithmetic and geometric means, see PERS’
audited annual comprehensive financial reports at:
www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/Financials/Actuarial-
Financial-Information.aspx
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LONG-TERM EXPECTED RATE OF RETURN BY ASSET
CLASS

Compound
Asset Class Target | Annual Return
(Geometric)
Global Equity 30.62% 5.85%
Private Equity 25.50 7.71
Core Fixed Income 23.75 2.73
Real Estate 12.25 5.66
Master lemlted 075 571
Partnerships
Infrastructure 1.50 6.26
Commodities 0.63 3.10
Hedge Funds of Funds - 125 511
Multistrategy
Hedge Fund Equity - Hedge 0.63 531
Hedge Fund - Macro 5.62 5.06
US Cash -2.50 1.76
Assumed Inflation - Mean | 2.40%

BOND DEBT

The retirement bond debt service assessment was autho-
rized by the Oregon Legislature in 2003 to sell general
obligation bonds in the amount of $2 billion to pay a PERS
unfunded actuarial liability. This action reduced the PERS
contribution rate for PERS covered employers in the state
actuarial pool in November 2003.

The Oregon Department of Administrative Services coor-
dinates the debt service assessments to PERS employers to
cover the bond debt service payments. PERS employers are
assessed a percentage of PERS-subject payroll to fund the
payments. The assessment rate is adjusted periodically over
the life of the twenty-four year debt repayment schedule.

The payroll assessment for the pension obligation bond
began in May 2004. The assessment rate for fiscal years
2022 and 2021 was 5.60 percent. Payroll assessments paid
by OSU for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
were $15,744,390 and $15,372,150, respectively.

B. Other Retirement Plans
OPTIONAL RETIREMENT PLAN

The 1995 Oregon Legislature enacted legislation that autho-

rized the public universities in the state to offer a defined
contribution retirement plan as an alternative to PERS. A
Retirement Plan Committee was appointed to administer
the Optional Retirement Plan (ORP) and named trustees to
manage plan assets placed with mutual funds and insurance
companies.

Beginning April 1, 1996, the ORP was made available to
university academic and administrative faculty. Employees
choosing the ORP may invest the employee and employer
contributions in one of two investment companies, either
Fidelity or the Teacher’s Insurance Annuity Association
(TIAA).

The ORP consists of four tiers. Membership under ORP
Tier One and Tier Two is determined using the same date
of entry criteria as PERS. The third tier is determined by

the date of entry applicable to the OPSRP. Employees hired
on or after July 1, 2014 who elected the ORP are Tier Four
members. The first contributions for Tier Four were payable
January 2015, after six-months of qualifying service.

Tier Four is a departure from the other three tiers. The
employee is entitled to an employer contribution plus a
“match” contribution based on the employee’s participation
in the voluntary 403(b) investment plan. The employer
contribution is fixed at 8 percent by plan rules and is
unaffected by PERS rates, unlike the other tiers. The employ-
er provides an ORP match contribution equal to 403(b)
deferrals up to a 4 percent maximum. Under the ORP Tiers
One, Two and Three, the employee’s contribution rate is 6
percent and is paid by the employer. The employer contribu-
tion rates for the ORP are as follows:

2022 2021
Tier One/Two 26.30% 27.20%
Tier Three 9.63% 9.85%
Tier Four 8.00% 8.00%

OREGON PUBLIC UNIVERSITIES 401(A) DEFINED
CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Eligible ranked faculty participate in the TIAA retirement
program, a defined contribution plan, on all salary in excess
of $4,800 dollars per calendar year. Employee and employer
contributions are directed to PERS on the first $4,800 of
salary. The contribution to TIAA annuities are supplemental
to PERS. To participate in this retirement option, employ-
ees must have been hired on or before September 9, 1995.
This plan was closed to new enrollment at the time the ORP
started in 1996. The legacy plan, Oregon University System
401(a) Defined Contribution Plan, document was amended
and restated July 1, 2015, and the Plan Sponsor is now the
Board of Trustees for the University of Oregon.

FEDERAL CIVIL SERVICE RETIREMENT - THRIFT SAV-
INGS PLAN

OSU Extension Service employees that hold federal appoint-
ments can also participate in a Thrift Savings Plan (TSP) with
an automatic employer contribution of 1 percent. Employ-
ees may also contribute to this plan at variable rates up to
the limit set by the Internal Revenue Service, in which case
the employer contributes at a variable rate up to 5 percent.
CSRS employees are also eligible for participation in the TSP
but without employer contributions.

SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT PLANS (SRP)

OSU participates in a supplemental retirement plan for
eligible employees who have been designated to become a
participant in the plan. The supplemental plan has two parts:
a 403(b) defined contribution plan and a 415(m) excess
benefit arrangement. Investments of the 403(b) plan and
the 415(m) arrangement are managed by TIAA and directed
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by the employee. The university has recorded an investment
for the non-vested balance managed by TIAA as well as an
offsetting liability for the amount that will be payable to the
employee upon completion of their contract.

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the
university did not make any contributions to the 415(m) ar-
rangement or to the employees’ 403(b) plan.

SUMMARY OF OTHER PENSION PAYMENTS
OSU’s total payroll for the year ended June 30, 2022 was
$551,997,741, of which $223,759,759 was subject to defined
contribution retirement plan contributions. The following
schedule lists pension payments made by OSU for the fiscal
year (in thousands):

June 30, 2022

As a % of As a % of
Employer Covered Employee Covered
Contribution Payroll Contribution Payroll
ORP $ 16,139 7.21% $ 12,373 5.53%
TIAA 45 0.02 45 0.02
FERS - TSP 63 0.03 152 0.07
Total $ 16,247 7.26% $ 12,570 5.62%

Of the employee share, OSU paid $10,194,614 of the ORP
and $44,931 of the TIAA employee contributions on behalf
of their employees during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2022. The FERS-TSP contributions of $152,453 represents
employee contributions to the TSP for FERS employees that
were matched from one to five percent by the employer in
fiscal year 2022.

OSU’s total payroll for the year ended June 30, 2021 was
$518,385,554, of which $213,137,834 was subject to
defined contribution retirement plan contributions. The
following schedule lists pension payments made by OSU for
the fiscal year (in thousands):

June 30, 2021

As a % of As a % of
Employer Covered Employee Covered
Contribution Payroll Contribution Payroll
ORP $ 16,748 7.86% $ 11,831 5.55%
TIAA 54 0.03 54 0.03
FERS - TSP 69 0.03 172 0.08
Total $ 16,871 7.92% $ 12,057 5.66%

Of the employee share, OSU paid $9,846,330 of the ORP
and $53,953 of the TIAA employee contributions on behalf
of their employees during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2021. The FERS-TSP contributions of $172,119 represents
employee contributions to the TSP for FERS employees that
were matched from one to five percent by the employer in
fiscal year 2021.
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17. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
(OPEB)

A. Public Employees Retirement Plans
(PERS])

PLAN DESCRIPTION

The Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) Board
contracts for health insurance coverage on behalf of eligible
PERS members. Eligible retirees pay their own age-adjusted
premiums. To help retirees defray the cost of these premi-
ums, PERS also administers two separate defined benefit
other post-employment benefit (OPEB) plans: the Retire-
ment Health Insurance Account (RHIA) and the Retiree
Health Insurance Premium Account (RHIPA). Only Tier One
and Tier Two PERS members are eligible to participate in the
RHIA and RHIPA plans. (Refer to Note 16 for details con-
cerning Tier One and Tier Two membership in PERS.)

The RHIA is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined ben-
efit OPEB plan in which the university participates. Estab-
lished under Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 238.420, the
plan provides a payment of up to $60 toward the monthly
cost of health insurance for eligible PERS members. To be eli-
gible to receive the RHIA subsidy, the member must (1) have
eight years or more of qualifying service in PERS at the time
of retirement or receive a disability allowance as if the mem-
ber had eight years or more of creditable service in PERS,

(2) receive both Medicare parts A and B coverage, and (3)
enroll in a PERS-sponsored health plan. A surviving spouse
or dependent of a deceased PERS retiree who was eligible to
receive the subsidy is eligible to receive the subsidy if he or
she (1) is receiving a retirement benefit or allowance from
PERS or (2) was insured at the time the member died and
the member retired before May 1, 1991. The Legislature has
sole authority to amend the benefit provisions and employer
obligations for the RHIA plan.

Established under ORS 238.415, the RHIPA is considered a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan
for financial reporting purposes. The plan provides payment
of the average difference between the health insurance
premiums paid by retired state employees under contracts
entered into by the PERS Board, and health insurance pre-
miums paid by state employees who are not retired. PERS
members are qualified to receive the RHIPA subsidy if they
have eight or more years of qualifying service in PERS at the
time of retirement or receive a disability pension calculated
as if they had eight or more years of qualifying service, but
are not eligible for federal Medicare coverage. A surviving
spouse or dependent of a deceased retired state employee
is eligible to receive the subsidy if he or she (1) is receiv-

ing a retirement benefit or allowance from PERS or (2)

was insured at the time the member died and the member
retired on or after September 29, 1991. The Legislature has
sole authority to amend the benefit provisions and employer
obligations of the RHIPA plan.



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

EAC-FAC Agenda Item 2a - Attachment 1

Both RHIA and RHIPA are closed to employees hired on or
after August 29, 2003, who had not established membership
prior to that date.

OPEB PLANS REPORT

The PERS RHIA and RHIPA defined benefit OPEB plans are
reported separately under Other Employee Benefit Trust
Funds in the fiduciary funds combining statements and as
part of the Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust in the
state’s annual comprehensive financial report. PERS issues

a separate, publicly available financial report that includes
audited financial statements and required supplementary
information. The report may be obtained by writing to

the Public Employees Retirement System, Fiscal Services
Division, PO Box 23700, Tigard, OR 97281-3700. The report
may also be accessed online at: www.oregon.gov/pers/
Pages/Financials/Actuarial-Financial-Information.aspx

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Employers participating in RHIA and RHIPA plans are re-
quired to report OPEB information in their financial state-
ments for fiscal periods beginning on or after June 15, 2017,
in accordance with GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Post-employment Benefits Other Than
Pensions.

The requirements of this Statement incorporate provisions
intended to reflect the effects of transactions and events
related to OPEB in the measurement of employer liabilities
for OPEB and recognition of OPEB expense and deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The financial statements for the PERS OPEB plans are
prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Employer
contributions to PERS are calculated based on creditable
compensation for active members reported by employers.
Employer contributions are accrued when due pursuant to
legal requirements.

PROPORTIONATE SHARE ALLOCATION
METHODOLOGY

The basis for the employer’s proportion of the statewide
plan is determined by comparing the employer’s actual,
legally required contributions made to the Plan during the
fiscal year with the total actual contributions made by all
employers in the fiscal year.

OPEB TOTAL PLAN (ASSET) LIABILITY

The components of the collective Net OPEB liability (asset)
for the OPEB plans as of the measurement dates of June 30,
2021 and June 30, 2020 are as follows (in millions):

June 30, June 30,

Net OPEB - RHIA (Asset) 2021 2020
Total OPEB - RHIA Liability $ 409.5 $ 406.9
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 752.9 610.7
Plan Net OPEB - RHIA (Asset) $(343.4) § (203.8)
Net OPEB - RHIPA Liability/(Asset)

Total OPEB - RHIA Liability $§ 629 $ 643
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 78.4 54.3
Plan Net OPEB - RHIA Liability $ (15.5) $ 10.0

CHANGES SUBSEQUENT TO THE MEASUREMENT
DATE

The university is not aware of any changes to benefit terms
or actuarial methods and assumptions subsequent to the
June 30, 2021 measurement date.

CONTRIBUTIONS
Both of the OPEB plans administered by PERS are funded
through actuarially determined employer contributions.

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the uni-
versity contributed 0.05 and 0.06 percent, respectively, of
PERS-covered payroll for Tier One and Tier Two plan mem-
bers to fund the normal cost portion of RHIA benefits. The
university’s required employer contributions for the years
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were approximately $34,780
and $43,056, respectively. The actual contribution equaled
the annual required contribution for the year.

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the uni-
versity contributed 0.11 and 0.12 percent, respectively, of
PERS-covered payroll for Tier One and Tier Two plan mem-
bers to fund the normal cost portion of RHIPA benefits. In
addition, the university contributed 0.17 and 0.27 percent,
respectively, of all PERS-covered payroll to amortize the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability over a fixed period with
new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities amortized over 20
years. The university’s required employer contributions for
the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were approximately
$564,834 and $840,953, respectively. The actual contribu-
tion equaled the annual required contribution for the year.

NET OPEB ASSET/LIABILITY

a. RHIA

At June 30, 2022, the university reported an asset of
$8,464,774 for its proportionate share of the RHIA net
OPEB asset. The net OPEB asset as of June 30, 2022 was
measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total OPEB asset
used to calculate the net OPEB asset was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2019. At June 30,
2021, the university reported an asset of $1,369,345 for its
proportionate share of the RHIA net OPEB asset. The net
OPEB asset as of June 30, 2021 was measured as of June 30,
2020, and the total OPEB asset used to calculate the net

2022 | Annual Financial Report | 55



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

EAC-FAC Agenda Item 2a - Attachment 1

OPEB asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
December 31, 2018. The PERS system does not provide OSU
an audited proportionate share as a separate employer; the
university is allocated a proportionate share of PERS em-
ployer state agencies. The state Department of Administra-
tive Services (DAS) calculated OSU’s proportionate share of
all state agencies internally based on actual contributions by
OSU as compared to the total for employer state agencies.
The Oregon Audits Division reviewed this internal calcula-
tion. At June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, OSU’s proportion
was 2.46 and 0.67 percent of the statewide OPEB plan,
respectively.

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, OSU recorded
OPEB related expense of ($1,747,961) and $729,652, respec-
tively, due to changes in the net RHIA OPEB asset, deferred
outflows and deferred inflows, and amortization of previ-
ously deferred amounts.

b. RHIPA

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the university reported a
asset of $1,129,001 for its proportionate share of the RHIPA
net OPEB asset. The net OPEB asset as of June 30, 2022 was
measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total OPEB liability
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2019. For the year
ended June 30, 2021, the university reported a liability of
$742,213 for its proportionate share of the RHIPA net OPEB
liability. The net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2021 was mea-
sured as of June 30, 2020, and the total OPEB liability used
to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an ac-
tuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018. The PERS system
does not provide OSU an audited proportionate share as a
separate employer; the university is allocated a proportion-
ate share of PERS employer state agencies. DAS calculated
OSU’s proportionate share of all state agencies internally
based on actual contributions by OSU as compared to the
total for employer state agencies. The Oregon Audits Divi-
sion reviewed this internal calculation. At June 30, 2022 and
June 30, 2021, OSU’s proportion was 7.29 and 7.44 percent,
respectively, of the statewide OPEB plan.
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For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, OSU recorded
OPEB related expense of ($224,170) and $97,439, respec-
tively, due to changes in the net RHIPA OPEB liability/(as-
set), deferred outflows and deferred inflows, and amortiza-
tion of previously deferred amounts.

DEFERRED ITEMS

a. RHIA

Most deferred items are calculated at the system-wide level
and are allocated to employers based on their proportionate
share. However, changes in employer proportion and the dif-
ference between employer contributions and proportionate
share of contributions are calculated at the employer level.
For fiscal years ending June 30, 2022 and 2021, deferred
items include:

- Difference between expected and actual experience
- Difference due to changes in assumptions

» Net difference between projected and actual OPEB plan
investment earnings

« Changes in employer proportion since the prior
measurement date

 Adifference between employer contributions and
proportionate share of contributions

« Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Differences between expected and actual experience,
changes in assumption, and change in employer proportion
are amortized over the average remaining service lives of all
plan participants, including retirees, determined as of the
beginning of the respective measurement period. Employ-
ers are required to recognize OPEB expense based on the
balance of the closed period “layers” attributable to each
measurement period.

The average remaining service lives determined as of the
beginning of the measurement period are as follows:

« Measurement period ended June 30, 2021 - 2.7 years
« Measurement period ended June 30, 2020 - 2.9 years
« Measurement period ended June 30, 2019 - 3.1 years
e Measurement period ended June 30, 2018 - 3.3 years

The difference between projected and actual OPEB plan in-
vestment earnings attributable to each measurement period
is amortized over a closed five-year period.

One year of amortization is recognized in the university’s
total OPEB expense for fiscal years 2022 and 2021.
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At June 30, 2022, OSU reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to RHIA
OPEB from the following sources (in thousands):

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of  Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference Between Expected and
Actual Experience $ - $ 0 (239)
Change in Assumptions 166 (126)
Net Difference Between Projected and
Actual Earnings on OPEB Plan
Investments (2,012)
Change in Proportionate Share 893 (2,203)
Difference Between Contributions
and Proportionate Share of
Contributions 1 (20)
Total $ 1,060 $ (4,596)
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of
Resources before Contributions
Subsequent to the Measurement
Date (MD) (3,536)
Contributions Subsequent to the MD 35
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of
Resources after Contributions
Subsequent to the MD $ (3,501)

Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources,
$34,780 are related to contributions subsequent to the mea-
surement date and will be recognized as an increase of the
net OPEB asset in the year ended June 30, 2023.

As of June 30, 2022, other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to RHIA OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as
follows (in thousands):

Year Ended June 30:

2023 $ (1,122)
2024 (1,319)
2025 (459)
2026 (636)

$  (3,536)

At June 30, 2021, OSU reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to RHIA
OPEB from the following sources (in thousands):

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of  Inflows of
Resources Resources

Difference Between Expected and

Actual Experience $ -3
Change in Assumptions -
Net Difference Between Projected and

Actual Earnings on OPEB Plan

Investments 153 -
Change in Proportionate Share 1,886 (48)
Difference Between Contributions

and Proportionate Share of

Contributions 7

Total $ 2,046

Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of

Resources before Contributions

Subsequent to the Measurement

Date (MD) 1,769

Contributions Subsequent to the MD 43
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of

Resources after Contributions
Subsequent to the MD $

(140)
(73)

(16)
(277)

1,812

Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources,
$43,056 are related to contributions subsequent to the mea-
surement date and are recognized as an increase of the net
OPEB asset in the year ended June 30, 2022.

b. RHIPA

Most deferred items are calculated at the system-wide level
and are allocated to employers based on their proportionate
share. However, changes in employer proportion and the dif-
ference between employer contributions and proportionate
share of contributions are calculated at the employer level.
For fiscal years ending June 30, 2022 and 2021, deferred
items include:

« Difference between expected and actual experience
« Difference due to changes in assumptions

 Net difference between projected and actual OPEB plan
investment earnings

« Changes in employer proportion since the prior
measurement date

- Difference between employer contributions and
proportionate share of contributions

« Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Differences between expected and actual experience,
changes in assumptions, and change in employer proportion
are amortized over the average remaining service lives of all
plan participants, including retirees, determined as of the
beginning of the respective measurement period. Employ-
ers are required to recognize OPEB expense based on the
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balance of the closed period “layers” attributable to each
measurement period.

The average remaining service lives determined as of the
beginning of the measurement period are as follows:

» Measurement period ended June 30, 2021 - 6.2 years
» Measurement period ended June 30, 2020 - 6.4 years
» Measurement period ended June 30, 2019 - 6.7 years
» Measurement period ended June 30, 2018 - 6.9 years
» Measurement period ended June 30, 2017 - 7.2 years

The difference between projected and actual OPEB plan
investment earnings attributable to each measurement
period is amortized over a closed five-year period.

One year of amortization is recognized in the university’s
total OPEB expense for fiscal years 2022 and 2021.

At June 30, 2022, OSU reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
RHIPA OPEB from the following sources (in thousands):

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference Between Expected and
Actual Experience $ - $ (499)
Change in Assumptions 82 (398)
Net Difference Between Projected and
Actual Earnings on OPEB Plan
Investments - (574)
Change in Proportionate Share 8 (137)
Difference Between Contributions
and Proportionate Share of
Contributions 13 (24)
Total $ 103  $ (1,632)
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of
Resources before Contributions
Subsequent to the Measurement
Date (MD) (1,529)
Contributions Subsequent to the MD 565
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of
Resources after Contributions
Subsequent to the MD $ (964)

Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources,
$564,834 are related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of
the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2023.
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As of June 30, 2022, other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to RHIPA OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense
as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended June 30:

2023 $ (353)
2024 (349)
2025 (349)
2026 (366)
2027 (103)
Thereafter %9

$  (1,529)

At June 30, 2021, OSU reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
RHIPA OPEB from the following sources (in thousands):

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference Between Expected and
Actual Experience $ -3 (281)
Change in Assumptions 18 (499)
Net Difference Between Projected and
Actual Earnings on OPEB Plan
Investments 169 -
Change in Proportionate Share 10 (141)
Difference Between Contributions
and Proportionate Share of
Contributions 17 a7)
Total $ 214 $ (938)
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of
Resources before Contributions
Subsequent to the Measurement
Date (MD) (724)
Contributions Subsequent to the MD 841
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of
Resources after Contributions
Subsequent to the MD $ 117

Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources,
$840,953 are related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date and are recognized as a reduction of the
net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2022.
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ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS The following key methods and assumptions were used to
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of ~ measure the total RHIPA OPEB liability:
the value of projected benefits and assumptions about the Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:
probability of events far into the future. Actuarially deter- RHIPA
mined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
results are compared to past expectations and new esti- Valuation Date December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
mates are made about the future. Experience studies are Measurement June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
performed as of December 31 of even numbered years. The Date
following key methods and assumptions were used to Experience Study 2018, published July 2019
measure the total RHIA OPEB asset: Report
_ _ Actuarial Assumptions:
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Actuarial Cost
RHIA Method Entry Age Normal
June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 Inflation Rate 2.40 percent 2.50 percent
Valuation Date December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018 Long-Term
MeaSL.Jrement Date June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 Expected Rate of 6.90 percent 7.20 percent
Ez’;zrr'fnce Study 2018, published July 2019 Return
Actuarial Assumptions: D|s§ount Rate 6.90 percent 7.20 percent
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal r;:::::g Salary 3.40 percent 3.50 percent
Inflation Rate 2.40 percent 2.50 percent
8-14 Years of Service: 10%
Long-Term Expected 6.90 percent 7.20 percent Retiree 15-19 Years of Service: 15%
Rate of Return o
Discount Rate 6.90 percent 7.20 percent Heal'thcar.e 20-24 Years of Serv!ce: 19%
Projected Salary Participation 25-29 Years of SerY|ce: 26%
3.40 percent 3.50 percent 30+ Years of Service: 34%
plakit Applied at beginning of  |Applied at beginning of
E::;;ep;iejrl]thcare Healthy retirees: 32%; Disabled retirees: 20% plan year, starting with plan year, starting with
Healthcare Cost Trend _ 7.1% for 2019, decreasing |7.1% for 2019, decreasing
Rate Not applicable Healthcare Cost [to 4.9% for 2025, to 5.0% for 2022,
Healthy retirees and beneficiaries: Trend Rate increasing to S.O% for increasing to 5.9% for
Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex distinct, generational 2036,.and decreasing to 2031,.and decreasing to
with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job an ultimate rate of 4.0% [an ultimate rate of 4.1%
category adjustments and set-backs as described in for 2074 and beyond. for 2094 and beyond.
the valuation Healthy retirees and beneficiaries:
Active members: Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex distinct, generational
Pub-2010 Employee, sex distinct, generational with with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job
Mortality Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category category adjustments and set-backs as described in
adjustments and set-backs as described in the the valuation
valuation Active members:
Disabled retirees: Pub-2010 Employee, sex distinct, generational with
Pub-2010 Disabled Retiree, sex distinct, generational| |Mortality Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category
with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job adjustments and set-backs as described in the
category adjustments and set-backs as described in valuation
the valuation Disabled retirees:
Pub-2010 Disabled Retiree, sex distinct, generational
with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job
category adjustments and set-backs as described in
the valuation

DISCOUNT RATE

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liabil-
ity/(asset) at June 30, 2022 and 2021 was 6.90 and 7.20
percent, respectively. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions
from contributing employers are made at the contractually
required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those
assumptions, the OPEB plans’ fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term

2022 | Annual Financial Report | 59



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

EAC-FAC Agenda Item 2a - Attachment 1

expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments for the
OPEB Plans was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The sensitivity analysis below shows the sensitivity of the
university’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/
(asset) calculated using the discount rate of 6.90 and 7.20
percent as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, as well
as what the net OPEB liability/(asset) would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is one percent lower or
one percent higher than the current rate (in thousands):

RHIA RHIPA
June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30,
2022 2021 2022 2021

Discount Rate

1% Decrease
5.90%/6.20%
Current Discount Rate
6.90%/7.20%

1% Increase
7.90%/8.20%

$(7,486)| $(1,106)| $ (844)| $ 1,043

(8,465)| (1,369)| (1,129) 742

(9,301) (1,595)| (1,396) 462

The sensitivity analysis below shows the sensitivity of the
university’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/
(asset) calculated using the current healthcare cost trend
rates, as well as what the net OPEB liability/(asset) would be
if it were calculated using healthcare trend rates that are one
percentage point lower, or one percentage point higher than
the current rates (in thousands):

RHIA RHIPA

Healthcare Cost Rate | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30,
2022 2021 2022 2021

1% Decrease $(8,465)| $(1,369)| $(1,511)| $ 523
Current Trend Rate (8,465) (1,369)| (1,129) 742
1% Increase (8,465) (1,369) (702) 1,022

ASSUMED ASSET ALLOCATION

Asset Class/ Strategy Low Range |High Range| OIC Target
Debt Securities 15.00 % 25.00 % 20.00 %
Public Equity 27.50 37.50 32.50
Private Equity 14.00 21.00 17.50
Real Estate 9.50 15.50 12.50
Alternative Investments 7.50 17.50 15.00
Opportunity Portfolio 0.00 5.00 0.00
Risk Parity 0.00 2.50 2.50
Total 100 %

LONG-TERM EXPECTED RATE OF RETURN

To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-
term expected rate of return assumption, in June 2021 the
PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by
both Milliman’s capital market assumptions team and the
OIC investment advisors. Each asset assumption is based
on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes
adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions
are not based on historical returns, but instead are based
on a forward-looking capital market economic model. The
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table below shows a summary of long-term expected rate

of return by asset class. For more information on the Plan’s
portfolio, assumed asset allocation, and the long-term
expected rate of return for each major asset class, calculated
using both arithmetic and geometric means, see PERS’
audited financial statements at: www.oregon.gov/pers/
Pages/Financials/Actuarial-Financial-Information.aspx

Long-term expected rate of return by asset class is as
follows:

Compound
Asset Class Target Annual
Return
(Geometric)
Global Equity 30.62% 5.85%
Private Equity 25.50 7.71
Core Fixed Income 23.75 2.73
Real Estate 12.25 5.66
Master lemlted 0.75 5.71
Partnerships
Infrastructure 1.50 6.26
Commodities 0.63 3.10
Hedge Funds of Funds - 125 511
Multistrategy
Hedge Fund Equity - Hedge 0.63 531
Hedge Fund - Macro 5.62 5.06
US Cash -2.50 1.76
Assumed Inflation - Mean | | 2.40%

DEPLETION DATE PROJECTION

GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, generally
requires that a blended discount rate be used to measure the
Total OPEB Liability (the Actuarial Accrued Liability calcu-
lated using the Individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method).
The long-term expected return on plan investments may be
used to discount liabilities to the extent that the plan’s Fidu-
ciary Net Position (fair market value of assets) is projected
to cover benefit payments and administrative expenses. A
20-year high quality (AA/Aa or higher) municipal bond rate
must be used for periods where the Fiduciary Net Position
is not projected to cover benefit payments and administra-
tive expenses. Determining the discount rate under GASB
Statement No. 75 will often require that the actuary perform
complex projections of future benefit payments and asset
values. GASB Statement No 75 (paragraph 82) does allow
for alternative evaluations of projected solvency, if such
evaluation can reliably be made. GASB does not contem-
plate a specific method for making an alternative evaluation
of sufficiency; it is left to professional judgment.

The following circumstances justify an alternative evaluation
of sufficiency for Oregon PERS:

« Oregon PERS has a formal written policy to calculate
an actuarially determined contribution (ADC), which is
articulated in the actuarial valuation report.
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» The ADC is based on a closed, layered amortization
period, which means that payment of the full ADC each
year will bring the plan to a 100 percent funded position
by the end of the amortization period if future experience
follows assumptions.

« GASB Statement No. 75 specifies that the projections
regarding future solvency assume that plan assets earn the
assumed rate of return and there are no future changes in
the plan provisions or actuarial methods and assumptions,
which means that the projections would not reflect any
adverse future experience that might impact the plan’s
funded position.

Based on these circumstances, it is the independent actu-
ary’s opinion that the detailed depletion date projections
outlined in GASB Statement No. 75 would clearly indicate
that the fiduciary net position is always projected to be suf-
ficient to cover benefit payments and administrative expens-
es. As such, the long-term expected rate of return was used
to discount the liability.

B. Public Employees’ Benefit Board (PEBB]

PLAN DESCRIPTION

OSU participates in a defined benefit post-employment
healthcare plan administered by the Public Employees Ben-
efit Board (PEBB). This plan offers healthcare assistance to
eligible retired employees and their beneficiaries. Chapter
243 of the Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) gives PEBB the
authority to establish and amend the benefit provisions of
the PEBB Plan. The PEBB Plan is considered a cost-sharing
multiple-employer plan for financial reporting purposes and
has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria
in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75. PEBB does not
issue a separate, publicly available financial report.

The PEBB Plan allows qualifying retired employees to
continue their “active” health insurance coverage on a self-
pay basis until they are eligible for Medicare. Participating
retirees pay their own monthly premiums. However,

the premium amount is based on a blended rate that is
determined by pooling the qualifying retirees with active
employees, thus, creating an “implicit rate subsidy.”

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Employers participating in PEBB are required to report OPEB
information in their financial statements for fiscal periods
beginning on or after June 15, 2017, in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions.

The requirements of this Statement incorporate provisions
intended to reflect the effects of transactions and events
related to OPEB in the measurement of employer liabilities
and recognition of OPEB expense and deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources.

PROPORTIONATE SHARE ALLOCATION
METHODOLOGY

The basis for the employer’s proportion is determined by
comparing the employer’s actual contributions made during
the fiscal year with the total actual contributions made by all
employers in the fiscal year.

TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY

At June 30, 2022, the university reported a liability of
$11,716,997 for its proportionate share of the total OPEB
liability. The total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2022 was
measured as of June 30, 2022, and was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021. At June 30, 2021, the
university reported a liability of $14,472,485 for its propor-
tionate share of the total OPEB liability. The total OPEB lia-
bility as of June 30, 2021 was measured as of June 30, 2021,
and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,
2019. PEBB does not provide OSU an audited proportionate
share as a separate employer; the university is allocated a
proportionate share of PEBB participating employers. DAS
calculated OSU’s proportionate share of all participating
employers internally based on actual contributions by OSU
as compared to the total for participating employers. The
Oregon Audits Division reviewed this internal calculation.
At June 30, 2022 and 2021, OSU’s proportion was 9.50 and
9.58 percent, respectively, of participating employers.

For the year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, OSU re-
corded total PEBB OPEB related expense of $576,144 and
$958,454, respectively, due to the changes to the total
OPEB liability and deferred inflows, and amortization of
previously deferred amounts.

DEFERRED ITEMS

Most deferred items are calculated at the system-wide level
and are allocated to employers based on their proportionate
share. However, changes in employer proportion is calcu-
lated at the employer level. For the measurement period
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 there were:

« Differences between expected and actual experience
« Differences due to changes in assumptions

« Changes in employer proportion since the prior
measurement date

- Differences between employer contributions and
proportionate share of contributions

Changes in assumption and changes in employer proportion
are amortized over the closed period equal to the average
expected remaining service lives of all covered active and
inactive participants. Employers are required to recognize
OPEB expense based on the balance of the closed period
“layers” attributable to each measurement period. The
weighted average expected remaining service lives, assum-
ing zero years for all retirees, is determined as of the begin-
ning of each measurement period.
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The average remaining service lives determined as of the
beginning of the measurement period are as follows:

» Measurement period ended June 30, 2022 - 7.8 years
» Measurement period ended June 30, 2021 - 8.6 years
» Measurement period ended June 30, 2020 - 8.6 years
» Measurement period ended June 30, 2019 - 8.2 years
» Measurement period ended June 30, 2018 - 8.2 years

One year of amortization is recognized in the university’s
total OPEB expense for fiscal years 2022 and 2021.

At June 30, 2022, OSU reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PEBB
OPEB from the following sources (in thousands):

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of  Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference Between Expected and
Actual Experience $ - $ (1455
Change in Assumptions 281 (2,755)
Change in Proportionate Share 62 (821)
Difference Between Contributions
and Proportionate Share of
Contributions 45 (3)
Total 388 (5,034)
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of
Resources $ (4,646)

As of June 30, 2022, other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to PEBB OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as
follows (in thousands):

Year Ended June 30:

2023 $ (741)
2024 (741)
2025 (741)
2026 (722)
2027 (723)
Thereafter (978)

$ (4,646)

At June 30, 2021, OSU reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PEBB
OPEB from the following sources (in thousands):

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of  Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference Between Expected and
Actual Experience $ - 3 (58)
Change in Assumptions 347 1,777)
Change in Proportionate Share 82 (835)
Difference Between Contributions
and Proportionate Share of
Contributions 45 4)
Total 474 (2,674)
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of
Resources $ (2,200)

62 | Oregon State University

ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of
the value of projected benefits and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future. Actuarially deter-
mined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual re-
sults are compared to past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future.

The following key methods and assumptions were used to
measure the total OPEB liability:

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:
Measurement Date June 30, 2022
Valuation Date July 1, 2021
Actuarial Assumptions:
Actuarial Cost Method
Inflation Rate

Discount Rate

Projected Salary Increases

June 30, 2021
July 1, 2019

Entry Age Normal

2.00 percent
3.54 percent
3.00 percent
December 31, 2019
Oregon PERS valuation

2.50 percent

2.16 percent

3.50 percent

December 31, 2018
Oregon PERS valuation
Pursuant to ORS 243.135(8), growth in per-

member expenditures under self-insured plans and
premium amounts is assumed to be 3.40% per year.

Withdrawal, retirement,
and mortality rates

Healthcare Cost Trend
Rate

30% of eligible employees
60% spouse coverage for males, 35% for females
7% annual lapse rate

Election and lapse rates

DISCOUNT RATE

Unfunded plans must use a discount rate that reflects a
20-year tax-exempt municipal bond yield or index rate. The
Bond Buyer 20-Year General Obligation Bond Index was
used to determine the discount rate for the OPEB liability.
The discount rate in effect for the June 30, 2022 and 2021
reporting date was 3.54 and 2.16 percent, respectively.

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The sensitivity analysis below shows the sensitivity of the
university’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability
calculated using the discount rate of 3.54 percent as of June
30, 2022 and 2.16 percent as of June 30, 2021, as well as
what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is one percent lower or one
percent higher than the current rate as of June 30, 2022 and
2021 (in thousands):

Discount Rate June 30,2022 | june 30, 2021
ssienaen |$ 125e4|$  ssu
s | | 1447
ssasten 10524 1345
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The sensitivity analysis below shows the sensitivity of the
university’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability
calculated using the current healthcare cost trend rates, as
well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using healthcare trend rates that are one percent-
age point lower, or one percentage point higher than the
current rates as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 (in thousands):

June 30, June 30,
Healthcare Rate 2022 2021
1% Decrease $ 10,417 | $ 13,020
Current Trend Rate 11,717 14,473
1% Increase 13,255 16,183

18. RISK FINANCING

OSU is a member of the Public Universities Risk Manage-
ment and Insurance Trust (PURMIT). PURMIT is a separate
legal entity that provides risk management and insurance
support to its member universities (Member). PURMIT is
governed by a Board of Trustees comprised of one represen-
tative from each Member. PURMIT carries out its mission
through a combination of risk transfer and risk retention.
PURMIT operates a self-insurance program for property and
casualty lines under which each Member may select their
own deductible. PURMIT also procures insurance and excess
insurance, purchases specialty insurance lines, and provides
administrative and operational services.

PURMIT is funded by annual Member assessments that are
based on exposure, premium costs, expected claims, and
operational costs, which are outlined in a Risk Allocation
Model, and based on sound actuarial analysis.

As a Member of PURMIT, OSU transfers the following insur-
able risks to PURMIT and insurance companies:

» Real property loss for university owned buildings,
equipment, automobiles and other types of property

« Tort liability claims brought against OSU, its officers,
employees or agents

» Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability
» Crime, Fiduciary and Network Security

« Specialty lines of coverage for marine, medical practicums,
intercollegiate athletics, international travel, camps and
clinics, day care, aviation exposures, and other items

OSU has a deductible of $100,000 per occurrence/claim

to PURMIT on property and casualty claims, and various
deductibles on other insurance and specialty insurance lines.
Annually, OSU sets aside pre-loss funding in advance to pay
for the claims that are expected for that policy year. The
amount of settlements has not exceeded insurance coverage
since PURMIT was established in June of 2014.

19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Outstanding commitments on partially completed, and
planned but not initiated construction projects totaled
approximately $611,275,262 at June 30, 2022. These
commitments will be primarily funded from gifts and grants,
bond proceeds, and other OSU funds.

Several of the larger construction project commitments
include Reser Stadium West Grandstands for $111 million,
Cordley Hall for $88 million, Arts and Education Complex for
$53 million, Withycombe Hall renovations for $50 and the
Upper Division and Graduate Student Housing project for
$46 million.

In conjunction with capital construction projects at the
Corvallis campus, OSU committed to a corridor improve-
ment plan for frontage improvement along Washington Way
between 35th Street and Benton Way. The corridor improve-
ment plan was submitted by the university and approved by
the city of Corvallis in early 2020. The $29 million project is
scheduled to begin in the Fall of 2022 and to be completed
by December 2023.

OSU is contingently liable in connection with certain other
claims and contracts, including those currently in litigation,
arising in the normal course of its activities. Management
is of the opinion that the outcome of such matters will not
have a material effect on the financial statements.

OSU participates in certain federal grant programs. These
programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by
the grantor or its representative. Such audits could lead to
requests for reimbursement to the grantor for expenditures
disallowed under terms of the grant. Management believes
that disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Unemployment compensation claims are administered by
the Oregon Employment Division pursuant to ORS 657. OSU
reimburses the Oregon Employment Division on a quarterly
basis for actual benefits paid. Each year resources are bud-
geted to pay current charges. The amount of future benefit
payments to claimants and the resulting liability to OSU can-
not be reasonably determined at June 30, 2022.

20.SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

OSU management has reviewed events and transactions
that occurred subsequent to the Statement of Net Position
date of June 30, 2022, and found none that required
adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements.

21. UNIVERSITY FOUNDATIONS

The university’s two related foundations are the OSU
Foundation (OSUF) and the Agricultural Research Founda-
tion (ARF). The foundations were established to provide
assistance in fund raising, public outreach and other support
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for the mission of OSU. The OSUF was incorporated in 1947
to encourage, receive, and administer gifts and bequests

for the support of the university and is responsible for all
fundraising of the university as well as management of the
majority of the university’s endowments. The ARF was incor-
porated in 1934 to encourage and facilitate research in all
branches of agriculture and related fields for the benefit of
Oregon’s agricultural industries. Each foundation is a legally
separate, tax-exempt entity with an independent govern-
ing board. Although OSU does not control the timing or
amount of receipts from the foundations or income thereon,
the majority of resources that each foundation holds and
invests are restricted to the activities of the university by
the donors. Because these restricted resources held by each
foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit of the
university, the foundations are considered component units
of OSU and are discretely presented in the financial state-
ments. The financial activity is reported for the years ended
June 30, 2022 and 2021.
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As of June 30, 2021, the total component unit information
was restated to properly reflect revenue recognition as
follows (in thousands):

Originally Restated
Restatement
Reported Balance
Deposits and Unearned $ 5482 | 5424 $ 53
Revenues
Grants, Bequests, and
Gifts - Unrestricted 10,567 (2,359) 8,208
Beginning Balance, 795,517 7,784 | 803,301
Total Net Assets

During the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, gifts of
$106,714,452 and $67,482,983, respectively, were trans-
ferred from the foundations to OSU.

Please see the combining financial statements for the OSU
component units in the continuation of Note 21 starting on
page 66.

Complete financial statements for the foundations may be
obtained by writing to the following:

 Oregon State University Foundation, 4238 SW Research Way,
Corvallis, OR 97333

e Agricultural Research Foundation, 1600 SW Western Blvd,
Suite 320, Corvallis, OR 97333
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Component Units

Combining Financial Statements Oregon
State Agricultural Total
Statements of Financial Position University Research Component
As of June 30, 2022 Foundation Foundation Units
(in thousands)
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 7,423 $ 2,297 $ 9,720
Investments 887,834 28,597 916,431
Contributions, Pledges and Grants Receivable, Net 106,230 1,457 107,687
Assets Held-For-Sale 6,426 6,426
Assets Held Under Split-Interest Agreements 53,447 53,447
Charitable Trusts Held Outside the Foundation 11,452 11,452
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 6,024 6,024
Property and Equipment, Net 25,179 1 25,180
Total Assets $ 1,104,015 $ 32,352 $ 1,136,367
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $ 12,834 § 139 § 12,973
Endowment Assets Held for OSU 54,208 - 54,208
Accounts Payable to the University 6,442 6,442
Obligations to Beneficiaries of Split-Interest Agreements 24,201 - 24,201
Other Liabilities 76 76
Long-Term Liabilities - 20 20
Total Liabilities 91,319 6,601 97,920
NET ASSETS
Without Donor Restrictions 33,358 14,340 47,698
With Donor Restrictions 979,338 11,411 990,749
Total Net Assets 1,012,696 25,751 1,038,447
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 1,104,015 $ 32,352 $§ 1,136,367
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Component Units

Combining Financial Statements Oregon

State Agricultural Total
Statements of Activities University Research Component
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 Foundation Foundation Units

(in thousands)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS HELD WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

REVENUES
Grants, Bequests and Gifts $ 643 $ 6,693 $ 7,336
Investment Income, Net (14,479) (2,075) (16,554)
Net Assets Released From Restrictions and Other Transfers 110,756 2,947 113,703
Other Revenues 23,597 - 23,597
Total Revenues 120,517 7,565 128,082
EXPENSES
University Support 103,874 10,544 114,418
Management and General 13,579 457 14,036
Development 18,503 - 18,503
Total Expenses 135,956 11,001 146,957
Decrease In Net Assets Held Without Donor Restrictions (15,439) (3,436) (18,875)
Beginning Balance, Net Assets Held Without Donor Restrictions, Restated 48,797 17,776 66,573
Ending Balance, Net Assets Held Without Donor Restrictions $ 33,358 $ 14,340 $ 47,698
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS HELD WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
REVENUES
Grants, Bequests and Gifts $ 194,602 $ 3,254 $ 197,856
Investment Income, Net (67,887) 56 (67,831)
Change in Value of Life Income Agreements (7,030) - (7,030)
Other Revenues 4,130 - 4,130
Net Assets Released From Restrictions and Other Transfers (110,755) (2,947) (113,702)
Increase In Net Assets Held With Donor Restrictions 13,060 363 13,423
Beginning Balance, Net Assets Held With Donor Restrictions, Restated 966,278 11,048 977,326
Ending Balance, Net Assets Held With Donor Restrictions $ 979,338 $§ 11,411 $ 990,749
Beginning Balance, Total Net Assets, Restated $ 1,015,075 $ 28,824 $ 1,043,899
Decrease In Total Net Assets (2,379) (3,073) (5,452)
Ending Balance, Total Net Assets $ 1,012,696 $ 25,751 $ 1,038,447
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Component Units

Combining Financial Statements Oregon
State Agricultural Total
Statements of Financial Position University Research Component
As of June 30, 2021 Foundation Foundation Units
(Restated)
(in thousands)
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,329 § 1,722 § 4,051
Investments 953,749 30,226 983,975
Contributions, Pledges and Grants Receivable, Net 40,920 1,187 42,107
Assets Held-For-Sale 7,294 - 7,294
Assets Held Under Split-Interest Agreements 62,206 - 62,206
Charitable Trusts Held Outside the Foundation 13,841 - 13,841
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 3,869 53 3,922
Property and Equipment, Net 26,245 6 26,251
Total Assets $ 1,110,453 $ 33,194 $ 1,143,647
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $ 6,098 $ 296 $ 6,394
Endowment Assets Held for OSU 61,114 - 61,114
Accounts Payable to the University - 4,060 4,060
Obligations to Beneficiaries of Split-Interest Agreements 28,108 - 28,108
Other Liabilities 58 - 58
Long-Term Liabilities - 14 14
Total Liabilities 95,378 4,370 99,748
NET ASSETS
Without Donor Restrictions 48,797 17,776 66,573
With Donor Restrictions 966,278 11,048 977,326
Total Net Assets 1,015,075 28,824 1,043,899
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 1,110,453 $ 33,194 $ 1,143,647
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Component Units

Combining Financial Statements Oregon

State Agricultural Total
Statements of Activities University Research Component
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 Foundation Foundation Units

(Restated)
(in thousands)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS HELD WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

REVENUES
Grants, Bequests and Gifts $ 891 $ 7,317 $ 8,208
Investment Income, Net 17,979 2,259 20,238
Net Assets Released From Restrictions and Other Transfers 70,636 2,432 73,068
Other Revenues 21,445 - 21,445
Total Revenues 110,951 12,008 122,959
EXPENSES
University Support 64,714 7,488 72,202
Management and General 12,469 377 12,846
Development 17,566 - 17,566
Total Expenses 94,749 7,865 102,614
Increase In Net Assets Held Without Donor Restrictions 16,202 4,143 20,345
Beginning Balance, Net Assets Held Without Donor Restrictions 32,595 13,633 46,228
Ending Balance, Net Assets Held Without Donor Restrictions $ 48,797 $ 17,776 $ 66,573
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS HELD WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
REVENUES
Grants, Bequests and Gifts $ 91,744 $ 2,489 $ 94,233
Investment Income, Net 187,452 2) 187,450
Change in Value of Life Income Agreements 8,284 - 8,284
Other Revenues 3,354 - 3,354
Net Assets Released From Restrictions and Other Transfers (70,636) (2,432) (73,068)
Increase In Net Assets Held With Donor Restrictions 220,198 55 220,253
Beginning Balance, Net Assets Held With Donor Restrictions 746,080 10,993 757,073
Ending Balance, Net Assets Held With Donor Restrictions $ 966,278 $ 11,048 $ 977,326
Beginning Balance, Total Net Assets $ 778675 % 24,626 $ 803,301
Increase In Total Net Assets 236,400 4,198 240,598
Ending Balance, Total Net Assets $ 1,015,075 $ 28,824 $ 1,043,899
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Required Supplementary Information (dollars in thousands)

SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY CONTRIBUTIONS
Public Employees Retirement System

For Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Contractually Required Contribution® $ 46,756 $ 39,883 $ 40,555 $ 28,059 $ 27,936 $ 19,571 $ 19,078 $ 15945 $ 15100 $ 13,760
Contributions in Relation to
Contractually Required

Contribution 46,756 39,883 40,555 28,059 27,936 19,571 19,078 15,945 15,100 13,760
Contribution Deficiency/(Excess) $ -3 -3 - 3 - $ - 3 - 3 - % - % - 3
Covered Payroll $ 288,021 § 280,514 § 278,387 $ 267,033 § 258,277 § 244,265 $ 228,327 $ 218,835 $ 202,058 $ 189,839
Contributions as a Percentage of

Covered Payroll 16.2% 14.2% 14.6% 10.5% 10.8% 8.0% 8.4% 7.3% 7.5% 7.2%

For Actuarial Assumptions and Methods, see table in Note 16

SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
NET PENSION LIABILITY/(ASSET)*
Public Employees Retirement System

As of the Measurement Date June 30, 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
University's Allocation of the Net Pension

Liability/(Asset) 2.30% 2.07% 1.99% 2.00% 2.18% 2.15% 2.00% 1.80% 1.80%
University's Proportionate Share of the Net

Pension Liability/(Asset) $ 275,332 § 451,900 $ 344,658 $ 302,317 $ 293,882 §$ 322,538 $ 114,746 $ (40,834) $ 91,930
University's Covered Payroll $ 280,514 §$ 278,387 $ 267,033 §$ 258,277 $ 244,265 §$ 228,327 $ 218,835 $ 202,058 $ 189,839

University's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage

of Covered Payroll 98.15%  162.33%  129.07%  117.05% 120.31%  141.26% 52.43% 20.21% 48.43%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of the Total Pension Liability/(Asset) 87.57% 75.79% 80.23% 82.07% 83.12% 80.53% 91.88% 103.59% 91.97%

*These tables will eventually contain 10 years of data. Only the data presented above is available at this time.
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Required Supplementary Information (dollars in thousands)

SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY PERS RHIA OPEB EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION

For Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

ActuariallyDeterminedContributions1 $ 35 $ 43§ 47 $ 1205 $ 1,171 $ 1,172 $ 1,104 $ 1,170 $ 1,091 $ 1,020

Contributions in Relation to the
Actuarially Determined

Contributions 35 43 47 1,205 1,171 1,172 1,104 1,170 1,091 1,020
Contribution Deficiency/(Excess) $ - % -3 - % - % - % - % S S - %
Covered Payroll $287,246 $279,571 $278,354 $266,994 $258,239 $244,227 $228,283 $217,824 $201,446 $184,769

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll 0.01% 0.02% 0.02% 0.45% 0.45% 0.48% 0.48% 0.54% 0.54% 0.55%

'For Actuarial Assumptions and Methods, see table in Note 17

SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
NET PERS RHIA OPEB LIABILITY/(ASSET)*

As of the Measurement Date June 30, 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
University's Allocation of the Net RHIA OPEB Liability/(Asset) 2.46% 0.67% 2.52% 2.35% 2.46% 0.00%
University's Proportionate Share of the Net RHIA OPEB

Liability/(Asset) $ (8,465) $ (1,369) $ (4,869) $ (2,626) $ (1,027) $ 641
University's Covered Payroll $279,571 $278,354 $266,994 $258,239 $244,227 $228,283

University's Proportionate Share of the Net RHIA OPEB
Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 3.03% 0.49% 1.82% 1.02% 0.42% 0.28%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total RHIA
OPEB Liability/(Asset) 183.86% 150.09% 144.38% 123.99% 108.88% 94.15%

*These tables will eventually contain 10 years of data. Only the data presented above is available at this time.
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Required Supplementary Information (dollars in thousands)

SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY PERS RHIPA OPEB EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION

For Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2022 2021 2020

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Actuarially Determined

Contributions* $ 565 $ 841 $ 846

Contributions in Relation to the
Actuarially Determined

Contributions 565 841 846

$ 1076 $ 937 $ 886 § 508 $ 475 % 257

1,076 937 886 508 475 257

Contribution Deficiency/(Excess) ¢ -3 - %

$ - $ - $ - $ - $

Covered Payroll $287,246 $279,571 $278,354

Contributions as a Percentage of

Covered Payroll 0.20% 0.30% 0.30%

For Actuarial Assumptions and Methods, see table in Note 17

$258,239 $244,227 $228,283 $217,824 $201,446 $184,769

0.42% 0.38% 0.39% 0.23% 0.24% 0.14%

SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
NET PERS RHIPA OPEB LIABILITY/(ASSET)*

As of the Measurement Date June 30,

University's Allocation of the Net RHIPA OPEB Liability/(Asset)

University's Proportionate Share of the Net RHIPA OPEB Liability/(Asset)

University's Covered Payroll

University's Proportionate Share of the Net RHIPA OPEB Liability/(Asset)

as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total RHIPA OPEB
Liability/(Asset)

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

7.29% 7.44% 8.01% 7.98% 7.97% 8.01%

$ (1,129 $ 742§ 2,028 $ 2,820 § 3,718 $ 4,299
$279,571 $278,354 $266,994 $258,239 $244,227 $228,283

0.40% 0.27% 0.76% 1.09% 1.52% 1.88%

124.64%  84.45%  64.86%  49.79% 34.25% 21.87%

*These tables will eventually contain 10 years of data. Only the data presented above is available at this time.
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Required Supplementary Information (dollars in thousands)

SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
TOTAL PEBB OPEB LIABILITY*

As of June 30, 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

University's Allocation of the Total OPEB Liability $ 11,717 $§ 14,473 § 14,516 $ 16,082 $ 15,242 $ 14,696
University's Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB

Liability 9.58% 9.58% 9.90% 9.98%  10.26%  10.15%
University's Covered Payroll $ 421,287 $409,461 $413,757 $402,161 $368,750 $388,332
University's Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB

Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 2.78% 3.53% 3.51% 4.00% 4.13% 3.78%
Total OPEB Liability as a % of Total Covered Payroll 2.76% 3.72% 3.77% 4.31% 4.42% 4.45%

*This table will eventually contain 10 years of data. Only the data presented above is available at this time.
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For information about the financial data included in this report, contact:
Michael J. Green

Vice President for Finance and Administration

Oregon State University

640 Kerr Administration Building

Corvallis, OR 97331

541-737-2092
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Members of the Board of Trustees
Oregon State University
Corvallis, Oregon

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate discretely
presented component units of Oregon State University (the University), a component unit of the State of
Oregon, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and have issued our report thereon
dated October 31, 2022. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial

statements of the Oregon State University Foundation, which is included within the aggregate discretely
presented component units, as described in our report on the University’s financial statements.

We have previously communicated to you information about our responsibiliies under auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, as well as certain information related to the planned
scope and timing of our audit in our planning communication dated April 12, 2022. Professional standards
also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant audit findings or issues
Qualitative aspects of accounting practices
Accounting policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by Oregon State University are descrnibed in Note 1 to the financial statements.

As described in Note 1. C_, the University implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, duning the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2022. GASE Statement No. 87 improves the accounting and financial reporting for
leases. As a result of the implementation of this standard, the University restated its June 30, 2021
beginning net position as shown in Note 1. AC.

We noted no transactions entered into by the entity dunng the year for which there is a lack of authontative
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in
the proper penod.

Accounting esfimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance
fo the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expectad. The most sensitive estimate(s) affecting the financial statements were:

+ Management's estimate of the allowance for uncollectible receivables is based on histoncal
collection rates.

o (Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets. Estimated useful lives range from five to fifty years.



EAC-FAC Agenda Item 2a - Attachment 2

Members of the Board of Trustees
Oregon State University

Page 2

Perkins Program Loan Liability - Congress did not renew the Perkins Loan Program after
September 30, 2017. As a result, no loan disbursements to students were permitted after June
30, 2018. The lack of renewal also means that the federal portion of the revolving loan program
must be repaid fo the Department of Education (ED) as by students repay loans to the school. As
such, the Perkins Program Loan Liability is based upon the percentage of the federal capital
contribution (reported annually on the FISAP) applied to the Perkins Loans Fund asset balance.
This is the University's best estimate of the amount of funds that will be repaid to the ED as loans
are collected from student.

Compensate absences and related personnel expenses are recognized based on estimated
balances due to employees for vacation and compensated leave. The hmitations on such
payments are defined by the rules associated with the personnel systems at the University.

Summer session uneamed tuition revenue is the estimate of the number of days of summer
courses that were incumred subsequent to fiscal year end for which fuiion was charged and
collected prior to fiscal year end.

The net pension liability of the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) is
recognized based on actuarially determined estimates made by PERS’ actuanies and accepted
by its Retirement Board. The University is allocated a percentage of this (proportionate share)
and associated estimates as determined by PERS. Beginning in fiscal year 2022, the manner in
which the University was allocated its proportionate share changed. Starting in fiscal year 2022,
0OSU receives an agency specific audited proportionate share allocation directly from PERS as a
result of the university's contributions to its independent side account. Prior to fiscal year 2022,
the PERS system did not provide the University an audited proportionate share as a separate
employer; the University was allocated a proportionate share of PERS employer state agencies.
The State Department of Administrative Services (DAS) calculated the University's proportionate
share of all state agencies intemally based on actual contnibutions by the University in relation to
the total for employer state agencies. The Oregon Audits Division reviewed this internal
calculation.

The net other postemployment benefits (OPEB) assets of the Oregon Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS) are recognized based on actuanally determined estimates made by
PERS actuanes and accepted by its Retirement Board. The University is allocated a percentage
of this and associated estimates as determined by PERS and DAS.

The total OPEB liability of the Oregon Public Employees’ Benefit Board (PEBB) is recognized
based on actuanally determined estimates made by PEBB's actuanes and accepted by its board.
The University is allocated a percentage of this and associated estimates as determined by PEBB
and DAS.

The Asset Retirement Obligation is the estimate of costs to perform future asset refirement
activities for two tangible capital assets.

We evaluated the factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates in determining they are
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.
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Financial statement disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. There were no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties encountered in performing the audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Uncorrected misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified dunng the audit, other than
those that are clearly tnvial, and communicate them to the appropnate level of management.

The following summanzes the uncorrectad misstatement of the financial statements:

¢ In the prior year, the University expensed 53,130,838 in federally-funded equipment that should
have been capitalized. The University elected to pass on making the comrection in the pror year
and made the comection in the current year. As such, below is the passed adjustment for the

current year audit.

Account Description
Operating Expenses $3,130,838

Beginning Net Position $3.130 838

Management has determined that its effect s immatenal, both individually and in the aggregate, to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

Corrected misstatements

Management did not identify and we did not notify them of any financial statement misstatements
detected as a result of audit procedures.

Disagreements with management

For purposes of this communication, a disagreement with management is a disagreement on a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resclved to our satisfaction, that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. No such disagreements arose during our
audit.

Management representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the aftached
management representation letter dated October 31, 2022
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Management consultations with other independent accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion”™ on certain situations. If a consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to the entity's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors’
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge,
there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Significant issues discussed with management prior to engagement

We generally discuss a vanety of matters, including the application of accounting prnciples and auditing
standards, with management each year pnor to engagement as the entity’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our engagement.

Audits of group financial statements

We noted no matters related to the group audit that we consider to be significant to the responsibilities of
those charged with governance of the group.

Quality of component auditor's work

There were no instances in which our evaluation of the work of a component auditor gave nse to a
concem about the quality of that auditor's work.

Required supplementary information

With respect to the required supplementary information (RS1) accompanying the financial statements, we
made certain inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the RS, including whether the
RSl has been measured and presented in accordance with prescribed guidelines, whether the methods
of measurement and preparation have been changed from the prior penod and the reasons for any such
changes, and whether there were any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the
measurement or presentation of the RSl We compared the RSl for consistency with management's
responses to the foregoing inquines, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge obtained dunng
the audit of the basic financial statements. Because these limited procedures do not provide sufficient
evidence, we did not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

Other information included in annual reports

Other information (financial or nonfinancial information other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon) is being included in your annual report and is compnsed of the Board of Trustees
and Executive Officers and Message from the Intenm President. Our responsibility for other information
included in your annual report does not extend beyond the financial information identified in our opinion
on the financial statements. We have no responsibility for determining whether such other information is
properly stated and do not have an obligation to perform any procedures to corroborate other information
contained in your annual report. We are required by professional standards to read the other information
included in your annual report and consider whether a matenal inconsistency exists between the other
information and the financial statements because the credibility of the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon may be undermined by matenal inconsistencies between the audited financial
statements and other information. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncomected
matenal misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.
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Our auditors’ report on the financial statements includes a separate section, "Other Information,” which
states we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance on the other information included in the
annual report. We did not identify any matenal inconsistencies between the other information and the
audited financial statements.

#* & &

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Members of the Board of
Trustees and management of Oregon State University and is not intended to be, and should not be, used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

%ZM L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Denver, Colorado
October 31, 2022
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October 31, 2022

CliftonLarsonallen LLP
£390 East Crescent Parkway, Suite 300
Greenwood Village, ©O 80111

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audits of the financial statements of Oregon State
University (the University), which comprise the respective financial position of the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements, for the purpose of expressing opinions on whether the financial statements are presented
fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America (U.5. GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to misstatements that are material.
Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of October 31, 2022, the following representations
made to you during your audit of the financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement agreement dated
August @, 2022 for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
U5, GAAP. The financial statements include all properly classified funds and other financial information
of the primary government and all component units required by generally accepted accounting
principles to be included in the financial reporting entity.

2. We acknowledge and have fulfilled our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance
of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
to prevent and detect fraud.

4. We have identified all accounting estimates that could be material to the financial statements, including
the key factors and significant assumptions used in making those estimates, and we believe the
estimates (including those measured at fair value) and the significant assumptions used in making those
accounting estimates are reasonable.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Significant estimates have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the
reguirements of 1.5 GAAP. Significant estimates are estimates at the financial statement date that
could change materially within the next year.

Related party relationships and transactions, including, but not limited to, revenues,
expenditures/expenses, loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable
from or payable to related parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance
with the requirements of U.5. GAAP.

Mo events, including instances of noncompliance, have occurred subsequent to the financial statement
date and through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to, or disclosure in, the financial
statements.

The effect of the uncorrected misstatement is immaterial to the financial statements of the University.
A description of the uncorrected misstatement is as follows:

Account Description Debit Credit
Operating Expense 53,130,838 -
Begi nrﬂng Met Assets 53,130,838

We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments or unasserted claims
or assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements in accordance
with U5 GAAP, and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation, claims, or assessments.

Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the entity is contingently liable, if any, have been
properly recorded or disclosed in accordance with .S, GAAP.

Arrangements with financial institutions invalving repurchase, reverse repurchase, or securities lending
agreements, compensating balances, or other arrangements involving restrictions on cash balances and
line-of-credit or similar arrangements, have been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial
statements.

Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims against debtors for transactions
arising on or before the financial statement date and have been reduced to their estimated net
realizable value.

The methods and significant assumptions used result in a measure of fair value appropriate for financial
statement measurement and disclosure purposes.

We have analyzed all lease contracts and have considered and recorded material embedded leases
contained within other contracts in accordance with U5, GAAP.

We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets,
liabilities, or equity.
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16. Capital assets have been evaluated for impairment as a result of significant and unexpected decline in
service utility. Impairment loss and insurance recoveries have been properly recorded.

17. We believe that all material expenditures that have been deferred to future periods will be recoverable.

18. Participation in a public entity risk pool has been properly reported and disclosed in the financial
statements.

19. We believe that the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure pension and other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) liabilities and costs for financial accounting purposes are appropriate
in the circumstances.

20. We do not plan to make frequent amendments to our pension or other postretirement benefit plans.

Information Provided

21. We have provided you with:

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the finandial statements such as records (including information obtained from
within and outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers), documentation, and other matters.

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.

d. Complete minutes of the meetings of the governing board and related committees, or
summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

e All communications from regulatory agencies, grantors, lenders, and other funding sources
concerning noncompliance with, or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

f.  All communications from regulatory agencies, grantors, lenders, and other funding sources
concerning noncompliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements.

g. Access to all audit or relevant monitoring reports, if any, received from funding sources.

22 All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements.

23. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be
materially misstated as a result of fraud.

24, We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the entity and involves:

h. Management;
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i. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
j.  Others when the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

25. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the entity's financial
statements communicated by employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others.

26. We have no knowledge of any instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with laws and
regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements, or waste or abuse whose effects should
be considered when preparing financial statements.

27. We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments, or unasserted claims
or assessments, that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements in accordance
with LL5. GAAP, and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation, claims, or assessments.

28. There are no other material liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or
disclosed in accordance with 1.5, GAAP.

29. We have disclosed to you the identity of all the entity's related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware, including any side agreements.

30. The entity has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such
assets, nor has any asset been pledged as collateral, except as made known to you and disclosed in the
financial statements.

31. We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements applicable to Oregon State University, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts; and
we have identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements that we believe have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts or other financial data significant to the audit objectives, including legal and
contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

32. There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations (including those
pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of contracts and grant
agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects should be considered for
disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on
noncompliance.

33. The entity has complied with all aspects of contractual or grant agreements that would have a material
effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

34. We have complied with all restrictions on resources (including donor restrictions) and all aspects of
contractual and grant agreements that would have a material effect on the financial statements in the
event of noncompliance. This includes complying with donor requirements to maintain a specific asset
composition necessary to satisfy their restrictions.
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35.

36.

37.

38.

38.

41.

42

43.

45.

46.

47.

We have followed all applicable laws and regulations in adopting, approving, and amending budgets.

The financial statements include all component units as well as joint ventures with an equity interest,
and properly disclose all other joint ventures, jointly governed organizations, and other related
organizations.

The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities.

Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) and equity
amounts are properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

Investments, derivative instruments, and land and other real estate held by endowments are properly
valued.

. Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded.

Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the statement
of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and allocations have been made on a reasonable
basis.

Rewvenues are appropriately classified in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position within operating, nonoperating and other.

Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified, eliminated
and/or reported, as applicable.

. Deposits and investment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified as to risk and are

properly valued and disclosad.

Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and, if
applicable, depreciated.

We have appropriately disclosed the entity’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or
unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net position is available and have determined that net position is properly recognized under
the policy.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RS1). The RSl is
measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and
presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you any
significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the RS

. The University has not been natified by the U 5. Department of Education of the loss of eligibility for one

or all of the Title W programs due to high default rates.
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49. The University has reported to the U.5. Department of Education for investigations all known criminal
misconduct, if any, involving Title IV funds by any student, employee, third-party servicer, or other agent
of the institution involved in the administration of the University's Title IV programs.

50. The University or its employess have not received any direct or indirect benefits from lenders related to
the University’s Title IV loan programs.

51. The University, members of governance, or its President are not responsible for a crime invalving federal
student audit program funds, have not pled guilty to, or pled nolo contendere to, or been found guilty
of, a crime involving Title IV funds or been judicially determined to have committed frauds involving Title
IV funds.

52_ The University’'s campuses have not filed for bankruptoy and are in compliance with the Department of
Education financial responsibility requirements.

53. The University is not participating in the Zone Alternative.

e Lhnnmafigned By
[ m--lf,]:LﬂLr. 'II f—l;‘-irILL-L 10312022 | 15:59:21 PDT
— s IR TS TS
Michael J. Green, CPA
Vice President for Finance and Administration/Chief Financial Officer
= LlnruSigned by
[ Hu'ﬁh' b al, 10/31/2022 | 10:00:36 PDT
e TP E LA O ST
Heidi Sann, CPA

Associate Vice President for Finance and Controller

— Lhmzu S ned hy
[ P I 10/31/2022 | 09:11:02 PDT

Miark Fryman, CPA
Director of Financial Accounting and Reporting
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Oregon State University
Corvallis, Oregon

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities and the aggregate discretely presented component units of Oregon State University (the
University), a component unit of the State of Oregon, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022 and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively compnse the University's basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2022. Our report includes a
reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the Oregon State University
Foundation, one of the discretely presented component units, as descnbed in our report on the
University's financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of
intermal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately
by those auditors. The financial statements of the Oregon State University Foundation were not audited
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the University's intemal
control over financial reporting (intemal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's
intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's
intemnal control.

A deficiency in infernal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employeas, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A matenal weakness 15 a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there 1s a reasonable possibility that a materal
misstatement of the University's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control that is less severe than a matenal weakness, yet important enough to ment attention by those
charged with govemance.

(1}
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Oregon State University

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose descnbed in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal contrel that might be matenal
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in intermnal control that we consider to be matenal weaknesses. However, matenal
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University's financial statements are free
from matenal misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
matenal effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report i1s solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
University’s intemal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considenng the University's interal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

%{M LA
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Denver, Colorado
October 31, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Members of the Board of Trustees
Oregon State University
Corvallis, Oregon

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities and the aggregate discretely presented component units of Oregon State University
(University), a component unit of the State of Oregon, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and
2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the University's
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 1, 2021. Our report
includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the Oregon State
University Foundation (the Foundation), which represents 97%, 98% and 96%, respectively, of the
assets, net assets, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units for 2021. In
addition, we did not audit the 2020 financial statements of the Foundation and the Agricultural
Research Foundation (ARF), which represent 100 percent of the assets, net assets, and revenues of
the aggregate discretely presented component units for 2020. This report does not include the results
of the other auditors’ testing of intemal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters
that are reported on separately by those auditors. The 2021 financial statements of the Foundation and
the 2020 financial statements for both the Foundation and ARF were not audited in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the University’s intemal
control over financial reporting (intemal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's
intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's
intemal control.

(1}
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A deficiency in infernal confrol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A matenal weakness i1s a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a matenial
misstatement of the Uiniversity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and comected on
a timely basis. A sigmificant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a matenal weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Cur consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to idenfify all deficiencies in intermal control that might be matenal
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be matenal weaknesses. However, matenal
weaknesses may exist that have not been identifiad.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
matenal effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Govermnment Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
University's intemal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the University's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

%{W L7
CliftonLarsonallen LLP

Denver, Colorado
Movember 1, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM, REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE, AND
REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Members of the Board of Trustees
Cregon State University
Corvallis, Oregon

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Oregon State University's (the University) compliance with the fypes of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and matenal
effect on the University's major federal programs for the year ended June 20, 2021. The University's
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and guestioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the University's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audifing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the University's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each of the

major federal programs. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the University's
compliance.

i2)
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Members of the Board of Trustees
Oregon State University

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Cregon State University complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and matenal effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are descnbed in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2021-001 and 2021-002. Qur opinion on each of
the major federal programs is not modified with respect to these matters.

The University's responses to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. The University’s responses were not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the University's intemal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of the major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropnate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on compliance for each of the major federal program and to test and report on
intemal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the nomal course of performing their
assigned functions, fo prevent, or detect and comect, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A matenal weakness in internal confrol over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that matenial noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in intermal confrol over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
intemal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severa than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

COur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance that might be matenal weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, matenal
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did not identify any
deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
we did identify certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance, described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2021-001 and 2021002, that we consider to be
significant deficiencies.
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The University's responses to the intemal control over compliance findings identified in our audit are
descnbed in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and CQuestioned Costs. The University's
responses were not subjected to the audifing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance 1s solely to describe the scope of our
testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate discretely
presented component units of the University as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the University's basic financial
statements. We issued our report thereon dated November 1, 2021, which contained unmodified
opinions on those financial statements. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited
the financial statements of the Oregon State University Foundation (the Foundation), which represents
97%, 98% and 96%, respectively, of the assets, net assets, and revenues of the aggregate discrately
presented component units for 2021, as descrnbed in our report on the University's financial statements.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

Such information is the responsibility of management and was denved from and relates directly fo the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all matenal respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Denver, Colorado
September 12, 2022
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Oregon State University
Schedule of Expendiures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended lone 30, 2021
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Chikdres's Hosgital of Phil sfelshia
Lot Bhzemrelical Rasiaarch

bt ania Suati Linbaraity

Origon Haalth & Schisce Univisrsity
Origon Haalth & Schisce Univisrsity
‘Wiakot: Forast Liniveraity

Commumity Heahh and Sodal Sendoes Cernbir e

Wirginia Commensvalth Linkersity
Origon Haalth & Schisce Univisrsiy

Gancegia Ragints University
Origon Haalth & Schisce Univisrsiy

Sz b Uiy

Origon Haalth & Schiscs Univisrsity
Origon Haalth & Schisce Univissity
Oregon Health & Sciesce University
Sl G
Unibsisrsity of Calfornia ot Sam Francso

B Lisdwirsity
Morth Carclina St Unbsrsty

Possad dirocgh
Pass- Through idestifying Number Subrecip Tatal Ex
145560-0037 3ER19
051 LT, Dby 135078
445704507 ED 47
EE30TET (3800
1455600086 115,855
A45TR0-LE0084 93,508
00632351 & 4]
FOEI20EEEE _mnT
2,134,800 17,639,185
S000A71-3500001375 BO610
AS00003 T2 24500003308 ALET4
17866 1145378
M 363 X355
21545 4,257
4744 PO G704 132,711
4745 PO STINE 163,E39
OREE-A131/A132/A133A1 344605 BETST
2 7-1068 {13,243)
030-1295 53,998
LWS05071 &0 15471 97118
20150-Sasdnanm 050 WA
IEAZD 1,7e0615
OSPIRLA-O0POWALLDSR032 15,540
7190
158380 12721
SE00002035 73517
SEN0002121 S 816581 2,385
SUBKDOI034ES POA3OOSTE0I29 35,762
34.5350-2076-001 108.Bes
HEE0A (13614)
AWDO003004 [135236-1) 45,751
100300- 550010 TE,T40
279046 1,150,021
MWWEIDED 144,542
186115 E4T. 244
[PLLOEL0E- 200900 65,762
124 BES 371,145
IRAEHLATALEID 2,032
16912 531
EHADDOTEE 106,257
GRT-CO000655 POS202 3 LB 13,851
1990770 HHENIE 13 SO0003] 1,902 6856 1,508 4T
]
GIE0-21-WHED 6535
1043518 0sU 92,532
10137 _osU 71,632
455-100300-112761 14,073
BB 50E, 101
Me2174 18,305
FROO00A34E SA00L [3.547)
1093984 0sU 795
50,541
33585-1 21,242
100865 Ol [5,158)
#1500
[EMAC 1D ET0R J PO 11524000 [EC i)
103928 0SU %6397
104335005 [3,795)
1042803 05l 3B, TI5
il S L 211,337
109Eise J/ CTH-D0EE [3185)
40,985
GRS OEU 163435
508700 9,732




Depavtment of Realh and Rumos Senvices Toea!

Pregres Tiie

Emsirorsuiial Haalth

Emsirorsuiial Haalth

Emsirorsuiial Haalth

Emsirorsuiial Haalth

Epidissiolagy and Labsemtony Capacity Tor Infectisue Dseasi [ELD)
Epidissiolagy and Labsemtony Capacity Tor Infectisue Dseasi [ELD)
Epidissiolagy and Labsemtony Capacity Tor Infectisue Dseasi [ELD)

Epidissiolagy and Labsemtony Capacity Tor Infictise DSiasi [ELD)

Estraimiral Ricuearch Prograi is the Neurosclences and Neunsdogical DEonders
Estraimisral Ricusarch Prograi in the Neurosclences and Neunsdogical DEondes
Farsily Smokieg Privention and Tobacca Conteol Ao Regulatony Research

Fuod and Diug Admisistration Risarch

Hicimiam Gt Ricisaich

Injury Priswenton and Comeol Rissasrch and State amd Comesiinity Baded Programs
It -ladoratory Stady of the EMects of Protocsl Varsblis on Toskdty Missuns in Zebrafish
Lurg Diseases Resaarch

Mistal Hisalth Ricaasch Grans

Mistal Hisalth Ricuaasch Grants

Mathonal Caivler for Advancieg Translational Sokencis

Mathonal Caivler for Advancieg Translational Sokencis

Mational Center for Advancieg Translational Scenois

Mathonal Cailer for Advancieg Translational Sokencis

Mathonal Caivler for Advancieng Translational Sokencis

Mathonal Caivler for Advancieg Translational Sokencis

Mathonal Caivler for Advancieg Translational Sokencis

Mathonal Cailer for Advancieg Translational Sokncis

NIEHS Supssifuied Hapardoos Subiamces_Bathe Ricsarch and Education

W Data Corssns Pilo Phids

‘Decugational Safety and Hialh Program

‘Decugational Safety and Hialh Program

‘Decugational Safety and Hialh Program

‘Decugational Safety and Hialh Program

‘Decugational Safety and Hiahh Program

‘Decugational Safety and Hialh Program

‘Decugational Safety and Hiahh Program

‘Dipiid STR

‘Drall Disiasis v Disorders Ressanch

‘Drall Disiasis v Disorders Ressanch

‘Drall Disiasis v Disorders Ressanch

Rictagech and Training s Comsglisaimany aod tigrative Heahh

Rictagech and Training s Comsglisaimany aod tigrative Heahh

Ricbagech and Training s Comsglisaimany aod Itigrative Heahh

Ricisaech and Training in Complirsenary and stigrativie Health

Rictagech and Training s Comsglisaimany aod Istigrative Heahh

Ricaaech on Haslthoan Costs, Quality and Dot oo

Ricaaech on Haslthoan Costs, Quality and Dot oo

Ricaasch on Hislthoan Costs, Quality snd Dot oo

Recosaech Rslabed 10 Dualnass wd C iation Diucedirs
Sockaconamic SEius and bt cances by age group and moy'etheicty
Sodiers Risduction in Cossmunithes

Srrengthining Publc Haalth Syt and Services (hhoogh Natioeal Parnershigd 1o sgrov el
Protect e Kation"s Haalth

Traes-NIH Ricaarch Suggon

Trars-MIH Ricaarch Suggon

Traes-NIH Ricaarch Suggon

Wi RS

Wi RS

‘Whallare Riedorm Reseanch, Evalaations and National Soefii

Additiong! Award

EEEEEE SRR aRRRRRRERRECEERARRERERREEE

83213
83213
83351
83351
83351
83351
pERY
pERY
pERY
93173

93471
93310
93310
93310
A3BET
A3BET
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Paii Theough Entity
Univirsity of California ot Sam Francison
Unibeirsity of Calformia, Indne

‘Wiaka Forest Univeraity

Origon Health Authesity
Origon Health Suthesity
Origon Health Suthesity
Origon Health Suthesity
Origon Health Suthesity
Origon Health Authesity

Dartenh-Hinchoock Oink:
Thi Ok Stat: Liedvwraity

Driggom Health & Schescs Univirsity
Eattidle Marsorial Instiute

Fortland Sate Unkassitg

Origom Haalth & Sciescs Univissity
Origom Haalth & Sciescs Univissity
Origom Haalth & Sciescs Univirsity
Origom Haalth & Sciescs Univrsity
Origom Haalth & Sciescs Univrsity
Origom Haalth & Sciescs Univssity

Initos Pharmacsuticats LW

Unibversity of Horth Canclisa, Chage Hill
Bt Yiorie Caritier Tor Agricubural Mudicing aed Health
Unhirsity of Winkingten
Univirsity of Winkingtes
Unbersity of Winkingten

Canter for Comtnection Ressarch and Trainisg
e for Comtnection Ressarch and Trainisg

Origom Haalth & Sciescs Univrsity
Origom Haalth & Sciescs Univrsity

Origom Haalth & Sciescs Univissity
Origom Haalth & Sciescs Univissity
Origom Haalth & Sciescs Univrsity
Uniheirsity of Misots, Chican

Origom Haalth & Sciescs Univssity
Pundue Unkassity
Unhersity ol Devgon

Unbesrsity of Frtsbush
Unibeirsity of Wisooadin - Madiaon

Origom Haalth & Sciescs Univirsity

Origom Haalth Aathesity

oty Hiahh and Sodal Serdoes Center ks
Colussids Linbvarsiny

Dk University

Univirsal Adberance LLC

Pussed Birovgh
P Though idertifing Numbes Subinecipd Tatal Ex
104735¢ TR
015-3784 23,508
15-102510-550032 B0454
345,238
140324 5117
158294 o
157282 278
160782 11,524
163700 15174
1651220 261,035
1E774 172,932
GC10415-00-DER153E2 14,138
GR15H 1,359
172,558
824079 1,173,529
1013842_05L 103,554
USO01-0000751237 195,934
193,565 &05,056
100807 4,371
42,712
1010312_DSL 3371
1010313_DSU_Mewsces [2410)
1014902_05L LI
1011902-001_05U 115,905
1011902-002_05U 39,14
1011902003 _05U 197,504
1174147 158,104
I FALTRINIEE 9,834
48,550 3,307,240
S10514S I}
1 LOLOHO11899-01-00 M3
UWSCI1E5E / BRD $49399 2,502
UWSCS32E /3P0 17849 184,740
UWSCI1ESE |/ BAD 45005 T4
1585 265,732
LIE0 OHODSTE2 15,09
20555 17,723
314,555
1013028 D5 {2,107
1015485_D5L
111,997 431,333
1003333 DL 43,80
1010882_DSL 7388
1015338 05 233808
16823 115,452
269,567 7576
1014585_D5L 98,553
410226206 / 11000451010 &30
HT0E04 9,634
435204 1,435,093
AWDOO0DIIIS[ 1344542 15,537
D0O000I013 32914
139424 487932
411,106
1012947_D5L 1285
153267 115,552
1113 14,337
1EGOL3062-03) 1355
A03-2331 B
355
0132480 5743
8805 TET 00
T30
5,644,612 30,332,881



Depariment of Homelasd Secariey Total

Department of the intesior

Pregro Tite
Asshtaece b Fieelghtirs Grant
Canbars far Homeland ooty

DOCE Chmate Changs Assstance with the 2020 Dragon NHMP Update

2021 Mcrphedogical (hange Anakyi MCR Open Coat Saech Duts Colbection, Analysh, and

Archiviig,
Alaska Coanral Masiess Institunie

A avabaation of subbitral e Latent gyt
Spmchic

Asshages 10 Stale Wiber Rasources Rssarch situte
B-08 Ternistrial AlR Treainieg Assistande in 2021

BLM Kational Operationd Data Center - Gl5Data Spedalis
BLM Wikfiaed Lehan IstisTaos Coesimunity Fine Aubstanci

Bbosit & Fin 'Whade Tagging Analyses and Pubdications in Suppeet of Masiee Mamimal Moedorieg

Acred Multiphe Maey Teainieg Sneas s Southem Calfeenia

Burkau of Ocean Erengy Managessent [BOEM)] Environmenstal Studies [E5]
Burkau of Ocean Erengy Managessent [BOEM)] Environmenstal Studies [E5]

bl tosadcity across @ salinity gradiest in veo Deha fish

Comtisaed Computer Suppert Tor High Resolution Regional Oimate Duata

Cooperative Ecosysbem Studes Usits

Cosparativie Resianch and Training Prograsd Resources of the Matkesal Park Sysies

Coparativi Resian Lsits
Earthiguake Hazards Program dasiancs
Enulangirnd Species Con tian Ricoweny imph i

Fish and WildiiTe Coondination and Asusianci

Fish, \Wildlile and Plant Corervation Resource Managesn
Fishaitirs and Aguatic Resourc Managiimest

ol ol M Pasaive Acoiatic Masdloring Program

i

Intiractivn EMects of Predators, Habitat, aed Livstock Presencs on Sage-grouss Demegraply and

Sasmonal Habital L s Wyossing

Migrateey Bied Mositering, Assesisent and Conservation
Migrateey Bied Mositering, Assesisent and Conservation

bulbtate Coneryvation Grast

Mathonal Cimats Darge ard Wildile Soenoe it
Wational Land Remote Sensisg_Education Outneach and Seseandh

P — stk

Hatural 5 g A R ¥

OR -Popaation Assidusei of Wistin Origon Sooty Grouse 2000-2032
Parnis o Fiuh aed Wikiile

Partnisship for v of Harssailan Cossmon

Plant Comsanvation and Restoration M

P14 PAW Tarrearial AlM Vigetatios Saspling for SUM for thi Eaghs Lake - Apgphigati Califomia

BLM Disiric in JO20-2021, with optiosal wark in 3021-3022.
PH-1E. PAW Tarrearial AlM Vigetation Saspling b SUM in OR aed WA, 2000 and 2001 Teld

PH-22 MW Tisrasteial AR Vigertation Sampling Tor BLM Tor the Radding Califomda BLM District i

2022 and 2003,

PH-23. PAW Tareearial AlM Vigetation Saespling b SUM in C8 on thi Ridgecnes Distrea in 2001
P25, PAW Tareearial AlM Vigetation Saspling fee SUM in OR aed WA, 2001 and 2007 Teld

PH-26: PAW Tarearial AlM Vigetatios Saspling for SUM for kabs in 2021, with options e 2002

t v

PH-30. PAW Tareearial AIM Vegetation Saspling for SUM in MV on the Winmemuoos District i

2L

PH-33: PHW Tarrearial AlM Vigetatios Saspling for SUM for kahs in 2021, with options e 2022,

2023 .and 2024,

PH-36. PHW Tarreiarial AIM Vegetation Saspling for SUM on the Black Rock Rissoroe Aria of e
‘Winnemucea District is Mivada Tor thee 2021 amed 2002 Bkl seasor.

B of Carsd i Rl

 Priry Al

P Tisrasteial A Vegstation Sampling Tor BLM s OR and WA, 3019 aed F020 Reld siasoes.

Spate Wikl Grasts
Srate Wiklile Grasts

2, a1 thie Sarkey Experimantal Foeil and Rangi

Eubshbicn sl fertwcrks s Yokon River comssinithes

Thiiatinind aiid Endangened Spides
s logical Survey_ 3

ok aiad Dtan Colliect

VAR FEDVMRAC

Addiranal Award
AL Musber Idestiffcation
AT 0
AT061

:
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Pass Theough Entiry

Unibeirsity of Morh Carclisa, Chagel Hill
Oregom Dept of Land Conservation & Developmint

‘Washinglon Departmest of Ecology
Unisirsity ol Alaska - Fairhanks

(Dt Stawardshig Coil

HIE One Camgarry
San g Sate Unkersiy Fourdation

HDR i Covgainy

High Dusar Panmership

Morth Canolina State Unksrsity
Unieersity ol Winkingtes
A

Oregon Dept of Fish & Wilkdile

[Dichs, Ui lissited

Oregom Dept of Fish & Wikdile
Hatka of Fish and Gase
Oregom Dept of Fish & Wilkdile

Matia Departman of Fih and Gase

[tem 2a - Attachment 4

Puassed hrovgh [

Tostal Ex

Puass. Theough idestifying Sumber

5103654
19040

311872

ATE505
115,056
H3.H51

311,972

2100072
(UAF 200057 | POSH0SAE

18306 154891

1000300001 166

1e47

1000300001059

15203704

LINECT 100 BPOUESAE 4T /5 Late
AN 1E-DR-0L

057-30
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107-30

426-18
19057

273133

496306

554613

=03

57,734
BE14T
21,

44,747

73,133

Ads, 700

221738

45,717

7047
4. 5ET
3308

71,714
(e
135441
35,158
157,354
D55 455



Department af e Intidar Total

Degartment of Trassportation

Pregres Title
Vi Jusipes Remaval

Wiestiere Drigon Elk Habitat Lise, Survival and Rieproductivi Parestens
Wikl Fire Sesaareh ared Sbusfies

Wikiiife Risource Managemest

Adedinizeal ATE GRES wensors for cosstal lasdshde monhorning

Ay Tewespe bon Caiibas of Eacalk

Ahersative High Sty Strength Concreti |[HESC) Stnactural Owislass

Autersatind Lisklidi "Hot Spot” Identificatios Teol for Optisdeand Chmate Changs and Ssismic
Risidency

Austenoimoe Tradk inspeotien Syt hited on Pasthe Seeding and Anosaly Deteion

BEST PRACTICES FOR WORE 2ONE SAFETY DUSRING TRAFFIC CONTROL PLACEMENT, REMOVAL, AND
MODIFICATIONS

BICYCLE DETECTIOMN AND FEEDBACK ACSECSAENT

BRIDGE COUUMM FOOTING PERFOSMANCE AND SERSMIC RETROFT EVALUATION CONSIDERING
SOIL-STRUMTUSE INTERACTION

Cancada Lifdins R thC i Pulbsic basearshi

‘Combarfing Rumble Sirip BNt on Paviime Pislonsass

Caastal Laswslide and Sull Retrean Mositorieg for Climate Dhanis Sdaplation asd Tagetsd Rik
Assiciumi]

Cordtucting High Perforsance Asphalt Pa by | g Pl P Deusity
Oyl Rusgesnisi of Young Sl and COay for WVan Bunes Bridgs

Dutsign and Lile-Cychie Assiament of Gabon Barmers Tor Rockfall Mitigation usieg Mumiérizal

Dt Paifeemancs

Dataresining Landulide Deain EMchency Lifesycks Tor Dk o hak atal Ohgnrath
B el

EXPANDING THE OREGON MOTOR CARRIER SARETY ACTION FLAM: BEST RETUIRN ON INVESTRENT
Ceidilieas for Riciponie Plansding, Assicamend, and Rapel Restoration of Srvice of Sridge in
Estraivei Evisnts

Highvway Ricsarch and Developessnt Program

Highvway Ricearch and Developessnt Program

Highvway Ricsarch and Developessnt Program

Highoaay Ricusarch and Dissslopessnl Program
Fighrway Trainio and Sducation

Imgact of Use of Portlasd-Uimetons Cement o Concorets P
Manerial

IMPALTS OF INTERSECTION TREATMENTS AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERETICS OM BICFCLIST SAFETY
IMPLEMIENTATION OF & LABORATORY CONDITIONING AND TESTING PROTOIOL TO EVALLATE
MOHETURE SUSCEFTIBILITY OF ASPHALT METLUIRES

Ingsorviegg Constructability amd Durabiity of Comceets Parments

it i rart g, € Of vl NasCthom practicis s weatbed o Feise they spedfications

Nealisstas Tire History Analysi Acosracy with & Focus of Cobamin Plastidty and Cydlic Degradation
Phvysics-Baad seadaling of rummbli 23np soisi

Frankimisury Invistigatice ol Hiaey Vehich Parking Desian n Oviion Sesl Areas

Spasd Varlation and Salety s Week Zones

Teswvard & Florda Auteeatied, Commecied, ERcte and Shaned [A0ES) Trandgoriation S
Fiaadimap: Phase |

Uledvaraity Transgeoriation Cistiss Program

Uisissrsity Transporiation Cemters Program

Ulsdvaraity Trafsgesriation Cimdiss Program

Ulsdvaraity Trafsgoriation Cimdiss Program

Ulsdvaraity Trafsgoriation Cimdiss Program

Uisissrsity Transporiation Cemters Program

Uledvaraity Trafsgeoriation Cimdiss Program

Ulsdvaraity Trafsgesriation Cimdiss Program

Ulsdvaraity Trafsgoriation Cimdiss Program

Ulsiviraity Trafgeoriation Camtisrs Program

Ulsdvaraity Trafsgoriation Cimdiss Program

Uledvaraity Trafsgeoriation Cimdiss Program

Ulsdvaraity Trafsgesriation Cimdiss Program

Ulsiviraity Trafgeoriation Camtisrs Program

Ulsdvaraity Trafsgoriation Cimdiss Program

Ulsdvaraity Trafsgoriation Cimdiss Program

UFDATED SUBVEY STANDARDS & CONTROL GLEDANCE QLK HIT

LS HIGHWAY 100 ODASTAL HAZARD WVULWERASILITY AND RISK ASSESSMENT FOR MIMIGATION
PEIDRMIZATION

i Plaie of Rl d
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Pass Thiough Entity
Oregom Dapt of Fish & Wikdile

Dvigom Dapt of Traes ponation
Origom Dapt of Traes portation

Dvigom Dapt of Teaes ponation
Unibvirsity of South Flasida

Origom Dapt of Traes portation
Dvigom Dapt of Tres ponation

Origom Dapt of Traes portation
Dvigom Dapt of Tres ponation

Origom Dapt of Traes portation
Origom Dapt of Traes portation
Dvigom Dapt of Tres ponation

Oregom Dept of Traesportation
Oregom Dept of Traesportation

Oregom Dept of Traes portation
Oregom Dept of Traes portation

MNatiomal Academy of Schencs
liowa Sate Universing
Unibsirsity of Florda
Unibsisrsity of Tised b Autis

Calfomia Departesent of Transptation

Drigom Dapt of Traes ponation

Origom Dapt of Traes portation
Oragom Dapt of Traes portation
Obdalezima State University

Calfomia Departeent of Transptation

Origom Dapt of Traes portation
Drigom Dapt of Traes ponation

Univissity of South Flerida
nbeisity ol 'Waakingtee
University of Wiskingbos
nbeiaity ol 'Waakingtee
nbeisity ol 'Waakingtee
nbeisity ol 'Waakingtee
Unisersity of Waskingbos
nbeisity ol 'Waakingtee
nibeiaity ol 'Waakingtee
nbeisity ol 'Waakingtee
Unibsirsity of Wiskdngbos
nbeisity ol 'Waskingtee
nbeisity ol 'Waakingtee
nibeiaity ol 'Waakingtee
(Unibeirsity of Wiskdngbos
nbeisity ol 'Waakingtee

Oregom Dept of Traes portation
Oregom Dept of Traes portation

P Though idestifiing Sumber

32610

30530-20-05
30530-21-05

F0530-LE-01
T0E-13F3-00-A

30530-21-08
30530- 1905

30530-20-06
FO530- 2008
30530-17-00
30530-19-13
F0530-20-11

30530-20-03
30530-20-10

30530 30-01
30530-20-04

HA 14-45 SUBDOOL 575 Usit 905

UTA15-0005 1

BSADETY
IO530-20-05

30530-20-07
30530-19-12
1-501001-01
ESADETT

30530-19-11

30530-15-10

30530 f 2002

30530-21-01

Posind tirocgh

Tostal Ex

6,792
10,214

sTsiEL

344,551
3799

e H 14,423
15,15

170,450
114,085
74,300

445 57131
50,112

g7

055

147 657

21605 71353
7581

143,852

TTALL

7,089
47,243

139
95,015

14851 1,544

7
1,956
15,601
1EME
1509

15,744

7537 115,444



Dugter

Federal Grontor

Department of Tromsportation Tatal

Environseental Probecthes Agiesey

Envirenmental Precection Agency Total

Tile

Wiilessrabibe and Disabled Road Usees: ContiSmationd indde and Oulside the Vehick

Creation of an inbigrated mitigation Ste asd map vieser on th Oregon Exploser portal, ORWAR

update, ared stabewide LW Magging,

Imgacts of Vehick Embadon Regulations and Local Congisthee Policks o Birh Oulcoimis

Associated with Traflic Al Pollation
Hespoint Source |mplementation Grants
Hespoint Source |mplementation Grants

Offici of Rissiarch amed Davabopimad Consoldatid RicearchyTraining Felleyvabips
and 4 tay Agch

Pl Saused Action Agendi: Technical lrstigats
Sriecn To Achiev Resubs (STAR] Resar Progras
Sriencn To Achiev Resuls (STAR] Resarh Progras

& s

T

Mational Schence Feundation

Anfonaatics
Dapaviition and Curing of Th Rasin Pl
Dewirhzpimiissd of the Elisctric Lift Augesaitation with Slats [ELAS)

Elisctrically Tosabhe Quasioptical Filies Enabilid by wirss Dasign of Epilon-Mear-Jens

b it i

Ghobal assissment of clisate drisen trends in Sarine primary peodectivity

L'Spac Evabation Phase CAD

Maissiging Lhility of Ramote Seincieg Data for Water Quality Mesitoing aed Risounoes

Maragerment in Califomla’s Water Systams
MT Data Acqubithon Servic Tor NASE

Space Dgarations
Space Techiiosy

Wind sbness clisaiology s anomalies abeg thi LS. Est Coast from Coadtal DuikSCAT w4.0
Totai

Assigniment of De. Rolbert Some 1o the position of Divisies Director, Diviion of O, Mihanical sed
Marefacturing Infrivation [ MR, Dinectorate or Ergissing (ENIG)

Bichimgical Schmiis
Bichimgical Scimiis

Bichimgical Schmiis

Bichimgical Scimiis

Bichimgical Scimiis

Bichimgical Scimiis

Bichimgical Scimiis

Bichimgical Schmiis

Bichimgical Scimiis

Bichimgical Scimiis

Bichimgical Scimiis

Comspuber and Infanmation Sciercs and Enginring
Compuber and Infanmation Scierce and Enginiing
Corpuber and Infanmaticen Sciecs and Enginering

Tior Thisrral Protisctics

Addiranal Award

ik

66511

43002
43002

43000

A3 000

43000
43001
43001
43001
43001
43001
43001
43001
43001
43001
43001
43001
43001
43001
43001
43001
43001
43001
43001
43001
43001
43001
43007
43012
43000

AT000

47074
47074
47074
47074
47074
47074
47074
47074
47074
47074
AT.070
AT.070
AT.070
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Pass Theough Entity
taikeal

Oregom Division of State Lands
Health EMects Institute

Oregon Dapt of Esvirossental Quality
Oregon Dapt of Esvirossaental Quality

Puget Sound Partsersbip
Morth Cancling Suate Unhsrsity

Anipora Sate Unbsity

‘W, I
CubCrafers

Anipora Sate Unbsity

Jit Progealsion Lab
4 B by |es LB o SaEsmiol

Eat Wikt Cantir
it for Global Erwi al Stratigh
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Porland Sate Unhesity
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Do Dapt of Traes portation
Oragom Dapt of Traes portation
Oragom Dapt of Traes portation
Do Dapt of Tewes portation
Oragom Dapt of Traes portation
Oragom Darpt of Traes portation
Oragom Dapt of Traes portation
Oragom Dapt of Traes portation
Oragom Dapt of Traes portation
Oragom Dapt of Traes portation
Ovigom Dapt of Traes portation
Oragom Dapt of Traes portation
Oragom Dapt of Traes portation
Oregon Dept of Trass portation
Oragom Dapt of Traes portation
Oragom Darpt of Traes portation
Do Dapt of Tewes portation
Oragom Dapt of Traes portation

Passed throvgh o
Peis- Thoough idest fing Mumiber Subfeciph Taotal Ex
1577
61,135
B E3,112
20,244
166366 Sa1511
2,111
. 584,002
17520434 234,063,081
10854 185371
12343 186715
- ELFE0
1815001 15&
- 186
T 180000933 BEAE3
5G20-11 3317
14415 T4.EES
24515 E1B43
150-10 137855
Daz0a4 33,544
[LEFEE] 35
oaz3a7 18,156
- AX6 117
30530-19-01 BAZ4 137,543
30530-19-05 (=]
330301 (18 rrd
330302 I3158
3308203 14,1332
34003 3,123
RES-I0-77-01 aTITE
J1BEF-02 50,111
30530-21-02 S04
30530-21-08 39,014
30530-21-05 51,83
30530-21-04 0,000
RE-Z1-77-01 103,145
30530-21-07 30,730
3308304 7,792
330E3-06 41,430
330305 14,543
3308207 1,047
JLBE-03 47,001
74,118
FEE ) aEL8iF
Ae0110 ¥l
155540 1400423
- 1500 245
153303 148982 7268801
153303 Amad T 25,0800
158309 78
148,562 P



Departrmant of Educaion

Tota! TRID Oliter

Desartment of Agriculure

Pregress Tile

TR St Supgee Sandcs
Tao_Upwarnd Boued

Apir Acciss Disslopesent Program

Agricultural Risiarch_Baic and Appihid Rissasch
Agricultural Rsiarch_Baic and Appihed Risaasch
Agricultiea and Food Researc: Inkiative (AFRI)
Agricultura and Food Researc: Inkiative (AFRT)
Agricultira and Food Researc: Inkiative (AFRI)
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OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal
award activity of Oregon State University under programs of the federal govemment of the year ended
June 30, 2021. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Oregon State University, it is not intended to and
does not present the financial positon, changes in net position, or cash flows of Oregon State

University.

NOTEZ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance for all
awards with the exception of Assistance Listing 21.019, which follows criteria determined by the
Department of Treasury for allowability of costs. Under these principles, certain types of expenditures
are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule
represent adjustments or credits made in the nomal course of business to amounts reported as
expenditures in prior years. Oregon State University has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis
indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE3 FEDERAL STUDENT LOAN PROGRAMS

The federal student loan program listed subsequently is administered directly by Oregon State
University, and balances and transactions relating to these programs are included in Oregon State
University's basic financial statements. Loans outstanding at the beginning of the year and loans made
during the year are included in the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule. The balance of
loans outstanding at June 30, 2021 consists of:

Program Title CFDA Number Amount Outstanding
Perkins Loans 84.038 514,106,737

(25}
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OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENMDED JUNE 30, 2021

Section | — Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements
1. Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmedified
2. Intemal control over financial reporting:
» Material weakness(es) identified? Lyes [no
+ Significant deficiency(ies) identified? [lyes [ none reported

3. Noncompliance matenal to financial statements noted? Lyes [Kno

Federal Awards
1. Internal control over major federal programs:
+ Material weakness(es) identified? [lyes [no
+ Significant deficiency(ies) identified? [dyes [ none reported

2. Type of auditors’ report issued on
Compliance for major federal programs: Unmaodified

3. Any audit findings disclosad that are required

to be reported in accordance with
2 CFR 200.516(a)? Bdyes [no

Identification of Major Federal Programs

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84 268, 84 063, 84 038 Student Financial Assistance Cluster

84.007, 84.033

10.500 Cooperative Extension Sarvice

B4 425E, 84 425F COVID-19 — Education Stabilization Fund

84 334 Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for
Undergraduate Programs

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: 53,000,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Blyes [no

(28}
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OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

Cur audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

(27)
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OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Section lll - Federal Awards

2021-001: Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act Requirements

Federal Agency: Department of Education
Federal Program: Student Financial Assistance Cluster
Assistance Listing Numbers:

84.007 — Federal Supplemental Education Opportunity Grants
84.033 — Federal Work Study Program

84063 — Federal Pell Grant Program

84.268 — Federal Direct Student Loans

84.038 — Federal Perkins Loan Program

Award Period: July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021
Type of Finding:

«  Significant Deficiency in Intemal Control over Compliance
«  Compliance, Other Matter

Criteria or Specific Requirement: The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (GLBA) (Public Law 106-102)
requires financial institutions to explain their information-sharing practices to their customers and to
safequard sensitive data. (16 CFR 314) The Federal Trade Commission considers Title [V-eligible
institutions that participate in Title 'V Educational Assistance Programs as “financial institutions™ and
subject to the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (16 CFR 313.3(k){2){w1).

Under an institution's Frogram Participation Agreement with the Department of Education and the
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, schools must protect student financial aid information, with particular attention
to information provided to institutions by the Department or otherwise obtained in support of the
administration of the federal student financial aid programs. Requirements of the Act include:

# Institution has designated an individual to coordinate the information security program

« [nsfitution has performed a risk assessment that addresses the three required noted in 16
CFR 314 4(b), which are (1) Employee training and management; (2) Information systems,
including network and software design, as well as information processing, storage,
transmission and disposal; and (3) Detecting, preventing and responding to attacks,
intrusions, or other systems failures.

# Institution has documented a safeguard for each risk identified above.

Lastly, in accordance with 2 CFR Title 2, Subtitle A, Chapter 2, Part 200, Subpart D, 200.303, the non-
federal entity must establish and maintain effective internal controls over the federal award to provide
reasonable assurance that the non-federal enfity is manager the award in compliance with federal

regulations.

Condition: While the University had certain secunty controls in place, a formal nsk assessment in
compliance with the Act was not performed by the University.

i2)
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OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Context: The University did not formally perform and document a risk assessment that addressed one
of the areas noted in 16 CFR 314.4 (b) regarding information systems, including network and software
design, as well as information processing, storage, transmission and disposal.

Cause: While the University did perform a risk assessment covering varous systems, the University did
not formally perform and document a nsk assessment covering the second area noted in 16 CFR 314 4
().

Effect: Personal information could be vulnerable without identifying all potential nsks and applying
necessary safeguards. In addition, the University is not in compliance with all statutory and regulatory
provisions as it pertains to safeguarding sensitive data.

Recommendation: We recommend that the University identify systems where compliance with the
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act is required and ensure that a formal risk assessment is performed and
documented to demonstrate compliance with the Act.

Repeat Finding: This is not a repeat finding.

Questioned Costs: A full description of the recommendation has been communicated to management
and governance in the memorandum discussed above.

Views of Responsible Officials: Management is in agreement with this finding. See Corrective Action
Plan for planned response.

2021-002: Subrecipient Monitoring

Federal Agency: Department of Education
Federal Program: Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate Programs
Assistance Listing Number: 84.334

Award Period: July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021
Type of Finding:

#  Significant Deficiency in Intemal Control over Compliance
#  Compliance, Other Matter

Criteria or Specific Requirement: According to 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart D, Section 200332, pass-
through entities are required to perform certain subrecipient monitoring procedures. These procedures
include providing the subrecipient necessary award information so that the federal award is used in
accordance with federal regulations, evaluating risks of noncompliance of subrecipients, implementing
monitoring procedures based upon identified risks, and obtaining a copy of the subrecipients’ annual
audit and taking approprate action on deficiencies detected through the audits, just to name a few.
Lastly, in accordance with 2 CFR Title 2, Subtitle A, Chapter 2, Part 200, Subpart D, 200.303, the non-
federal entity must establish and maintain effective internal controls over the federal award to provide
reasonable assurance that the non-federal entity is manager the award in compliance with federal
reqgulations.
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OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Condition: The University did not verify whether the subject subrecipients received a required annual
audit under 2 CFR Part 200. By not verfying and obtaining a copy of the most recent audit of the
subrecipients, the University was unaware if any University enforcement action against noncompliant
subrecipients should occur.

Context: A sample of six out of 20 subrecipients was selected for testing. The University did not secure
the required annual report for any of the subrecipients tested.

Cause: In March 2020 there was significant restructuring of post-award duties which resulted in a
shifting of duties between positions. In addition, the onset of the pandemic impacted the ability to fill
newly created and existing vacancies. Due to this reorganization, transition to remote operations and
resource constraints the task to obtain and review the annual audit reports was not being performed as
part of the subrecipient monitoring procass.

Effect: The University was deficient in complying with subrecipient monitoring requirements relative to
obtaining the annual audit reports and performing the appropriate follow-up procedures (if necessary).
By not secunng the required annual report of subrecipients, there is a nsk that subrecipients could have
instances of deficiencies or noncompliance that directly impacts the award, but the University is unable
to respond accordingly, given it would not be aware of the issues identifiad.

Recommendation: We recommend the University implement a comprehensive process (and relevant
intemal controls) to ensure all elements of to 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart D, Section 200.332 are being
met, including obtaining a copy of the subject subrecipients’ annual audits and taking appropriate action
on deficiencies detected through the audits. Tools, such as checklists or electronic workflows, can
assist in ensuning all required elements are being met.

Repeat Finding: This is not a repeat finding.

Questioned Costs: Mone

Views of Responsible Officials: Management is in agreement with this finding. See Corrective Action
Plan for planned response.

(0]
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Office of the Controller
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Section IV — Prior Year Findings

FINDINGS—FINAMCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

2020 —001 : Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Condition: During fiscal year 2020, the University's internal control structure failed to prevent a
confidential issue that was communicated to management and governance in a detailed confidential
memaorandum.

Status: This itern was resolved in 2021,
FINDINGS— FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDITS

There were no federal award program audit findings in the prior year.
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Office of the Controller
Oregon State University
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Department of Health and Human Services

Oregon State University respectfully submits the following corrective action plan for the year ended June
30, 2020.

Audit period: July 1, 2020 — June 30, 2021

The findings from the schedule of findings and questioned costs are discussed below. The findings are
numbered consistently with the numbers assigned in the schedule.

FINDINGS—FINAMCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

Mo matters reported.

FINDINGS—FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDITS
SIGHIFICANT DEFICIEMCY OVER INTERNAL CONTROL, OTHER MATTER

2021-001 Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act Reguirements

Federal Agency: Department of Education
Federal Program: Student Financial Assistance Cluster
Assistance Listing Numbers:
£4.007 — Federal Supplemental Education Opportunity Grants
84.033 — Federal Work Study Program
84.063 — Federal Pell Grant Program
84.268 — Federal Direct Student Loans
84.038 — Federal Perkins Loan Program

Recommendation: We recommend that the University identify systems where compliance
with the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act is required and ensure that a formal risk assessment is
performed and documented to demonstrate compliance with the Act.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the audit
finding.

Action taken in response to finding: The University agrees. The University-wide security
program did not specifically identify the GLEA systems and risks: however, critical
systems such as financial aid, student financial systems and credit card processing are
reviewed routinely for control structure. In addition, the university-wide information
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security program assessment conducted annually by the Chief Information Security
Officer is based on the Mational Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST)
Cybersecurity Framework, with assessments conducted in September 2019, February
2021 and Movember 2021.

The Controller and Vice Provost for University IT/CIO reviewed and approved the risk
assessment for GLEA data developed by the Chief Information Security Officer and a task
force in May of 2022, The Risk Assessment covered all three areas required by GLBA,
including risks regarding information systems, network and software design, as well as
information processing, storage, transmission and disposal. The assessment includes
mitigation for identified risks and accountability for each risk. The assessment will be
reviewed at least annually and changes in risk will be briefed to the Controller and Vice
Prowvost for University IT/CIO.

Mame of the contact person responsible for corrective action:

David McMorries, Assist. Vice Provost & Chief Information Security Officer

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: May 2022

SIGMIFICANT DEFICIEMCY OVER INTERMNAL CONTROL, OTHER MATTER

2021-002 Subrecipient M onitoring

Federal Agency: Department of Education

Federal Program: Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate Programs
Assistance Listing Number: 34.334

Recommendation: We recommend the University implement a comprehensive process
(and relevant internal controls) to ensure all elements of to 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart D,
Section 200.332 are being met, including obtaining a copy of the subject subrecipients’
annual audits and taking appropriate action on deficiencies detected through the audits.
Toaols, such as checklists or electronic workflows, can assist in ensuring all required
elements are being met.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the audit
finding.

Action taken in response to finding: The University will identify resources in order to
obtain and review the annual audit reports for required subrecipients. Appropriate
follow-up will occur for any deficiencies identified by December 31, 2022, In an effort to
improve processes going forward, the research office plans to conduct a comprehensive
review of the existing subrecipient monitoring plan to identify best practices and ensure
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compliance with all elements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart D, Section 200.332. The review is
expected to be completed by March 31, 2023.

MName of the contact person responsible for corrective action:

lennifer Creighton, Associate Vice President for Research Administration, Finance and
Operations

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: Corrective action to obtain and
review the annual audit reports for all subrecipients and conduct follow-up will occur for
any deficiencies identified by December 31, 2022. The comprehensive review is
expected to be completed by March 31, 2023,

If the Department of Health and Human Services has questions regarding these plans, please call Heidi
Sann Associate VP for Finance and Controller at 541-737-7423.



EAC-FAC Agenda Item 2a - Attachment 4




	EAC-FAC-2a-FY2022 Annual Financial Statements and FY2021 Single Audit Report 12-13-2022
	EAC-FAC-2a-Attachment 1
	EAC-FAC-2a-Attachment 2
	EAC-FAC-2a-Attachment 3
	EAC-FAC-2a-Attachment 4



